£ 7y

I"D,’\ nAan

ﬂnﬂ

WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Monday, September 14, 2020 Board Meeting
Meeting Will Be Held via Zoom Platform

CONTACT CRA FOR ZOOM LINK

NOTE: Agenda Summary (Pages 3-11)
Staff Report (Pages 12-17)

I. CALLTO ORDER/ROLL CALL

II. AGENDA APPROVAL

1.

2,

Additions, Deletions, Substitutions to Agenda

Adoption of Agenda

. ADOPTION OF W/BH CRA MINUTES (Pages 18-22)

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS

V. DISCLOSURES

VI. CONSENT AGENDA

Vil. REGULAR AGENDA

1.

Approval of an Official Zoning Map Amendment of 1610 N. Congress
Avenue from RM to CG for the Autumn Ridge 106-Unit Multifamily
Mixed-Use Development (Pages 23-46)

. Approval of a Development Order Abandonment & Class B Conditional

Use Approvals for a Limited Access & a Multi-Access Self-Storage
Facility (Pages 47-77)

Approval of COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable
Loan Program Applications (Pages 78-138)

Approval of Site Development Assistance Program Guidelines
Revision (Pages 138A-143)

Approval of Neighborhood Preservation Program Guidelines Revision
(Pages 144-146)

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215, West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 - Tel 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

-1



lllvﬂ ﬂnﬁ

WESTGATEBELVEDERE HOMES

COMBURITY HEDE e it -z

Vill. REPORTS
A. Staff Reports
Correspondence (Pages 147-152)
B. Attorney’s Report
C. Committee Reports and Board Comments

Administrative/Finance -

Capital Improvements — Chair, Mr. Daniels
Land Use —

Real Estate — Chair, Mr. Kirby

Marketing —

Community Affairs —

Special Events — Chair, Ms. Rufty

NoOAGN=

IX. ADJOURNMENT

ANY PERSON MAKING IMPERTINENT OR SLANDEROUS REMARKS OR WHO
BECOMES BOISTEROUS WHILE ADDRESSING THE BOARD WILL BE BARRED FROM
FURTHER AUDIENCE BEFORE THE BOARD BY THE PRESIDING OFFICER, UNLESS
PERMISSION TO CONTINUE OR AGAIN ADDRESS THE BOARD AS GRANTED BY A
MAJORITY VOTE OF THE BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT.

IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THIS BOARD WITH
RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, HE WILL NEED A
RECORD OF THE PROCEEDING, AND FOR SUCH PURPOSE HE MAY NEED TO ENSURE
THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE, WHICH RECORD
INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL 1S TO BE
BASED.

ON JUNE 7, 1994, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS APPROVED
RESOLUTION NO. 94-693, KNOWN AS THE CODE OF ETHICS. UNDER SECTION 11, IT
IS REQUIRED THAT PAID AND UNPAID LOBBYISTS REGISTER. PLEASE REFER TO
SECTONS 11.01 AND 11.02 IN THE CODE OF ETHICS FOR REGISTRATION SPECIFICS.
FOR YOUR USE, REGISTRATION FORMS ARE AVAILABLE FROM THE CRA’S
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT.

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215, West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 n Tel 561.640.8181 " www.westgatecra.org



]”V"] nnn

ﬂ"ﬂ

WESTGATEBELVEDERC HONES)

R PR R

AGENDA ITEMS
Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Board Meeting
September 14, 2020

REGULAR AGENDA:

1. Approval of an Official Zoning Map Amendment of 1610 N. Congress Avenue from
RM to CG for the Autumn Ridge 106-Unit Multifamily Mixed-Use Development

A. Background and Summary: The site is located on the east side of Congress Avenue
south of Westgate Avenue. The project site consists of 2 contiguous narrow parcels
which back onto a drainage lake privately owned by the Lakeside Mobile Home Park.
The project site has split zoning: the parcel to the north is zoned Residential Multifamily
medium density (RM) and has a small single family dwelling; the larger parcel to the
south is zoned Commercial General (CG) and is vacant. Both parcels have a
Commercial High with an underiying residential future land use designation of 8 du/acre
(CH/8).

Landmark Companies, the contract purchaser (dba Autumn Ridge, LLC), proposes to
redevelop the site into a 106-unit muitifamily seniors-only Low [ncome Tax Credit (LITC)
rental development comprised of 1 and 2 bedroom units in a 5-story building, for a total
GFA of 108,989 sf, including a small 1,100 sf ground floor ancillary commercial retail
space; 54 one-bedroom units and 52 two-bedroom units are proposed. A recreation
space, open to the public, is also included as a site amenity.

At the August 10, 2020 regular meeting, the CRA Board recommended approval of the
project with an allocation of 77 units from the unit pool of WCRAQ Density Bonus
Program; an allocation of 610 trips per day, 38 am peak hour trips and 50 pm peak hour
trip from the WCRAO Transportation Concurrency Exception Area (TCEA) trips pool, and
the project site plan.

As indicated above, the Congress Avenue site currently has split zoning; the smaller
northern parcel is zoned Multifamily Residential (RM) and the larger southern parcel is
Page | 2

WCRA Board Meeting
August 10, 2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 e  West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180

fo



!HV/‘ :;:

WESTOATEBELVEDERE HO?\}IES

CUS NI R e

zoned Commercial General (CG). Residentiai uses are allowed in commercial zoning
districts in the WCRAO to facilitate mixed use, but commercial uses are not permitted in
residential zoning districts due to intensity of use and impact on surrounding residential.
The PBC Zoning Division has determined that a rezoning of the northern parcel of the
site is required for site consistency. The agent had argued that since development in the
WCRAQOQ is governed by the PDRs and supplementary standards of the Sub-area and
the intent of the UG sub-area of the WCRAO where mixed use is the preferred
development and multifamily and townhouse developments are permitted by right in non-
residential zoning districts where mixed use is permitted, there is no functional need to
rezone other than for technical compliance when the site is combined into one during the
platting process. The County has not yet amended the Comp Plan or the ULDC to
accommodate the directive of SB 1339, recently signed in to law by the Florida
Governor, that allows the development of affordable housing on any parcet of land zoned
residential, commercial or industrial.

The applicant's new request seeks Westgate CRA Board recommendation of approval
for an Official Zoning Map Amendment of the northern parcel (PCN 00-43-43-29-00-000-
3180) from existing Multifamily Residential (RM) to General Commercial (CG) for site
consistency.

B. Recommendation: CRA Staff recommends approval of an Official Zoning Map
Amendment of the northern parcel (PCN 00-43-43-29-00-000-3180) from existing
Multifamily Residential (RM) to General Commercial (CG) for site consistency.

2. Approval of a Development Order Abandonment & Class B Conditional Use
Approvals for a Limited Access & a Multi-Access Self-Storage Facility

A. Background and Summary: The subject site is a +/- 1.43-acre parcel is located
at 4200 Westgate Avenue., approx. ¥ mile from N. Military Trail. The property is within
the Urban Highway (UH) sub-area of the WCRAO and zoned CG (commercial general).
The Future Land Use designation is CH/8 (commercial high with an underlying
residential land use of 8 du per acre). The site is in the U/S Tier, RRIO (Revitalization,
Redevelopment & Infill Overlay), as well as in the URAQ (Urban Redevelopment Area

Page | 2
WCRA Board Meeting
August 10. 2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 e  West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180

t



i} n
T

\\-’ESTGATFJBEL\’EDERrE H(]giES '

SN RRGE s Ut SR

Overlay), and in a CCRT area. A wet retention pond, privately owned by Cross County
Mall and zoned CG/SE with a CHX/8 FLU is adjacent to the property to the south;
Westgate Plaza, a multifamily seniors affordable housing development, zoned RM with a
HR/18 FLU, is to the east; Cross County Commerce Center office/warehouse, zoned
CG/SE with a CH/8 FLU is across Westgate Avenue at Donnell Rd to the north; and, the
Palm Beach County School District Adult Education Facility, nearing construction
completion, is located to the west of the site. The parcel is currently vacant.

The applicant, Museo Vault WPB, LLC, provides fine art self-storage in a private,
secure, climate and UV- light controlled facility. The company has fwo successful
locations in South Florida: Miami and West Palm Beach on Northpoint Parkway; 4200
Westgate Avenue is proposed as the third location.

The proposed development consists of a 4-story +/- 49,760 sf self-storage facility
consisting of +/- 45,304 sf of Limited Access Self Storage and +/- 4,456 sf of Multi-
Access Self Storage. Due to impacts on surrounding uses, self-storage development
requires Class A Conditional Use approval by the BCC, however, the WCRAQ provision
allowing Class A uses to be approved as a Class B Conditional Use by the Zoning
Commission if the site is 2 acres or less. The site was approved for a 15,000 sf.
office/warehouse development in 2004, however, the development order has since been
allowed to expire, so the applicant has also included a request to formally abandon the
development order concurrent with this application. The project is proposed to be
completed by 2025.

Summary of Petition
The applicant requests a recommendation of approval from the Westgate CRA to include
the following:
1. Class B Conditional Use to allow a +/- 45,304 sf Limited Access Self-Storage
Facility;
2. Class B Conditional Use to allow a +/- 4,456 sf Multi-Access Self Storage Facility;
3. Abandonment of R-2004-2275 (Class A Conditional Use approval for
Office/Warehouse) and R-2008-259 (DOA to amend conditions of approval for R-
2004-2275); and,

Page | 3
WCRA Board Meeting
August 10. 2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 e  Waest Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180

5



I‘Wﬂ ann

I'lrrﬁ

WESTGATEBELYEDERE HOVESY

JEERa A | S KV N P OIS U

4. Final DRO Site Plan approval.

CRA Staff generally support the development of a self-service storage facility on this vacant
parcel; the use is primarily limited access self-storage, traffic impacts are minimal, and the
architecture is modern, designed to mitigate any adverse visual impacts. The applicant is
seeking to employ staff to carry out the operational aspects of fine art handling, and
assistance with pick-up and delivery. The use will serve a local and regional demand for
individuals, businesses, and government agencies seeking a secure fine art self-storage
facility; the company stores and provides art to international art events such as Art Basel in
Miami. It is anticipated that the project will draw positive attention to the redevelopment
area from outside interests.

B. Recommendation: CRA Staff recommends approval of the following:
1. Class B Conditional Use to allow a +/- 45,304 sf Limited Access Self-Storage
Facility;
2. Class B Conditional Use to allow a +/- 4,456 sf Multi-Access Self Storage Facility;
3. Abandonment of R-2004-2275 (Class A Conditional Use approval for
Office/Warehouse) and R-2008-259 (DOA to amend conditions of approval for R-

2004-2275); and,
4. Final DRO Site Plan approval.

3. Approval of COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program
Applications

A. Background and Summary: On June 8 2020, the CRA Board approved the creation of
the COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program to support
the retention of small businesses vital to the overall economic health of the
redevelopment area, protect and support capital improvements undertaken and planned
the CRA, and to prevent the furtherance of slum and blight conditions, pursuant to the
goals and objectives of the Westgate CRA Community Redevelopment Plan.

The program offers up to $10,000 in financial assistance to the business in the form of a
forgivable loan for eligible expenses, up to $10,000, associated with rent, payroll
support, inventory purchases, utility expenses, technology upgrades to facilitate remote

Page | 4
WCRA Board Meeting
Avgust 10, 2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 e West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180

b



HESTGATEBELVEDEREROMES

AR U I R .

working, and/or expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior spaces to
accommodate 6 physical separation. The program is funded with Tax Increment
Financing in accordance with the CRA’'s Redevelopment Plan. A total amount of
$150,000 was approved by the Board. The funding will straddle two fiscal years,
$50,000 in 2020 and $100,000 in 2021.

Program Eligibility:

Ine

Must be located within the Westgate CRA redevelopment area;

Loan applicant must be a business that was or became operational (as evidenced by
a Certificate of Occupancy or Palm Beach County Business Tax Receipt) prior to
January 1, 2020;

Loan applicant must be the business entity (or d/b/a) named on the corporate
documents, and the application must be executed by the principal/owner(s) named
on the corporate documents. If a corporate entity, the principal must execute a
personal guarantee for the loan;

Must be a for-profit, privately held business with less than 25 employees;

Must provide proof that the business is properly entitled and licensed by all
necessary levels of government; A

Businesses must have an executed one-year minimum lease;

Business must employ a minimum of one (2) full-time equivalent W-2 employees
whose wages are reported to the state and federal government; one (1) position
occupied by the business owner may count toward the required job positions.

Iif any individual is the Principal/Owner for more than one eligible business, the
Principal/Owner may only sign the application on behalf of one business. This
means that if one or more eligible businesses have a Principal /Owner in common,
only one of those businesses may apply for the Program, even if the business(es)
has (have) more than one Principal/Owner.

ligible Businesses:

Businesses that are prohibited uses within the Westgate Community Redevelopment
Area Overlay (WCRAQ) or certain sub-areas of the WCRAOQO including, but not

Page | 5

WCRA Board Meeting

August 10. 2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 o  West Palm Beach, Florida 334089 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180

"l



A

ﬂnH

limited to: adult entertainment, convenience stores, employment agencies, gas and
fuel sales, self-service storage, or contractor storage yards;

= Businesses that do not further the redevelopment goals of the Westgate CRA
Community Redevelopment Plan including, but not limited to firearm sales, check
cashing stores, adult arcades, pawn shops, liquor stores, smokel/e-cig or vape
shops, tatioo shops, or any other use as determined by the Westgate CRA Board or
designee;

= Not for profit organizations or places of worship;

= Businesses with more than 25 and less than two (2) full-time equivalent employees;
» Businesses which are publicly traded; and,
» Businesses that do not report employees’ wages.

Eligible Businesses Include, but are not Limited to:

» Restaurants, professional/general offices (based on NAICS codes), medical/dental
offices, neighborhood grocers, brick and mortar retail sales, veterinary clinics,
catering services, personal services, financial institutions, and home-based
businesses or home-based day cares with a residential address in the CRA.

LOAN TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The maximum amount of loan to any one business under the Program is $10,000. Loan
applicants may apply multiple times if loaned less than the maximum amount, but no loan
applicant will receive more than the maximum amount in total. If the maximum amount of
funding to the Program is later increased, loan applicants that were loaned $10,000 may
reapply for additional funding until the new maximum is reached.

Loans shall be interest-free, and the loan amount shall be due to be repaid to the Westgate
CRA one (1) year from the date of the loan. Loan applicants will be required fo sign a
promissory note to ensure compliance with the loan, program terms, and conditions

Application packets must include:

v’ Copy of the corporate documents for the applying business entity (an active copy of
your registered business as shown on SunBiz.Org).

Page | &
WCRA Board Meeting
August 10. 2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 e West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax 561.640.8180

D



7

ENTGTERESEERE M

IR TR

ANERN

Copy of Palm Beach County occupational license (Business Tax Receipt or BTR).
Documentation to support the loan applicant's request for approval including a

breakdown of eligible expenses for rent, payroll, inventory, utility expenses, and/or
technology upgrades. Examples include, but are not limited to: lease agreements,
invoices, receipts, paystubs, utility bills or other acceptable evidence of payment or
expenses associated with the loan request. Loan applicants may redact sensitive
information such as specified above.

v" Completed, signed, and notarized application (attached).
v" W-9 Form.
Other proof as necessary to evidence compliance with Funding Eligibility.

COVID-19 Applications to Be Considered (Separate Motion May Be Needed)

1.

Advanced Vision

This business is a medical office/retail located at 532 Okeechobee Blvd. They
request $10,000 in rent assistance. The business has been in the CRA for twenty-
one (21) years.

Shoe Haul Retail Sales

This business is a retail sales located at 2702 N. Military Trail in the Palm Beach
Commons plaza. They request $10,000 in rent and payroll assistance. The business
has been in the CRA for six (6) years.

Alternative Automotive Services

This business is a vehicle Repair & Maintenance located at 2702 Rockey Dr. They
request $10,000 in rent and payroll assistance. The business has been in the CRA
for 38 years.

Tender Love & Care

This business is a Day Care Center located at 1859 Seminole Blvd. They request
$10,000 in payroll assistance. The business has been in the CRA for 17 years.

Mufflers, Brakes & More

Page | 7

WCRA Board Meeting

August 10. 2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 e Waest Palm Beach, Florida 33409 s Ph561.640.818% e Fax561.640.8180

A



ko

F“V{l LLE]

Hn"

WESTGATEBELVEDERE HU}iES

B R L)

This business is a vehicle repair & maintenance located at 2536 Okeechobee Blvd.
They request $10,000 in payroll, utility and inventory assistance. The business has
been in the CRA for 21.5 years.

CRA Staff have reviewed the applications. They all meet the requirements established
by the Board.

B. Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends the approval of all five (5) applications for
$10,000 each.

4. Approval of Site Development Assistance Program Guidelines Revision

A. Background and Summary: The SITE DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
(SDAP) is available to new residential, and new and existing commercial, and industrial
development within the Wesigate CRA redevelopment area. The program is
esfablished to encourage developers and property owners to improve in the external
appearance of their properties and/or invest in their operations. The result will eliminate
blighted influences, stabilize property values, and facilitate redevelopment activity in the
target area in accordance with the CRA’'s Community Redevelopment Plan. The Site
Development Assistance grant provides funding assistance to help defray or leverage
the cost of exterior improvements and project related engineering, architectural, and
permitting costs associated with new construction, building expansion, and renovations.
This revision will add provision to allow new single family development to participate in
the program. The following language is proposed to be added to the program
guidelines.
$5,000 per unit for eligible project costs may be reimbursed for new single family
projects with up to 5 units on contiguous sites, to a maximum of $15,000, and to a
maximum_of $40,000 for new single family projects with more than 5 units on
contiguous sites.

B. Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Board allows the new language to
cover the inclusion of single family development into the SDAP guidelines.

Page | 8
WCRA Board Meeting
August 10. 2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 e West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax 561.640.8180

\D



|!|V."] :;:

TEBREH

5. Approval of Neighborhood Preservation Program Guidelines Revision

A. Background and Summary: The NEIGHBORHOOD PRESERVATION PROGRAM

(NPP) seeks to encourage the preservation of the CRA’s existing housing stock by
providing assistance to homeowners to make needed improvement to their homes.
This revision will add provision to 1) assist property owners with plumbing and sewer
connection and 2) to apply multiple times within the three-year period for more funding
provided that they don’t exceed the $6,000 maximum amount of the grant. The following
language is proposed to be added to the program guidelines.

The maximum amount of grant to any one property owner under the Program is $6.000.
Grant applicants may apply multiple times if granted less than the maximum amount,
but no grant applicant will receive more than the maximum amount in total. If the
maximum amount of funding to the Program is later increased, grant applicants that
were granted $6,000 may reapply for additional funding until the new maximum is
reached.

B. Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Board allows the new language to
cover plumbing and sewer connection and to allow applicants to apply multiple times
provided that they don't exceed the maximum amount of the grant within three vears.

Page | S
WCRA Board Meeting
August 10, 2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 & West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180

|



Page | 1

WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES CRA BOARD MEETING

Staff Update on In-House Projects
September, 2020

COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

The Board approved the Program at the June meeting. The program has been advertised on our
website as well as Facebook page. Staff completed a direct mail out advertising the availability of the
program to Westgate businesses at the end of August. Business types were screened by uses
permitted in certain WCRAO sub-areas. Interest in the program has been robust. Four (4) applications
will be presented to the Board for approval at their September meeting; many more application
submittals are anticipated.

Background: Small businesses have suffered financial loss and hardship due to the COVID-19 crisis.
Small businesses in the CRA district with less than 25 employees can apply for up to $10,000 in
financial assistance in the form of a forgivable loan for eligible expenses associated with rent, payroll
suppert, inventory purchases, utilities, expenses associated with technology upgrades to facilitate
remote working, and/or expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior spaces to
accommodate a 6’ physical separation. First come, first served basis. $150,000 from the CRA’s budget
has been allocated to the program.

2020-01 and 2020-02 ULDC Amendment Round (NEW)

Update: Due to workflow and scheduling challenges caused by COVID-19 spring lockdowns, the
WCRAO Amendment was moved from the first round (2020-01) to the second round (2020-02). Staff
worked with 2GHO to complete the amendments. A summary of amendments including the timeline for
approval and the amendment draft were approved by the Board at their August Board meeting. The
amendments were heard and unanimously recommended for approval by the LDRAB at their August
26" meeting. No changes to the amendment language were made. The amendments will proceed to
the BCC for 1%t reading in December and adoption in January 2021.

The CRA is seeking to make amendments to its overlay that are focused on the following: restrict or
limit certain commercial and industrial uses that do not support the intent of the Sub-area or the Plan
such as car wash, landscape service, commercial parking, seif-siorage and distribution fagilities,
manufacturing & processing, warehouse, and wholesaling; revise PDR’s to reflect smaller lot sizes on
Westgate Ave and Okeechobee Blvd allowing more flexibility in development without the need for
variances; eliminate sky exposure planes; and revise the Density Bonus Program to be consistent with
the County’s WHP in design, compliance and enforcement, also revising the criteria for WCRA approval
of bonus units to allow better access for smaller residential projects.

Backaground: Amendments to the County's Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) occur twice
annually. The CRA regularly participates in this process to update areas of its WCRA Zoning Overlay to
better achieve the goals and objectives of the agency and the amended Community Redevelopment
Plan, respond to industry and market trends, simplify processes, and correct technical and language
glitches.

Public Assistance Grant {ONGOING)

FEMA has approved nearly $100,000 to pay for debris removal, and clean up detention ponds as a
result of Hurricane Irma. Staff is working with the Florida Department of Emergency Management to
implement this project.

EN



Page |2

Community Garden/Greenmarket (ONGOING)

Update: Construction to install electricity, an irrigation pump and an irrigation system have been
installed. Staff is working on securing a contractor for site improvements and installation of a pre-
manufactured structure to act as a permanent greenmarket. The Plat has been granted technical
compliance. Following the completion of corner clip dedications, the project can move into the
permitting phase.

Background: Staff engaged Schmidt-Nichols (SN) to prepare a site plan for the community garden and
the green market. The CRA initiated new regulations to allow green markets to operate as an
accessory to community gardens without having fo buffer surrounding residential uses with an opaque
wall and 20 ft landscape buffer. The site plan includes an enclosed structure with a bathroom and a
walk-in cooler. The community garden/greenmarket received site plan approval in March 2018.

CRA staff proposed amendment language, adopted in the 2018-02 Round, to eliminate the community
garden use from landscaping requirements, and modified code language regarding hours of operation
and building size and placement for the accessory greenmarket use. Schmidt Nichols submitted an
administrative amendment (ZAR) to remove the landscape buffers and ROW utility easement. The ZAR
was approved in April 2019. The permits have been approved to operate the community garden. The
electrician and plumbing contractors are working with the utility companies. The CRA will begin to work
with a contractor/architect to design the greenmarket structure and prepare plans to submit for building
permit. Platting is a condition of approval and is underway.

PBC Solid Waste Authority (SWA) Blighted & Distressed Properties Grants

FY 2018 — Oswego Avenue Properties Clean-up (STARTED)

Update: The CRA has paid a contractor to remove evasive trees, vegetation and debris on the sites. An
additional time extension of the grant agreement has been provided by the SWA.

Staff worked with Schmidt Nichols on the dog park design. A site and landscape plan, along with cost
estimate have been provided. The CRA is also working with County Purchasing to see if the agency
can utilize the County's annual contract “piggyback” policy. The remaining lots will be cleared, sodded,
and fence commensurate with the original scope.

Background: The CRA was awarded in the amount of $92,700 to clean-up, clear, sod and fence 6
vacant CRA-owned properties on Oswego Avenue east of Seminole Blvd. previously earmarked for the
L-2 Canal Expansion project. The CRA is proposing match funds in the amount of $34,460. An
Interlocal Agreement between the CRA & SWA was approved by the BCC in March 2018. The CRA
received a 50% disbursement of total funds in April 2018.

SWA has approved an extension to the grant timeline and a change of scope to develop a dog park on
three of the Oswego Avenue parcels targeted for the properties clean-up. The dog park will include
areas and equipment for small and large dogs, fencing, landscaping, and benches. By the fall of 2018,
the LWDD cleared a majority of the vegetation overgrowth along the L-2 canal leaving a window of
opportunity in the budget to create a simple dog park and still maintain the overall budgeted amount.

FY 2017 — Oswego Oaks Park (ONGOING)

Update: The park is now open to the public and maintenance has been taken over by the CRA. Staff
anticipates DHES approval of required CDBG related close out documents, final retainage to be paid to
the contractor, and final disbursement of remaining SWA grant funds by the end of September. DHES
is administratively amending the funding agreement completion date to September 30, 2020. to Staff
will begin working on a small-scale ribbon cutting to be held towards the end of October.

=



Page | 3

The park reached final construction completion at the end of August 2019. Final inspections began in
September 2019 and punch list items were addressed. The LWDD requires drainage permit as-builts,
several sub-permits were required (pavilion roof, site electrical) and remain under review due to delays
caused in part by contractor inaction and by an extremely slow County Building review process. Staff is
working with the County and with West to expedite, however, due to the impact to workflows from the
COVID-19 spring lockdown, close-out was delayed. Final inspections were passed in May 2020. Staff is
working with DHES and West o provide required CDBG certified payrolls and documents. All that
remains to be done is a formal close out of the grant. Contractor final retainage is held until approval of
grant documents is provided by DHES,

Background: The CRA was awarded in the amount of $151,000 to design and build a neighborhood
park on Oswego Avenue at Seminole Blvd across from the Westgate Recreation Center. The park will
utilize 3 vacant CRA owned lots formerly earmarked for the L-2 Canal expansion project. Staff worked
with PBC Parks & Recreation to design the project. In 2017, PBC HES originally approved a request for
$114,000 in CDBG funds to match the SWA grant. The SWA forwarded 50% of the grant amount to the
CRA to start the project. Following completion of design and engineering drawings, it became clear that
the project was underfunded. CRA Staff requested additional funding of $231,000 in FY 2018 CDBG
allocations from HES to cover a budget shortfall for the park project. Construction drawings were
finalized and the project was advertised for bid in August 2018. The contract was awarded to the [owest
bidder West Construction Inc. The contract has been executed and construction began in November
2018.

PBC Transportation Planning Agency (TPA) Transportation Alternatives {(TAP)} & Local

Initiatives (L) Grants

FY 2020 Cherry Road Pedestrian & Safety Improvements (NEW)

Update: The Cherry Road project received approval for funding by the TPA Governing Board in July,
2020.

The CRA engaged consultants, WGI to refine the Cherry Rd. improvements project for TPA TAP grant
application submittal in the 2020 cycle. CRA Staff and WGI worked with Engineering on improving the
proposed typical sections. The project proposes reduced with travel lanes for traffic calming, new
sidewalks on the south side of Cherry Rd east and west of the bridge to the intersection of Country
Club Rd., a new 12’ shared multi-use path on the north side of the corridor, new crosswalks, pedestrian
scale lighting, and shade trees where allowed. The total project cost is $1.96 million. The grant
reimburses $1 million. The application was submitted to the TPA on February 28, 2020.

FY 2019 and Seminole Blvd. Complete Streets (FUNDED/ONGOING)

Update: The Transportation Planning Agency Governing Board approved funding for the Seminole Blvd
project at their July 18" meeting. The Seminole project was ranked #1. Staff and WG| presented the
projects to FDOT and BTPAC in early April; Seminole was ranked #1 and Cherry Rd was #4. The
Board recommended that the Seminole Blvd project should be prioritized since it ranked higher and is a
larger project. -

Background: The Board approved a two-fold work assignment with WGI in November 2018 fo prepare
a feasibility analysis to identify the best two projects fo submit to the TPA for the 2019 Transportation
Alternatives Program (TAP) cycle. Based on findings presented by WGI, the Board selected the
following projects:

1. Seminole Blvd Complete Streets which expands existing sidewalks to 10-12 ft. multi-use paths on
each side of the roadway, adds high visibility crosswalks at each intersection, adds pedestrian scale
lighting, and shade trees. The project boundaries are from Ckeechobee Blvd. to Oswego Ave. Total

\er



Page | 4

construction cost is $1,622,979. The grant reimburses $1 million.

2. Cherry Road Pedestrian Safety Improvements adds new sidewalks on the south side of Cherry Rd
and expands existing sidewalks on the north side to 10-12 ft., adds HAWK signalization to intersection
at Country Club Rd., and two new crosswalks along the corridor, new pedestrian scale lighting, and
shade trees. The project boundaries are from Quail Drive to N. Military Trail. Total construction cost is
$911,142.

TAP grant projects are designed and constructed within 3 years of prioritized funding. Design will begin
in 2020 with construction completion in 2022.

FY18 — Westgate Avenue Corridor Complete Streets (DESIGN STARTED)

Update: Design has begun on the Westgate Avenue project and must be completed by July 2021
Design is moving forward without a roundabout. CRA Staff met with County Roadway Production and
the project consulting engineers in February to discuss the design, scope and timeline of the project.
The CRA has been asked to provide input on lighting design and landscaping. The consulting
engineers have included a roundabout at the intersection of Westgate Ave. and Seminole Blvd. in their
design. At their February meeting, the CRA Board, following discussion, expressed their disapproval of
a roundabout at this location.

A County Selection Committee met in November 2019 and selected American Consulting Engineers of
Florida (ACE) to design the project. CRA staff was in attendance for the presentations and scoring. The
County Engineering Department had shortlisted three firms for the project, including CRA consultants
WGI, however, volume of previous work was an overriding factor in selection.

Background Information: Staff engaged WGI to coordinate the preparation of travel demand forecast
modelling to determine the impact of reducing Westgate Ave from 5 lanes to 3 lanes utilizing a road diet
approach. WGI facilitated communication with PBC TPA and Engineering to determine the best design
alternative, held a public input meeting, and drafted the final design for the project be used to obtain
funding. WGI met with the Engineering Department to present the lane elimination plan. County staff is
in support of the lane reduction from Wabasso to Congress, but they are not in support of the elevated
landscape median. An alternative design, which allows for 3 lanes (2 thru lanes and one center turn
lane), bike lanes, and floating landscape islands on both sides of the ROW alternating with on street
parking was presented to County Engineering for approval and support. With assistance from WGI, the
LI grant application was submitted on March 2, 2018. CRA staff is working with County Engineering
and Administration to design and administer all 3 of the TPA grant projects.

The TPA Governing Board voted to adopt the TPA List of Pricrity Projects for the LRTP FY 2020-2024
at their September 20, 2018 meeting. Projects that met TPA and FDOT eligibility requirements were
ranked by internal advisory boards, committees and TPA Staff to be forwarded the Governing Board.
The Westgate Avenue Complete Streets project was ranked #1 of 6 entries to receive Local Initiatives
Program funding. This project has been moved up the timeline due to the inability of other funded
projects to proceed. Design can start in July 2019 for FY 2019/20. Construction funding will be
approved after the design is completed.

FY 2018 — Phase |l Belvedere Heights Streetlights & Sidewalks {FUNDED/ONGOING)

Update: The BCC is considering an agenda item on June 16" for the design of this second phase. The
TPA Governing Board voted to adopt the TPA List of Priority Projects for the LRTP FY 2020-2024 at
their September 20, 2018 meeting. Projects that met TPA and FDOT eligibility requirements were
ranked by internal advisory boards, committees and TPA Staff to be forwarded the Governing Board.
Phase |l of the Belvedere Heights Sireetlights and Sidewalks project was ranked #3 of 4. This project
has been moved up the timeline due to the inability of other funded projects to proceed. Design can
start in July 2019. Construction funding will be approved after the design is completed. The CRA needs

|5



Fage | §

to execute an MOU and provide upfront funding to the County for design.

Background Information: CRA staff prepared and submitted a Transportation Alternatives Program
(TAP) grant application for Phase Il — Wellington Road to Bridgeman Road, of the Belvedere Heights
Neighborhood for sidewalks and streetlights to PBC TPA in March 2018.

FY 2017 — Phase | Belvedere Heights Streetlights & Sidewalks (DESIGN NEARLY COMPLETE)

Update: The neighborhood has experienced chronic poor drainage and the water mains have reached
the end of their useable life and must be replaced. Mock Roos, the contractor for the
sidewalks/streetlights project requested that PBC Water Ulilities do the water main work prior to the
installation of sidewalks and they have agreed; Mock Roos will also do this work. Engenuity Group has
been working on a drainage design for the area and a request has been made for Water Utilities in
collaboration with Engineering to do this work ahead of sidewalk installation as well. Water main
replacement will occur January thru March, 2021 with drainage in March thru July, 2021. Construction
on the sidewalks project is set to begin in August 2021.

Engineers are preparing the second part of the design. The Engineering Department has engaged
several consultants through a CRA/County MOU to implement the project. Design is almost completed.
The County is currently reaching out to the residents.

Background Information: An application was submitied to the TPA Transportation Alternatives Grant to
request almost $1 Million to install sidewalks and streetlights in Belvedere Heights in 2017. The funds
will not be available until 2019. The BCC approved Engineering Department sponsorship of the project
via resolution in May 2018.

CRA 5-year Strategic Plan (ONGOING)

CRA staff has begun drafiing a 5-year strategic plan that will implement the goals and objectives of the
newly amended Redevelopment Plan. A strategic plan will outline the specific tasks, timeline and
budget required for redevelopment activities over the next 5 years. It can also serve as a platform for
the CRA to refine its vision and mission statement in a way that is current with its shifting priorities. Staff
has received some initial input from Board members. Work on the Strategic Plan is ongoing.

Streetlights for Belvedere Homes (ONGOING)

The Engineering Department is partnering with Office and Community Revitalization to instali streetlight
in Belvedere Homes. An initial meeting has been held. Citizens are currently gathering signatures and
easement authorization from residents and property owners.

\ 6



Proposed Private Redevelopment Projects

Page | 6

Below is list of private development projects in the Westgate CRA that are in the entitlements or

permitting process:;

Projects

Address

Status

Museo Vault self-service
storage

4200 Westgate Ave

Submiited to CRA for recommendation 9-14-
20 — proposing a 4-story, 50,000 sf fine art
and antique storage facility

Autumn Ridge LITC mixed use

Congress Ave

106 units by Landmark Construction, 90% of
units at or below 60% of AMI — 77 DBP units,
TCEA and rezoning from RM {o CG

Mufflers Brakes & More

2536 Okeechobee Bilvd

Existing auto repair, seeking to expand bays

QOkeechobee Steakhouse

Okeechobee Blvd

Changing catering facility use (Bldg B) to
Type |l restaurant with outdoor seating

Soapy Shark Car Wash
{potential project --formerly
KFC/Jack's Restaurant)

2200 Okeechobee Blvd.

DRO Approval & 6 variances required.
Submitted to Zoning

Townhouse project

Cherokee Ave

6-7 townhomes on .46 ac — utilizing TDRs and
a WCRA density bonus unit

Duplex development

1115 Osceola

Utilizing 1 WCRA density bonus unit, non-
conforming lot

Cottage home project

2611 Saranac

1-acre site newly subdivided into 14 25 ft lots
for cottage homes

Saginaw & Saranac SF homes

2636 Saginaw, 3449
Saranac

4 newly constructed SF homes

New Country Motor Cars— 4900 Okeechobee BOAIConcurrent-Type-Hhvariance-reguesis—
M looE ; A ,
rodistibuting square-footage ,
expandingrencvaling-maintenance-area; Fool
- . YT - top-IAVeRts 5.|EE’IE."9 . -
EQH’BJE I:al '.'e; tForditincoln H668-N-Mititary Frai Wt 5;5 SSHb“ tted IF"EE'HIQ' el 5 'e’fg W grtls‘ 6
Hse

Congress Avenue -
Greene Apartments

1600 N. Congress Ave

In Zoning for DRO approval. 198 units — 138
density bonus units from WCRA pool; 55
income restricted. Issues with compensating
storm water storage — SFWMD permit
received at end of July utilizing available acre
feet from the Preserve

MacDonald Industrial/McArthur
Dairy

N. Florida Mango

Type 2 waiver for extended hours of
operation. BCC approved January.
Construction to begin mid 2019

Mi Pais Express (Fernandez)
Mixed Use

2633 Westgate Ave

Platting process has begun. Permit submitted.
Architectural review for mixed use required.
CRA has prepared easement agreement.
Architectural review underway.

Now in permitiing

Dos Hermanos Mixed Use

Waestgate & Seminole Blvd

Rezoning & variances approved. DRO site

expansion

Congress-Ave& Cherry
Rd-

plan approval. New architect
3 | 2t Doc BCC/Einal DRO_Admi
coniractor-selection

Westgate One

Westgate at Nokomis

Approved/ Extension. Potential residential
project

"



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
1280 N. CONGRESS AVE., SUITE 215, WEST PALM BEACH, FL. 33409
MINUTES OF THE MONTHLY MEETING

August 10, 2020
CALL TO ORDER (MEETING HELD VIRTUALLY ON ZOOM PLATFORM)

Mr. Daniels, the Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 5:07 p.m. The roll was called
by Ms. Bui.

Present: Ronald Daniels
Joanne Rufty
Joseph Kirby
Ralph Lewis
Yeraldi Benitez — Logged on at 5:11p.m.
Ruth Haggerty

Absent; Enol Gilles

Staff Present: Elizée Michel, Executive Director
Denise Pennell, Senior Planner
Carmen Geraine, Bookkeeper

Mai Bui, Administrative Assistant
Thomas J. Baird, Esq., General Counsel

AGENDA APPROVAL
1. Additions, Deletions, Substitutions to Agenda

- No Additions, Deletions, Substitutions to Agenda
2. Adoption of Agenda

- ltwas moved by Ms. Rufty and seconded by Ms. Haggerty to adopt the Agenda.
Motion carried (5-0)

ADOPTION OF W/BH CRA MINUTES
It was moved by Ms. Haggerty and seconded by Ms. Rufty to adopt the minutes of the
July 13, 2020 meeting. Motion carried (5-0)

PUBLIC COMMENT

|



Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Minutes of the Monthly Meeting
August 10, 2020

Page 2
- PBSO Deputy Gomez and Deputy Robinson gave a brief report to the Board
about police activities in the Westgate CRA area for the previous month.
V. DISCLOSURES
- No disclosures
VI. CONSENT AGENDA
- No consent agenda
VIl. REGULAR AGENDA

. Approval of Proposed 20-02 WCRA Zoning Overlay Amendments

The agenda was introduced by Ms. Pennell. The CRA and planning consultants, 2GH0,
have been working with Palm Beach County Zoning Division to amend the Westgate CRA
Zoning Overlay in the 20-02 Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) Amendment Round.

Dodi Glas with 2GHO and Ms. Pennell presented to the Board and answered questions
about the amendment.

Staff recommended that the Board approve the amendments to the Westgate CRA Zoning
Overlay as proposed.

It was moved by Ms. Rufty and seconded by Mr. Lewis to authorized the amendment
of the Westgate CRA Zoning Overlay. The motion passed unanimously (6-0)

Approval of Density Bonus Units, TCEA frips, and Site Plan for Autumn Ridge -
1580 7 1610 N. Congress Avenue

The agenda was presented by Mr. Michel. The +/-3.58-acre site is located on the east side
of Congress Avenue south of Westgate Avenue. The site consists of 2 contiguous narrow
parcels which back onto a drainage lake privately owned by the Lakeside Mobile Home
Park. The site has split zoning: the parcel to the north is zoned Residential Multifamily
medium density (RM) and has a small single family dwelling; the larger parcel to the south
is zoned Commercial General (CG) and is vacant. Both parcels have a Commercial High
with an underlying residential future land use designation of 8 du/acre (CH/8). The parcel
to the south was approved in 2002 for a vocational school/non-profit assembly use in Res.
#R-2002-0835, but the project didn't move forward, and all entitlements have expired. The
site is located within the boundaries of the Urban General (UG) Sub-area of the WCRAO.
Directly to the north of the site is a 7.5-acre vacant assemblage approved for a 198-unit

19



Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Minutes of the Monthly Meeting
August 10, 2020
Page 3

market rate multifamily development called the Greene Apartments; the project is currently
in permitting. To the south is an established commercial office-warehouse development.
The site is in the U/S Tier as well as in the Revitalization and Redevelopment Infill Overlay
(RRIQ), Urban Redevelopment Area Overlay (URAO), and the CCRT area.

Landmark Companies, the contract purchaser (dba Autumn Ridge, LLC), is a Miami-based
workforce/affordable housing developer with several successful multifamily projects in
South Florida including the recently constructed Dunbar Village in West Palm Beach, as
well as Westgate Plaza, an 80-unit seniors affordable housing development built in 2012
on Westgate Avenue. Autumn Ridge is a 106-unit multifamily seniors-only Low Income
Tax Credit (LITC) rental development comprised of 1 and 2 bedroom units in a 5-story
building, for a total GFA of 108,989 sf, including a small 1,100 sf ground floor ancillary
commercial retail space; 54 one-bedroom units and 52 two-bedroom units are proposed.
A recreation space, open to the public, is also included as a site amenity. To streamline
entitlements, avoid tripping the development and public hearing approvals thresholds, and
to achieve the desired density, the applicant is requesting 77 WCRAO density bonus units.
These additional units may be approved by the DRO if the increase does not exceed 22
dwelling units per acre; this project is requesting an additional density of 21.6 du/ac.

Income Mix: The Westgate CRA area has a very large concentration of households which
are low and very low income. Only 20% of households earn an income that can be
classified as moderate or above moderate. Affordable or low-income housing targets an
AMI of 50%-80%; very-low is 60% or below of AMLI. This LITC project proposes 72 of 106
units to be very-low at 60% of AMI or less; 16 units are proposed to be exiremely-low at
0-30%. 12 units are proposed to be low at 60-80% of AMI, with 7 units in the moderate or
middle income category. Overall, 90% of the total project units are proposed to be low,
very-low or extremely-low, with only 10% of the units above 80% of AMI.

Cameron Ennis with Schmidt Nichols, Francisco Rojo and Justin Gilbert with Landmark
Company presented the project to the Board. The application requested the following,
recommended by Staff:
1. A 106-unit multifamily seniors-only Low Income Tax Credit (LIHTC) rental
development with an 1,100 sf commercial retail space on a +/- 3.58-acre site;
2. An allocation of 77 units from the unit pool of WCRAQ Density Bonus Program;
3. An allocation of 610 trips per day, 38 am peak hour trips and 50 pm peak hour trip
from the WCRAO Transportation Concurrency Exception Area (TCEA) trips pool;
and
4. Staff further recommends DRO site plan approval.

2.0



Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Minutes of the Manthly Meeting

August
Page 4

10, 2020

It was moved by Ms. Rufty and seconded by Ms. Haggerty to approve Density Bonus
Units, TCEA trips, and Site Plan for Autumn Ridge. The motion passed unanimously
(6-0)

Approval of FY 2020-2021 Budget

The agenda was presented by Mr. Michel. The CRA Budget includes three parts, the
Redevelopment Trust Fund, the Capital Improvement Project, and the Transportation
Enhancement grants. The Redevelopment Trust Fund presents in a line-by-line format all
the items funded by the tax increment revenues and rental income. This part details the
administrative and the programmatic expenses. A new line item was created to add
funding for the COVID-19 Small Business Assistance Grant. The preliminary tax roll value
shows that the TIF might increase by 9% this year (adding more than $200,000 to the
budget); however, we don't expect to see much of an increase when the final tax is
computed at the end of the year. It is very probable that market value of real properties
may decrease which will result in a decrease in TIF.

The Capital Improvement Project portion provides funding from the trust fund and grants
to complete infrastructure improvement projects and acquire properties for redevelopment.
The grants received from CDBG and SWA are included in this portion of the Budget. The
Transportation Enhancement part shows the grants received from the Transportation
Planning Agency and the Department of Transportation. These grants are being managed
by the Palm Beach County Engineering Department, but they were awarded to the CRA
through grant applications submitted by CRA Staff. These funding is provided on a
reimbursement basis. This information is being shared with the Board to show the TPA
grant activities and timeline. No actual cash will be given to the CRA. Staff recommended
that the Board approval of FY 2020 - 2021 Budget. :

It was moved by Ms. Haggerty and seconded by Ms. Benitez to approve FY 2020 —
2021 Budget. The motion passed unanimously (6-0)

Approval of Ward & Company, P.A., Engagement Letter for FY 2020

The agenda item was presented by Mr. Michel. The CRA is seeking the service of Ward
& Company to audit the financial records of the CRA for fiscal year 2020. The auditors will
be responsible to test the accounting records of the Westgate CRA and perform other
procedures considered necessary to prepare a comprehensive report in accordance with
the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. It is estimated that a single audit will not be

AN



Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Minuies of the Monthly Meeting
August 10, 2020
Page 5

Viil.

IX.

needed this year. Ward and Company has submitted a proposal for thé work. The
company proposes to complete the audit for an amount not to exceed $19,000 - $21,000.

Staff recommended that the Board approves staff to engage Ward and Company, P.A. to
provide auditing services for fiscal year ending in September 2020.

It was moved by Ms. Haggerty and seconded by Ms. Rufty to engage Ward and
Company, P.A. to provide auditing services. The motion passed unanimously (6-0)

STAFF REPORTS

Mr. Michel reported to the Board the Oswego Parks is completed. Staff is finalizing close-
out documents required by DHES for CDBG funding.

Mr. Michel reported to the Board that Cherry Road application was approved by TPA
Governing Board.

Mr. Michel reported to the Board that the Phase | design for Belvedere Heights is nearly
finalized.

Mr. Michel reported to the Board that Green Apartments received approval from Water
Management for permit.

AJOURNMENT

It was moved by Ms. Rufty and seconded by Ms. Benitez to adjourn the meeting.
The meeting adjourned at 6:21p.m.

Administrative Assistant, Westgate CRA

Mai Bui



Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September 14,2020

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Autumn Ridge
1580 & 1610 N. Congress Avenue

PCNs 00-43-43-29-00-000-3160; 3180
Control No. 2001-00054

Official Zoning Map Amendment (RM to CG)
for a106-Unit Multifamily Mixed-Use Development

Location Map

New Request:

The Congress Avenue site currently has split zoning; the smaller northern parcel is zoned Multifamily
Residential (RM) and the larger southern parcel is zoned Commercial General (CG). Residential uses are

Page |1

Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September14, 2020

West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

25

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 =



=

| mr
e

VEATGAEREL DA KONE

PR IR

allowed in commercial zoning districts in the WCRAO to facilitate mixed use, but commercial uses are not
permitted in residential zoning districts due to intensity of use and impact on surrounding residential. The
PBC Zoning Division has determined that a rezoning of the northern parcel of the site is required for site
consistency. The agent had argued that since development in the WCRAQ is governed by the PDRs and
supplementary standards of the Sub-area and the intent of the UG sub-area of the WCRAQ where mixed
use is the preferred development and multifamily and townhouse developments are permitted by right
in non-residential zoning districts where mixed use is permitted, there is no functional need to rezone
other than for technical compliance when the site is combined into one during the platting process. The
County has not yet amended the Comp Plan or the ULDC to accommodate the directive of SB 1339,
recently signed in to law by the Florida Governor, that allows the development of affordable housing on
any parcel of land zoned residential, commercial or industrial.

At their August 10, 2020 regular meeting, the CRA Board recommended approval of a 106-unit-
multifamily seniors-only LITC rental development with an 1,100 sf commercial retail space on a +/- 3.58-
acre site to include:
1. Anallocation of 77 units from the unit pool of WCRAQ Density Bonus Program; and,
2. An allocation of 610 trips per day, 38 am peak hour trips and 50 pm peak hour trip from the
WCRAO Transportation Concurrency Exception Area (TCEA) trips pool.

The Board also recommended DRO Site Plan approval provided the project complies with the
architectural and supplementary standards of Art. 5 and the WCRADO, and demonstrates that the criteria
for obtaining WCRAQ density bonus units has been met pursuant to the following:

1. The minimum frontage requirement for the UG Sub-area of 60% is met (including exceptions for
ULDC required site elements);

2. A public plaza, with a minimum size of 800 sf and 25 feet in width, including but not limited to
public art, fountains, pergolas, clock tower, and public seating areas is provided and is accessible
by the public; and,

3. A minimum of 40% of the projects allowed bonus density is reserved for affordable housing.

The applicant’s hew request seeks Westgate CRA Board recommendation of approval for the following:
1. An Official Zoning Map Amendment of the northern parcel (PCN 00-43-43-29-00-000-3180) from
existing Multifamily Residential (RM) to General Commercial (CG) for site consistency.

Pagel2
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September 14,2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

Y



I!‘ml AR R

nnn

WESTGATEBELVEDERE HOMES!

SRR R e gL

Consistency with Article 2.B.7.A.2 of the ULDC for Official Zoning Map Amendments

1. Consistency with the Plan

The proposed rezening from RM to CG on the northern parcel is intended to hring the entire
subject site into the same zoning district to avoid confusion in the future when the subject site is
platted to become a combined parcel. The proposed CG zoning district is consistent with the
site’s CH/8 Future Land Use designation as stated in Article 3.A.3.B of the ULDC. The proposed
amendment is consistent with the Plan.

Consistency with the ULDC

The proposed rezoning from RM to CG is not in conflict with any portion of the code and is
consistent with the purpose and intent of the Code. The rezoning request results from
discussions with Palm Beach County Zoning staff wherein it was determined the subject
property must have a consistent zoning designation over both parcels, so as to eliminate any
confusion in the future once the property becomes platted together as one parcel. The subject
rezoning to General Commercial {CG) is consistent with the existing CH/8 Future Land Use
designation according to Article 3.A.3.B of the ULDC. Further, according to WCRAO Art.
3.B.14.E.1 of the ULDC, mixed use development may be permitted in commercial districts with
an underlying residential FLU designation, such as the subject property’s underlying High
Density Residential, 8 units per acre. Therefore, the proposed rezoning of the north parcel to CG
does not result in any land use conflicts associated with the proposed mixed use development
for the site.

Compatibility with Surrounding Uses

The proposed rezoning of the northern parcel from RM to CG is compatible with surrounding
uses. Many of the surrounding properties, including those to the south and west of the site, are
zoned CG and have active commercial uses. Since the site is located within the UG sub-district of
the Westgate CRA Overlay, which allows for greater flexibility with mixed land uses and greater
commercial intensity. The purpose of the rezoning of the northern parcel is intended to apply a
consistent zoning designation over the entire site, ultimately concurrent with a companion
application to allow for a mixed use development that includes 106 multifamily residential units
and a retail component on the ground floor. The subject rezoning ailows this type of
development, which is compatible with surrounding land uses.

Pagel3

Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September 14, 2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 » www.westgatecra.org

A5



4. Effect on the Natural Environment

The proposed rezoning from RM to CG on the northern parcel will not result in adverse impacts
on the natural environment. The rezcning does not result in any material change to the
development potential of the site because it lays within the Westgate CRA Overlay which has its
own land use restrictions and property development reguiations. These regulations and
standards set forth in ULDC Article 3.B.14 allow for mixed use developments, such as the one
being proposed on the site, in both the CH and RM zoning districts with CH/8 FLU designations.
The reason for the rezoning request is technical in nature and intended to reduce confusion in
the future once the site’s two parcels are platted as one. Therefore, the subject rezoning does
not result in any impacts to the natural environment.

Development Patterns

The proposed rezoning of the northern parcel from RM to CG will result in a logical, orderly, and
timely development pattern. The subject rezoning is intended to make both parcels of the
subject site consistent in their zoning designations.

Adequate Public Facilities:

The proposed rezoning from RM to CG complies with Art. 2.F Concurrency (Adequate Public
Facilities). The proposed rezoning does not result in any material change to the maximum
development potential of the property, due to its location within the Westgate CRA Overlay, and
the special allowances made within this overlay area. Therefore, the demand for public facilities
has already been factored in for the site and other developable properties, within certain
specified thresholds, within the Westgate CRA Overlay.

Changed Conditions or Circumstances: There are demonstrated changed site conditions or
circumstances provided by the applicant’s Justification Statement that necessitate the
amendment. The proposed rezoning is the result of a concurrent development application for a
mixed-use development consisting of 106 multifamily dwelling units and a retail compeonent on
the ground fioor on the subject property. A rezening will facilitate the mixed use development
and remedy the technical issues that may arise during platting should the site maintain split
zoning.

Pagel4

Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September14, 2020

" 1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

QL



Original August 10, 2020 CRA Board Meeting Staff Report

Project Overview:
The +/-3.58-acre site is located on the east side of Congress Avenue south of Westgate Avenue. The

site consists of 2 contiguous narrow parcels which back onto a drainage lake privately owned by
the Lakeside Mobile Home Park. The site has split zoning: the parcel to the north is zoned
Residential Multifamily medium density (RM) and has a small single family dwelling; the larger
parcel to south is zoned Commercial General {CG) and is vacant. Both parcels have a Commercial
High with an underlying residential future land use designation of 8 du/acre (CH/8). The parcel to
the south was approved in 2002 for a vocational school/non-profit assembly use in Res. #R-2002-
0835, but the project didn't move forward, and all entitlements have expired. The site is located
within the boundaries of the Urban General (UG) Sub-area of the WCRAQ. Directly to the north of
the site is a 7.5-acre vacant assemblage approved for a 198-unit market rate multifamily
development called the Greene Apartments; the project is currently in permitting. To the south is
an established commercial office-warehouse development. The site is in the U/S Tier as well as in
the Revitalization and Redevelopment Infill Overlay (RRIO), Urban Redevelopment Area Overlay
{URAQ), and the CCRT area.

Landmark Companies, the contract purchaser {(dba Autumn Ridge, LLC), is a Miami-based
workforce/affordable housing developer with several multifamily projects in South Florida
including the recently constructed Dunbar Village in West Palm Beach, as well as Westgate Plaza,
an 80-unit seniors affordable housing development built in 2012 on Westgate Avenue. Autumn
Ridge 1s a 106-unit multifamily Low Income Tax Credit {LITC) rental development comprised of 1
and 2 bedroom units in a 5-story building, for a total GFA of 108,989 sf, including a small 1,100 sf
ground floor ancillary commercial retail space; 54 one-bedroom units and 52 two-bedroom units
are proposed. A recreation space, open to the public, is also included as a site amenity. To
streamline entitlements, avoid tripping the development and public hearing approvals thresholds,
and to achieve the desired density, the applicant is requesting 77 WCRAO density bonus units; only
28.6 units are permitted by right. These additional units may be approved by the DRO if the
increase does not exceed 22 dwelling units per acre; this project is requesting an additional density
of 21.6 du/ac.

Page| 5
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September 14, 2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

A



WESTGATERELVEDERE HOY

SR I T b e el

Staff Analysis:

A development application is reviewed by the CRA for general conformity to WCRAOQ sub-area
PDR's, design guidelines, and other overlay standards. Our site plan review and comments are
preliminary, since the Zoning Division and other County departments conduct a separate, more
extensive review of the site plan and related application documents via the DRO or Public Hearing
process. While the primary objective of the CRA’s review is to consider appropriateness of use and
consistency with the intent, goals, and policies of the CRA Redevelopment Plan, Staff must
contemplate projects in the CRA area in a way that facilitates development and redevelopment,
but also with a critical eye that considers the larger picture and how a project will impact the
community over the long term.

Consistency with the WCRA Redevelopment Plan & and the WCRA Overlay

WCRAO property development regulations were established to encourage a pedestrian friendly
environment, street presence, and mixed use developments that reinforce the smart growth
principles of the CRA Redevelopment Plan and the County’s Comprehensive Plan. The UG sub-area
is envisioned as an area that allows for mixed use development with more intense commercial and
residential uses, including multi-story towers where feasible. Mixed use is preferred in the UG sub-
area but it is not required. While it is unlikely this project will be a catalyst project for the
redevelopment of the CRA district, the importance of providing affordable seniors housing in a
moment of national economic uncertainty cannot be understated. Many seniors have been
adversely impacted hy the Covid-19 crisis. By including a retail component, which is proposed be
open to the public, the project becomes more consistent with the intent of the sub-area to provide
mixed use with intense residential development.

Project Demographics

Of the 106 residential units proposed, 80% or 85 units will be restricted to elderly residents, as
defined by the Fair Housing Act, who are age 55 or older. Note, that at least one household
member must meet the age criteria. The remaining 21 residential units will not be restricted to
elderly housing and will be available for rent to persons of any age category, including those who
are seniors.

WCRAO Density Bonus Program (DBP}
The Housing Element of the Camprehensive Plan sets aside 1,300 bonus density units for the
Westgate CRA area. To qualify for WCRAD density bonus units, a number of criteria must be met. A

Page |6
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September14, 2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 ® Woest Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

LS



project in the UG sub-area must meet three (3) of six (6) criteria outlined in the WCRAO's
standards. Based primarily on site design, the applicant has chosen to comply with the following
criteria;
1. Minimum frontage requirements based on WCRAQO sub-area PDR’s. 60% building
frontage is required in the UG;
2. ..a public plaza, with a minimum size of 800 sf and 25 feet in width, including but not
limited to public art, fountains, pergolas, clock tower, and public seating areas; and,
3. A minimum of 40% of the projects allowed density is reserved for affordable housing.
In addition, the WCRAQ conditions the distribution and lifespan of affordable units
through its Affordability Standards:

i. All units required to be affordable shall be designed with a compatible exterior as
other units within the development, and may be clustered or dispersed
throughout the project;

ii. Affordable units shall be offered for sale or rent to very low thru middle income
households based on the County’s AM! for any given year;

iii. Prior to DRO approval the applicant shall record a Covenant binding the entire
project which identifies each required affordable unit. These units are to be sold
or rented to only very-low thru middle income households for a minimum
number of years. The Covenant shall provide for monitoring or compliance
requirements based on the County’s WFH program. The applicant has included a
draft Covenant with this application. The applicant is required to record the
covenant prior to final DRO approval.

To achieve the 106 units needed for this project, 77 units from the CRA’s density bonus pool are
requested to be allocated. The 3.58-acre site has a permitted density of only 8 dwelling units per
acre which is 29 units by right. Additional density from the CRA’s bonus pool increases the density
per acre to 29.6 units. Of those 77 units allocated from the bonus pool, 40% or 31 units must be set
aside as affordable. This project targets low to _extremely-low income households, well exceeding
the affordability requirements of the WCRAO DBP.

The Westgate CRA area has a very large concentration of households which are low and very low
income, Only 20% of households earn an income that can be classified as moderate or above
moderate. Affordable or low-income housing targets an AMI of 50%-80%: very-low is 60% or below
of AMI. This LITC project proposes 72 of 106 units to be very-low at 60% of AMI or less; 16 units are

Pagel|?
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September14.2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 » www.westgatecra.org

A4



proposed to be extremely-low at 0-30%. 12 units are proposed to be low at 60-80% of AMI, with 7
units in the moderate or middle income category. Qverall, 90% of the total project units are
proposed to be low, very-low or extremely-low, with only 10% of the units above 80% of AMI.

PBC Workforce Housing Program (WHP) Requirement

Workforce housing targets households earning 60% - 140% of the County’s published AMI (average
median income) for any given year. The workforce sector has been chronically overlooked in the
past and as a result the County has adopted a mandatory inclusionary zoning policy that requires
that a certain number of units in any medium to large scale residential project be set aside and
offered for rent or sale to households that meet the workforce housing criteria. Since the applicant
will utilize the maximum of 8 units per acre density allowed by the site’s CH/8 FLU designation,
residential projects exceeding 10 units must reserve a percentage of the maximum density for
workforce housing. For this project, 3 units for workforce housing are required to be reserved
pursuant to the Art. 5 of the ULDC in addition to the 40% units that must be affordable to receive
additional density from the WCRAO DBP. Those 3 restricted WHP units are proposed to be in the
moderate to middle income categories of 80-140% of AMI.

WCRAO Property Development Regulations & Landscaping Provisions

Individually, the parcels have a relatively small frontage, however combined the frontage of the site
is 259 linear feet. The UG has a 60% building frontage requirement and the frontage must be on
the build to line of 10-25 ft. The applicant has utilized a WCRAQ minimum building frontage
exception which allows the frontage to be reduced for required site elements such as setbacks,
access, sidewalks, and buffer widths. Based on the preliminary site plan, the minimum requirement
is met in compliance with the recommendation criteria for WCRAQ density bonus units. Generally,
despite an expanded setback from the R-O-W to accommodate a 120 ft. future R-O-W width
dedication, the frontage provides good massing and street presence. The 1,100 sf retail space is
located along the street; @ minimum depth of 30 ft. is required in the UG. The maximum building
height in the UG is 240 ft. or 20 stories; the building complies at 5 stories in height.

Although the site has an area of 3.58 acres, huildable land is minimized due to the poor soil quality
near the private retention lake at the rear or west of the site. Some fill has been added to the site
by the current owner to reduce ‘muck’ to preserve land value. However, this conditicn, along with
WCRAO build to line requirements, necessitates the entire site design to be shifted west towards
Congress Avenue. A build to line of 10 ft. to 25 ft. is required in the UG and a 25 ft. building setback

Page|8
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September 14,2020

1280 N, Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

>0



has been provided. Side (min. 10 ft.) and rear {min. 25 ft.) setbacks are provided to code standards.
The WCRAO stipulates that the primary entrance orientation be from the street. Access to the
leasing office and the retail space are frem Congress Ave. A secondary access has been provided at
the rear of the building to access the lobby and elevators.

Preliminary ground level floor plan
(snapshot of entrances, common
areas and retail space)

o)
-

=l

i )

|'
A landscape plan has not been provided, but is required must at buiiding permit. The north parcel
of the site has many invasive plant species that will be cleared out for construction. R-O-W and
incompatibility buffer widths are indicated on the site plan and do comply with code. WCRAO
landscape deviations for the UG Sub-area allow for a reduced perimeter buffer for mixed use
projects, but that reduction has not been provided. R-O-W planting reductions area also applicable
in the UG Sub-area. Foundation plantings may also be reduced for projects where a build to line is
required pursuant to approval of an ALP by the DRO. Further relief from the landscape

requirements of Art. 7 may be allowed subject to a Type 2 Waiver process pursuant to
Art.3.B.14.H.2.

Pagel9

Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September 14, 2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

|



The applicant utilized a WCRAO provision to reduce the recreational open space required by the
Parks and Recreation Department; 0.32 of an acre is provided immediately to the rear, extending to
the south side of the building and will include landscaping, pathways, and a gazebo for use by
residents. This area is proposed to be enclosed by a fence for security. A 7,788 sf publicly accessible
open space is provided adjacent to this area and is proposed i¢ include a covered seating area and
landscaping. The public open space must be incorporated into the site design as reguired by the
WCRAO to receive WCRA approval for the density bonus units.

|

Conceptual rendering of west or street-facing (Congress Ave) facade

Architecture & Design

The applicant has provided conceptual architectural elevations and floor plans for the building
design. WCRAO regulations require a porch or balcony for all units on each floor of a multi-family
development._The developer, in seeking to comply with the standard, has provided “Juliet”
balconies on each unit. This type of faux balcony provides the visual appearance of a balcony,
without the necessary extension to allow it to function as a true balcony. WCRAO Supplementary

Pagel10

Westgate CRA Board Meeting
Septemberi4, 2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

S



Standards require a minimum 3 ft. depth for balconies in the NR, NRM, NC and NG, but is silent in
applicability in the UG Sub-area. Architectural guidelines in Art. 5.C.1.H.2.b requiring “individual
balconies and/or patios to be provided for a minimum of 20% of the total number of units per
building” will likely apply once the project is submitted for architectural review.

As a mixed use project, compliance with the standards of Art. 5, as well as WCRAO architectural
and supplementary standards will be required. The architecture incorporates a modern aesthetic
with recesses and projections in contrasting colors for architectural interest. The main building
color is white with gray accents. A clean, neutral color schematic is increasingly popular in newer
south Florida architecture. The proposed design is complementary to the architecture of the
Greene Apartments to the north.

Parking

Building placement is shifted to the site’s frontage and required parking is located to the rear of the
building. WCRA overlay regulations provide a substantial reduction from residential and mixed use
parking requirements. Article 6 requires two {2) parking spaces per unit {one bedroom or more),
plus 1 space per 4 guests for multi-family developments. WCRAO parking deviations for residential
projects (Table 3.B.14.1.) allow the required number of parking spaces 1o be reduced to 164
including guest spaces; 171 spaces have been provided, over-parking the site by 7 spaces. Bike rack
parking areas have been provided and ADA compliant spaces have been provided directly adjacent
to the building.

Drainage Considerations

Like the vacant parcels to the north of this site, development interest in this segment of Congress
Avenue has fluctuated over time. Due to some unique physical challenges, many developers have
become discouraged as due diligence progresses. While the larger of the two parcels have been
mostly cleared, the north parcel is heavily vegetated and both parcels are historically prone to
water collection at the rear as it slopes toward the retention area. Drainage is problematic since
storm water cannot be directed to the privately owned retention lake, and for a large scale
development project, it is difficult to design a project to sufficiently store stormwater on site. Most
importantly, since Westgate is within the C-51 drainage basin, compensating floodplain storage is
also required by South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD). This means that to mitigate
the impact of lost site permeability as a result of development, permeable vacant land for the
storage of storm water must he permanently secured and dedicated for that singular purpose.

Page |1
Westgate CRA BEoard Meeting
September 14,2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 » 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

2%



1] ARA
} ]7"] npn

WESTGATEBELVEDERE HOMES

SR VRPN

in the case of a development that covers a 3.58-acre site, the compensating storage requirement is
significant. The applicant is utilizing all available land to allow the site to function with the number
of units necessary to meet their pro forma. To ensure a successful outcome, the project will require
additional land as retention to guarantee off site compensating floodplain storage requirements
can be met. A drainage statement has been included with the application and indicates that legal
positive outfall to the L-2 canal is available by way of the Congress Avenue drainage system.
Compensation for flood storage can be accommeodated on additional properties. Storm water
management through the use of exfiltration piping will be used to meet retention requirements.

Traffic & Vehicular Access

A traffic statement requests an allocation of 610 trips per day to and from one access driveway; 38
am peak hour trips and 50 pm peak hour trips, from the WCRA’s Traffic Concurrency Exception
Area (TCEA) pool. The statement also indicates that project build-out is anticipated in 2023. It
should be noted that the applicant may have to provide a mass transit easement on Congress
Avenue should it be required by Palm Tran. Future cross access between sites is a requirement of
the URAQ and may be applicable to this project.

Staff Recommendation:

CRA Staff recommends approval of an Official Zoning Map Amendment of the northern parce! (PCN 00-
43-43-29-00-000-3180) from existing Multifamily Residential (RM) to General Commercial {CG) for site
consistency.

Page 12
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September 14, 2020

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

s



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION FORM # 01

Palm Beach County Zoning Division
2300 N, Jog

Read

West Palm Beach, Florida 33411
Phone: (561) 233-5200

FAX: (561) 233-5165

| e e T T {  REQUEST
v CHECK TYPE OF APPLICATION:
| PUBLIC HEARING PROCESSES: ] ] :
[x] To allow an Official Zoning Map Amendment from RM Zoning District to ©G Zoning District
[OJ Witha Concurrent Land Use Amendment from Land Use to Land Use
[0 To allow a Class A Conditional Use (CA} fora
[0 Toallow a Class B Conditional Use (CB) for a
O To allow a Development Crder Abandonment of Resolution No: which allowed
L Toallowa Development Order Amendment to a previously approved:
O coz [JPOD [] ClassA [] ClassB O
[T to modify andfor delete Conditions of Approval O to add and/or delete land area
[ to reconfigure the [ master [] Site (] Subdivision [ to add and/or delete units
[J Landscape [J Regulating Plans [] Sign [1 toadd, delete, or modify uses

[0 toadd and/or delete square footage [0 toadd access points

O torestart the commencement clock

O to
[0 To allow a Type 2 Variance: (Submit Form #43 Variance Supplemental) [ Concurrent [ standalone
£ To allow a Subdivision Variance: (Submit Form #43 Variance Supplementall) [ Concurrent [ Standalone
E] To allow a PO Deviations (Submit Form #92 PO Deviation) from Article(s)
O To allow a Type 2 Walver: (Submit Form #19 Waiver Supplemental) O concurrent [ standalone
O To altow a Unique Structure in the Zoning District
O other

EDRO ADMINISTRATIVE PROCESSES: S :

O

To allow an Expedited Development Review Officer approval (DROE) (within 2 months of BCC/ZC approval)
To allow a Use subject to Development Review Officer (DRO) approval for a

To allow a Type 2 Concurrent Review {Zoning and Land Development}

To allow a Type 2 Goncurrent Review (Zoning and Building)

Ta allow a Type 3 Concurrent Review (Zoning, Land Development and Building)
[0 subdivision with Required Improvement 1 subdivision without Required Improvement
O Projects that do not require platiing

To allow an Administrative Modification of a Plan approved by the ZC / BCC / DRO for

ooo o

To allow a Subdivision

To allow a Transfer of Development Rights {(Submit Form #16 TDR Supplemental):
To allow a Type 1 Waiver (Submit Form#19 Waiver Supplemental) from Article for,

O 0O o O

To allow an Administrative Abandonment of

. Other

General Application — Public Hearing and DRO Administrative Processes Revised 01/31/2018

Page 1of 4 2 6’ Web Format 2015



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION

FORM # 01

2. PROPERTY INFORMATION (* Required Fields)

*Location of subject property:
(proximity to closest major intersection/ road)

B e o et | 00-43-43-29-00-000-3180
B. *Control Number: N/A

C. *Control Name : N/A

D. Application Number: TBD

E. Application Name: Autumn Ridge Rezoning
F. -ProjeciNumber: TBD

G. *Gross Acreage: 1.23

H. Gross Acreage of alfected area: N/A

.

E, side of N, Congress Ave, approx. 781" north of interseclion of Cherry Rd. & N. Caongress Ave.

J. *Address: 1610 N Congress Avenue
K. Subdivision Name: N/A

L. Plat Name and Number: N/A

M. *BCC District: 2

3. APPLICANT INFORMATICON

Current Property Owner(s) Name: Vythiya Tum & Thida Tum Revocable Trust

Address: 6 Sunningdale Circle Clty: West Palm Beach State: FL- Zip: 33401
Phone: Please contact agent EAX: N/A

Cell Phone: N/A Emall: Please contact agent

Applicant’s Name (if other than property owner(s) : Autumn Ridge, LLC

Address: 3050 Biscayne Boulevard, Suite 300 City: Miami State: F- Zip: 33137
Phone: Please contact agent EFAX: NA

Cell Phone: N/A Email: Please contact agent

Check ( }bhere if Applicant is a contract purchaser, Cansent is required from the cantract purchaser if a contraet is pending to
purchase the subject properly. Home Owners Association {HOA) or Property Owners Association (P OA) consent wil
be required if subject propery is under common ownership or request is 1o medify any aspect of the project which applies to the
entire development (i.e. condition of approval, internal roadway, etc.).

Agent:* Josh Nichols, LEED Name of Firm: Schmidt Nichols

Address: 1551 N Flagler Drive City: West Palm Beach State: FL Zip: 33401
Phone: 261.684.6141 EaX: N/A

Cell Phone: N/A Email: jnichols@snlandplan.com

Agent:* Name of Firm:

Address: City: State: Zip:
Phone: FAX:

Cell Phone: Email:

* All correspondence will be sent to the Agent(s) unless otherwise specified.

4. ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW

This application is subject to the reguirements of Article 5.C, Design Standards and request review of the proposed
elevations concurrent with:

O Type 1 Projects Requiring BCC Approval

[ Type 2 Projects Requiring ZC Approval

[0 Type 3 Projects Requiring DRO or Site Plan Approval

Type 4 Projects Requiring Building Permit Approval

[0 Revise previously approved elevations

[0 Non-conforming structures that are subject 1o Article 5.C, Percentage of renovations

O Approval for a Green Architecture (Type 1 Waiver, Art5.C.1.E.3}
[ Approval for Unigue Structure, Art.5.C.1.E.2
Note: All application documents shall be consistent with the current Technical Manual, refer to the Zoning Web Page.

Revised 01/31/2018
Web Formal 2015

General Application ~ Public Hearing and DRO Administrative Processes

Page 2 of 4



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION FORM # 01

5. ZONING AND FUTURE LAND USE

Current Zoning District; RM Proposed Zoning District: | RM
Current Future Land Use: |CH/8 Proposed Future Land Use: |CH/8
Tier: X WS O REX [OAGR [J GLADES Overlay {Special Study Area): |[WCRAD

6. USE / DENSITY / INTENSITY
Existing Use: Single Family Residential Proposed Use: Mutlifamily residential
Existing Square Footage: | 2,460 s.f. Proposed Square Footage: |108,989
Existing Number of Units: Proposed Number of Units: [106

-

7. ADJACENT PROPERTIES

Identify surrounding Future Land Use and Zening District. Include existing/approved square footage or number of dwelling
units, type of units and density.

NorTH CH®8 RM Vacant et [2016-00052|  N/A
souTH CHB CG Vacant Vacant N/A N/A
EAST HR-8 RM Rssidential_lk;lir\]neasnufactured N/A N/A N/A
WEST CH/8 CG Office/Warehouse/Retail | Office/Retail/Warehouse 1997-0003| 1997-0524

8. ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS

The site is generally cleared and disturbed lands with some native trees as
identified on a tree survey that will be mitigated according to PBC standards.

General Vegetation Statement:

Current Grade/Elevation: Approx. 13' NAVD

Proposed Grade/Elevations: Approx. 13' NAVD

Yes [1 No If yes; submit Approval fo Protect Native Vegetation
Application to ERM. Application available from the ERM Permit Center-PZB

O Yes No If yes; submit Wellfield Protection Affidavit available from

Is removal of vegetation required?

Is site in a Wellfield protection zone?

PZB-ERM.
Is removal or relocation of treeg[x] Yes [] No |f yes; submit a Tree Survey, Analysis and Justification, also
required? submit a Site Plan with the Tree Survey overlaid for approval by PZB - ERM

Health Department: In Justification Statement, under heading “Hazardous Material”, address type and amount of:
1)all industrial, manufacturing, special or hazardous waste that may be generated; 2) airborne pollutants that may be
generaled (i.e. dust or other unconfined particulates such as NOx, 80x, CO, VOC’s, heavy metals, elc.); and, 3) any
special handling of solid waste that may be required.

9. COMPLIANCE

Is property in compliance with ali previous conditions of approval and applicable Code
YEs M nNo ] Requirements? I no, please explain in the Justification Statement

Is the property currently the subject of Code Enforcement action? If yes, provide Code

YES [ NO[M Enforcament Case Number:

Will the request require modification to a recorded plat or plat with Technical Compliance? If yes,
YES O NO explain in the Justification Statement

Is the subject property an existing legal kot of record? If no, submit Legal Lot Review application

vEs @ No[J to the Zoning Division

- Do proposed improvements exceed 35% of the improved value of existing structure? li yes,
YES No (1 comply with Article 1.F - Nonconformities

[ e e e ey

 10. CONCURRENT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL INFORMATION

LD Drainage Review #: N/A Plat Name / No: /A

R/W Construction #: N/A BUILDING Permit #: N/A
General Applicatlion - Public Hearing and DRO Adminisirative Processes Revised 01/31/2018
Page 30f 4 Web Formal 2015

2T



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION FORM # 01

11. PROPOSED USE DETAILS

Bullding Name Use NulT:i?sr of :2:15: Outparcel
1 g";s'}'c‘;:m'ayl N/A 108 N/A N/A
12. CONCURRENCY
Concurrency Reservation [ Concurrency Equivalency [] Concurrency Exemption []
A. Concurrency Case Number: [N/A
B. Water Provider: PBC
C. Waste Water Provider: PBC
D. Drainage District: LWDD
E. Tratfic: PBC Traffic Trips Existing: N/A
F. Mass Transit: PBC Palm Tran Traffic Trips Proposed: | 687

Number of Gross Peak Hour Trips:

@. Traftic Capacity: (i greater than 30; a traffic study will be required) 50

H. Public Scheol: PBC

l. Land Development: PBC

J. Public Health Provider: PBC Well /Septic tank : N/A

K. Parks PBC

L. Fire Rescue PBC

M. Solid Waste: PBC

N, Check the proposed means of achieving access from the development site to a point of legal positive

outfall for storm water discharged from the site:

[J Property is contiguous to a natural waterway, or a canal owned and operated by a water control district,

[J Property owner has legally established drainage rights 1o convey storm water through all imtervening properties
between the development site and natural waterway or water control district canal.

[} Property abuts a road with a functioning drainage system, and property owner has obtained written
confirmation from the entity responsible for maintaining the road that the proposed development is eligible to
utilize the road drainage system, subject to meeting all permit requirements for drainage connection.

[ Other (specity):

1. Justification Statement: to address the purpose, project history, intent and design objectives
of this request, refer to Art.2.A.6.A.1 for the required information.
2. Status of Conditions of Approval (COA):
a. Provide a letter, which includes the status of all current Conditions of Approval.
b. Include the exact language of any modification(s) to any condition{s). ,
c. [f the application request requires a time extension for commencement of development or
recording a plat, then provide further explanation. (The explanation may be added to the
Justification Statement.)

Naote: Please refer to PZB Zoning Website http://discover.pbegov.org/pzb/zoning/ULDC/Articles.aspx
for all ULDC Articles referenced in this document and for helpful information in the Technical Manual.

Genera! Applicalion — Public Hearing and DRO Administrative Processes Revised 01/31/2018

Page 4 of 4 % 5 Web Format 2015



SCHMIDT
NICHOLS

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
AND URBAN PLANNING

Justification Statement
Autumn Ridge Apartments
Westgate CRA
Rezoning Application
Original Submittal:

Project History

Schmidt Nichols (Agent), on behalf of S&M Services lll, LLC and Vythia Tum & Thida
Tum Revocable Trust (Owners) and Autumn Ridge, LLC (Applicant), respectfully
requests your consideration of this application to rezone the subject property from
Multifamily Residential (RM) to General Commercial (CG). The subject property
consists of two parcels, totaling 3.58 acres located at 1610 N Congress Avenue (PCNs:
00-43-43-29-00-000-3180; 00-43-43-29-00-000-3160). The property currently has a
single family home on the northern parcel and the southern parcel is currently vacant
and mostly cleared. The southern parcel (lot 3160) was previously approved for a
vocational school/non-profit assembly use for Carpenter's Union Local 130 in
Resolution No. R-2002-0835, dated May 23, 2002. This development was never
constructed and all associated entitiements have since expired. The northern parcel (lot
3180) has not been part of a land use application of any kind.

The subject property is located within the Urban/Suburban Tier and currently supports a
Future Land Use (FLU) designation of Commercial High, with underlying High Density
Residential, 8 units per acre (CH/8). The subject property is also located within two
zoning districts, the north parcel being located in the Multifamily Residential (RM) district
and the south parcel being located within the General Commercial (CG) zoning district.
However, the subject property is also located within the Westgate Community
Redevelopment Area Overlay, more specifically the Urban General (UG) sub-area. This
overlay allows for mixed use development on this site which is consistent with its split
zoning designation, hence the proposed mixed use development.

Project Overview

The proposed project will include 108,989 s.f. of leasable area, 1,100 s.f, of which will
be devoted to commercial uses. Additionally, 0.36 acres of recreational space (10% of
total site area) is proposed for the use by residents which will include amenities such as
a pool deck. The retail space is proposed to be located at the northwest corner of the
building, facing N. Congress Avenue, with pedestrian connections to the right-of-way.
Drainage for the project is proposed to be achieved through legal positive outfall to the
L-2 canal via the Congress Avenue drainage system. The proposed development will
add to the newly budding collection of multifamily residential developments with rates
affordable to a wide range of income levels. Furthermore, the immediate vicinity of the
site consists of many vacant parcels, some of which contain invasive plant species. The
proposed development will result in a significant improvement to the N. Congress
Avenue corridor in the Westgate Redevelopment Overlay.

21



SCHMIDT
NICHOLS

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
AND URBAN PLANNING

To achieve the entitlements to this development, the Applicant must rezone the northern
parcel to General Commercial to form a consistent zoning designation over the subject
site, once platted. Moreover, the proposed CG zoning still allows for mixed use
development such as the subject proposal due to the site's location within the UG sub-
district of the Westgate CRA Overlay.

Below is a summary of the surrounding propetrties:

| zoning . uses -
Mixed Use (Multifamily Residential &
CG ;
Commercial)
RM Vacant (198 Multifamily Uses Approved)
CG Office/Warehouse
RM Lake/Residential Manufactured Homes
CG Office/Warehouse/Retall

The following items pertain to the development proposed on the subject property:

Parking

Since the subject project is proposed to consist of a mix of residential and
commercial uses, the applicant proposes to utilize the reduced parking
requirements outlined in Table 3.B.14.] - WCRAQ Mixed Use and Residential
Parking Deviations. Based on this table, the parking is calculated below:

1 space / 1 bedroom unit @ 54 units = 54 spaces
1.5 spaces / 2 bedroom unit @ 52 units = 78 spaces
1 guest space / 4 units @ 106 units = 27 spaces

2.5 spaces / 1,000 s.f. commercial uses @ 1,100 s.f. = 5 spaces

LD



SCHMIDT
NICHOLS

2y LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
S AND URBAN PLANNING

Total parking requirement: 164 spaces

The applicant proposes 174 parking spaces which is in compliance with the
minimum requirement.

Workforce Housing

The Applicant is proposing to utilize the maximum 8 units per acre density
allowed by the site’s HR-8 underlying FLU designation. As such, according fo
Table 5.G.1.B, Workforce Housing Program of the ULDC, residential projects
exceeding 10 units must reserve 5% of the standard density units and 16% of the
additional units up to the maximum density for workforce housing. The subject
property is permitted to have 29 units based on standard density. Therefore, in
this case, the Applicant is required to reserve 3 units for Palm Beach County’s
workforce housing program based on a maximum density of 8 units per acre.

Additionally, the Applicant is required to reserve 40% of the requested WCRAO
Density Bonus Pool units for workforce housing. In this case, the Applicant is
requesting a density bonus of 77 units, resulting in 31 units being reserved for
workforce housing. In total, the Applicant is proposing to reserve 34 out of the
106 total proposed units for workforce housing.

Recreation

The proposed project is required by the ULDC to provide recreation space for
residents. The WCRAOQ has a specific formula for calculating the required size of
this recreation space which is equivalent to 1.25 acres of developed land per 1,000
people population, based on 2.39 people per proposed unit. The Applicant is
proposing 106 units which, when multiplied times 2.39, equals 254 people. Given
this population, the Applicant is required to provide 0.32 acres of recreation space.
The Applicant is proposing 0.36 acres of recreational space which includes a public
outdoor amenity.

Réguests
Below is a detailed overview of the Applicant’s requests as part of this application:

Request 1: Rezoning Request for the northern parcel from existing Multifamily
Residential (RM) to General Commercial (CG).

The subject site includes two parcels, each with the same Commercial High with
underlying High Density Residential, 8 units per acre Future L.and Use
designation. However, each parcel has a different zoning designation, the south
parcel with General Commercial (CG) and the north parcel with Multifamily
Residential (RM). Based on discussions with Palm Beach County Zoning staff,
the subject site must have a consistent zoning over both parcels, although each

4



SCHMIDT
NICHOLS

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
A AND URBAN PLANNING

of the existing zoning designations currently allow for the proposed mixed use
development as it is located within the Westgate CRA Overlay.

The following are the specific standards required to be met by Article 2.B.7.A.2 of
the ULDC for all rezoning applications:

a. Consistency with the Plan: The proposed amendment is consistent with
the Plan.

Response: The proposed rezoning from RM to CG on the northernmost
parcel is intended to bring the entire subject site into the same zoning
district to avoid confusion in the future when the subject site is platted to
become a combined parcel. The proposed CG zoning district is consistent
with the site's CH/8 Future Land Use designation as stated in Article
3.A.3.B of the ULDC. Furthermore, Sub-Objective 1.2.3 of the Future
Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan states: “the special land
use provisions for the [Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community
Redevelopment Area] Overlay are designed to arrest deterioration of
property values, and preserve affordable housing and complement the
efforts to prepare and implement a community redevelopment plan for the
Westgate area.” The proposed rezoning will allow for the subject site to be
platted as one parcel, therefore allowing for the proposed development
that is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Westgate Community
Redevelopment Area Overlay.

b. Consistency with the Code: The proposed amendment is not in conflict
with any portion of this Code, and is consistent with the stated purpose
and intent of this Code.

Response: The proposed rezoning from RM to CG is not in conflict with
any portion of this code and is consistent with the stated purpose and
intent of this Code. The subject rezoning request results from discussions
with Palm Beach County Zoning staff wherein it was determined the
subject property must have a consistent zoning designation over both
parcels, so as to eliminate any confusion in the future once the property
becomes platted together as one parcel. The subject rezoning to General
Commercial (CG) is consistent with the existing CH/8 Future Land Use
designation according to Article 3.A.3.B of the ULDC. Also, according to
Article 3.B.14.E.1 of the ULDC, mixed use development, such as what is
proposed, may be permitted in commercial districts with underlying
residential FLU designation, such as the subject property’'s underlying
High Density Residential, 8 units per acre. Therefore, the proposed
rezoning of the north parcel to CG does not result in any fand use conflicts
associated with the proposed mixed use development for the site.

4



SCHMIDT
NICHOLS

0, LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
2 AND URBAN PLANNING

c. Compatibility with Surrounding Uses: The proposed amendment is
compatlible, and generally consistent with existing uses and surrounding
zoning districts, and is the appropriate zoning district for the parcel of land.
in making this finding, the BCC may apply an alternative zoning district.

Response: The proposed rezoning of the northern parcel from RM to CG
is compatible with surrounding uses. Many of the surrounding properties,
including those to the south and west of the site, are currently part of the
CG zoning district and have active commercial uses. Furthermore, the
subject site is located within the UG sub-district of the Westgate CRA
Overlay, which allows for greater flexibility with regard to mixed land uses.
In the case of the subject property, the purpose of the rezoning of the
northern parcel is intended to apply a consistent zoning designation over
the entire site, ultimately concurrent with a companion application to allow
for a mixed use development that includes 106 multifamily residential units
and a retail component on the ground floor. The subject rezoning allows
this type of development, which is compatible with surrounding land uses.

d. Effect on the Natural Environment: The proposed amendment will not
result in significantly adverse impacts on the natural environment,
including but not limited to water, air, stormwater management, wildlife,
vegetation, wetlands, and the natural functioning of the environment.

Response: The proposed rezoning from RM to CG on the northern parcel
will not result in adverse impacts on the natural environment. The subject
rezoning does not resuit in any material change to the development
potential of the site because it lay within the Westgate CRA Overlay which
has its own land use restrictions and property development regulations.
These regulations and standards set forth in ULDC Article 3.B.14 allow for
mixed use developments, such as the one being proposed on the site, in
both the CH and RM zoning districts with CH/8 FLU designations. The
reason for the rezoning request is technical in nature and intended to
reduce confusion in the future once the site’s two parcels are platted as
one. Therefore, the subject rezoning does not result in any impacts to the
natural environment.

e. Development Patterns: The proposed amendment will result in a logical,
orderly, and timely development pattern.

Response: The proposed rezoning of the northern parcel from RM to CG
will result in a logical, orderly, and timely development pattern. The subject
rezoning is intended to make both parcels of the subject site consistent in
their zoning designations. The southern parcel currently has a CG zoning.

42



SCHMIDT
NICHOLS

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
AND URBAN PLANNING

The subject rezoning is technical in nature and does not result in any
material change to the development potential of the site as both the CG
and the RM zoning districts allow for mixed use developments within the
Westgate CRA Overlay. Therefore, the proposed rezoning allows for the
same logical, orderly, and timely development pattern as what currently
exists on the site.

Adequate Public Facilities: The proposed amendment complies with Art.
2.F, Concurrency (Adequate Public Facility Standards).

Response: The proposed rezoning from RM to CG complies with Art. 2.F
Concurrency (Adequate Public Facilities). The proposed rezoning does
not result in any material change to the maximum development potential
of the property, due to its location within the Westgate CRA Overlay, and
the special allowances made within this overlay area. Therefore, the
demand for public facilities has already been factored in for the site and
other developable properties, within certain specified thresholds, within the
Westigate CRA Overlay. Ultimately, the proposed rezoning on the north
parcel is simply for technical purposes to reduce confusion in the future,
by applying a consistent zoning designation over the entire subject site
when it is eventually combined into one parcel.

. Changed Conditions or Circumstances: There are demonstrated
changed site conditions or circumstances provided by the Applicant’s
Justification Statement that necessitate the amendment.

Response: The proposed rezoning comes as the result of a concurrent
development application for a mixed use development consisting of 106
multifamily dwelling units and a retail component on the ground floor on
the subject property. This development proposal comes after another, 198
dwelling unit multifamily development was approved on the 5 parcels
immediately adjacent to the north of the subject site. The subject site
consists of two parcels, the northern of which is within the RM zoning
district while the southern parcel lay within the CG zoning district, both
with a CH/8 FLU designation. Based on discussions with Palm Beach
County Zoning staff, it was determined the site will need to be platted once
the proposed development is approved in grder to combine the two
parcels. As such, staff is requiring that both sites have a consistent zoning
district applied to them to reduce confusion in the future once the parcels
are combined into one. Therefore, based on these circumstances, the
Applicant requests the subject rezoning of the northern parcel from RM to
CG.

i



SCHMIDT
NICHOLS

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
5 AND URBAN PLANNING

On behalf of the Applicant, and the Owners, Schmidt Nichols respectfully requests your

consideration of approval for this Bonus Density, and Traffic Concurrency Exemption
Request application for Autumn Ridge.

%s



dSd

uejd

AS
Aeuiwijsid l

«0-0€ = 9[eag
S o2 &5 o

— dWV.1S SNINOZ dJWVLS LNIFWANIWY
SNOISSINENS / SNOISI3H
) ]
Bt —— L [ A [ = [ o e[ = [ o= [ [ [ =
" -
. FiEL T Ly iy ™ N ™ . - Ll
R L | = (=T =T= = T=TT==
P A | = | | i {m ri | o |
ey Ay ulisag A = o mw . - T
JD.0E=.T S T o RENTATRANTA IR LM TN
ozThesg e T A
O
[ i
ey
e —
st 1= e |
© “ien ¢ rvdn v | v Sharidirm
waawly 1w s

11090 08 priasett 1) < gy ieiew

o V i
o =
3 - — erorei
e e
o — " ol ] |eRIRunLGS faspy _ I
% n R — iy g el 99 iBuaz _\
I T U0 BIUL 1 G4 JUNE SUHHD V1A
5 w - T irerare] _ Auapedwosuy | eddy, oL . _
n i o Ve Pt e T o | o ./u. 00000 MSEEpEGN
O u T T, Loweed s P Fpmy | e |3
o l:amau T T T e = e — = = = __ T
; == | T U TR T LT T = T L
= A e e _ . T + Il =
- — —H‘t...s.i..._i.z-tu.- e i - o * ! { _
s Py
. O e e | | ] * 4
e G| —
=, 6 (i) S T e | —_ TEORL emnpnas @ | vA
o 5 G i s Ly beuy i - Redbrag  epedg Stand _
S < C— = L I e i N
T T ] ! e
- == | I= e H i N
T | — ]
Wivd SvWiEYLaUs | I k- L — Tk s R T |_ _ “ L gh] saurn
@ w0 10, Bt Z [ whig s op
rnuepserasnd | L _ tonepined 3 _ I§g |
wad | o I |
SHH 14 o m o=z
o ha
il |l o4 — T l|Esl | | !
= L%, e _ |
g | =" — I 58
Lo _ 2 T BT T e
e o en | o BHHHD 1y
IeRuepsey ¥ m i
ORINKYID NVEHN ARV | Teoms || / o3 !
THUILHINY FAYISTNY] — i s , 25| !
» B z ﬁr[r /_/ !
M 2 N
WI—O—I—U_Z =1 M :.al,pml...J | ¢M ubig
.._.. Q _ E _I— U W %%u & “l _n h | d t / ™~ awnuoy pasedosy
£ et B e » : 3 1] / Jeyng edeaspue
g - . /z//fs.o.m 0z
- o
=1 /,_n_ - [ " \ 0009 3,565,005 JERH Ny /+/ .
o Aapedwoot] | adAy , oy Aypapedwoau) | addy , o1 "dAy apeag) o ﬂ..azw\ u2Wasez Ayin 0L
Crnrer s Gl Spise sos 0k 2] Bunuelg " ™ //.
X — w._nm ::mc_cew uonepuno g aup] Guppng eseg
dYWNOLLYDC . o ™52 207 01 oy




Westgate CRA Board Meeting
Septemberi4,2020

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW

MUSEQ VAULT
(formerly Westgate Commerce Park)

4200 Westgate Avenue
Control No. 2003-036

Development Order Abandonment &
Class B Conditional Use Approvals for a Limited Access & a Multi-Access
Self-Storage Facility

Location Map

Page |1
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September14.2020
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215~  West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 -~ 561.640.8181 ~ westgatecra.org

L



Project Overview:
The subject +/- 1.43-acre parcel is located at 4200 Westgate Avenue., approx. % mile from N. Military

Trail. The property is within the Urban Highway (UH) sub-area of the WCRAD and zoned CG (commercial
general). The Future Land Use designation is CH/8 {commercial high with an underlying residential land
use of 8 du per acre). The site is in the U/S Tier, RRIO (Revitalization, Redevelopment & Infill Qverlay), as
well as in the URAO (Urban Redevelopment Area Overlay}, and in a CCRT area. A wet retention pond,
privately owned by Cross County Mall and zoned CG/SE with a CHX/8 FLU is adjacent to the property to
the south; Westgate Piaza, a multifamily seniors affordable housing development, zoned RM with a
HR/18 FLU, is to the east; Cross County Commerce Center office/warehouse, zoned CG/SE with a CH/8
FLU is across Westgate Avenue at Dennell Rd to the north; and, the Palm Beach County School District
Adult Education Facility, nearing construction completion, is located to the west of the site. The parcel is
currently vacant.

Museo Vault LOCATIONS STORAGE SERVICES VIEWINGROOM ABOUT BLOG CONTACT

FINE ART STORAGE AND RELATED SERVICES

FINE ART STORAGE ART SERVICES OUR VIEWING ROOM
State of the Art Security Transport & Installation Lighting
Cat 5 Hurricane Rated Museum Quality Packing & Crating Space & Clearance
Climate Contrel Domestic and International Shipping Customization & Versatility
Redundant Systems Storage & Transport Insurance Limited Access
UV Filtration Callection Management
Dry-Pipe Sprinkler System White Glove Household Moving

Consenatios, Restaralion & Appraisals

www.museovault.com - home page

The applicant, Museo Vault WPB, LLC, provides fine art self-storage in a private, secure, climate and UV-
light controlled facility. The company has two successful locations in South Florida: Miami and West
Palm Beach on Northpoint Parkway; 4200 Westgate Avenue is proposed as the third location.

The proposed development consists of a 4-story +/- 49,760 sf self-storage facility consisting of +/-
45,304 sf of Limited Access Seif Storage and +/- 4,456 sf of Multi-Access Self Storage. Due to impacts on
surrounding uses, self-storage development requires Class A Conditional Use approval by the BCC,
however, the WCRAO provision allowing Class A uses to be approved as a Class B Conditional Use by the

Page|2
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September14, 2020
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 ~  West Palm Beach, Flerida 33409 -~ 561.640.8181 ~ westgatecra.org

73]



WESIGATLIBELYEDERE ROMES

B L T i

Zoning Commission if the site is 2 acres or less. The site was approved for a 15,000 sf. office/warehouse
development in 2004, however, the development order has since been allowed to expire, so the
applicant has also included a request to formally abandon the development order concurrent with this
application. The project is proposed to be completed by 2025.

Summary of Petition
The applicant requests a recommendation of approval from the Westgate CRA to include the following:
1. Class B Conditional Use to allow a +/- 45,304 sf Limited Access Self-Storage Facility;
2. Class B Conditional Use to allow a +/- 4,456 sf Multi-Access Self Storage Facility;
3. Abandonment of R-2004-2275 (Class A Conditional Use approval for Office/Warehouse) and R-
2008-259 (DOA to amend conditions of approval for R-2004-2275); and,
4. Final DRO Site Plan approval.

Staff Analysis:

Consistency with the Westgate CRA Community Redevelopment Plan & WCRA Zoning Overlay
WCRAOQO property development regulations were established to encourage a pedestrian friendly
environment, street presence, and mixed use developments to reinforce the smart growth principles of
the Westgate CRA Redevelopment Plan and the County’s Comprehensive Plan. Within the Urban
Highway {(UH) Sub-area of the WCRAO, continued intense commercial development along Okeechobee
Blvd. and Military Trail is anticipated; the western segment of Westgate Avenue is included in the UH
Sub-area. While mixed use is always preferred on Westgate Avenue and self-service storage may not be
considered among the best and highest uses that could be achieved in this segment of the corridor, the
use is compatible with the office-warehouse development to the north and similar in bulk and massing
to the new Adult Education Facility to the west. The use is currently allowed at this location; self-service
storage is prohibited in the NR, NRM, NG, or NC Sub-area. It is important to note, an upcoming
amendment to the WCRAO due to be adopted in January 2021 will prohibit multi-access self-storage in
the UH Sub-area.

CRA Staff generally support the development of a self-service storage facility on this vacant parcel; the
use is primarily limited access self-storage, traffic impacts are minimal, and the architecture is modern,
designed to mitigate any adverse visual impacts. The applicant is seeking to employ staff to carry out the
operational aspects of fine art handling, and assistance with pick-up and delivery. The use will serve a
local and regional demand for individuals, businesses, and government agencies seeking a secure fine

Page|3
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September 14. 2020
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215~  West Palin Beach, Florida 33409 ~ 561.640.8181 -~ westgatecra.org

49



Ly

Ann
II\'M e

VETGATEAELVDERLHOE

I e

art self-storage facility; the company stores and provides art to internaticnal art events such as Art Basel
in Miami. It is anticipated that the project will draw positive attention to the redevelopment area from
outside interests.

Few PDR’s or supplementary development standards exist for properties in the UH Sub-area. This
project complies with UH Sub-area regulations as applicable including: building coverage, rear and side
setbacks, and, height and stories (a maximum of 10 stories is permitted in the UH). No front build to line
or minimum frontage requirements are in place for the UH Sub-area; instead the overlay reverts back to
the ULDC PDRs for standard zoning districts. The building is setback 67.8 ft.; the building frontage is 58%.
As a vacant parcel, the site has no existing non-conformities; minimum lot dimensions per cade are met.
WCRAO deviations for landscaping, parking and loading are not applicable. The site is over-parked,
providing 25 spaces where 10 spaces are required.

Class B Conditional Use Approval Standards

The Westgate CRA reviews projects for consistency with the goals and objectives of the Community
Redevelopment Plan and compliance with WCRAD use regulations and PDRs. A thorough, multi-agency
review will be conducted upon submittal to the County’s Zoning Division. The project must comply with
Art. 2 review standards for Class B Conditional Uses including: Consistency with the Comp Plan,
Consistency with the Code, Compatibility with Surrounding Uses, Design Minimizes Adverse Impacts,
Design Minimizes Environmental Impact, Development Patterns, Adequate Public Facilities, Changed
Conditions or Circumstances, and Hazardous Material.

The FLU in most areas of the WCRAQ is CH or commercial high allowing for greater structural intensity.
Westgate Avenue is the CRA’s primary commercial corridor, where the FLU and zoning supports more
intense commercial development; the western segment particularly is fully built out with commercial,
office-warehouse and institutional type uses. With the pbssible exception of the residential use to the
east, the project is generally compatible with surrounding uses. The existing development order allows
an office-warehouse development.

Architectural Standards & Landscaping

The project is designed to minimize potential impacts. Landscape buffers and screening along the north,
sauth, east, and west property lines ensures that the development provides appropriate transitions to
the surrcunding properties. Architectural standards such as screening of access points from all public

Pagel4
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September 14,2020
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 ~  West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 ~ 561.640.8181 ~ westgatecra.org

50



streets with vehicular gates have been accommodated in the site design. A Type Il Incompatibility
landscape buffer with a 6 ft. high wall is provided along the east property line {a preliminary landscape
plan has been provided). To maintain a high level of security and ambiguity, no exterior signage is
proposed.

R Y ATCT ]
WEST PALM BEACH. FLORIDA

Conceptualrendering

Preliminary architectural elevations, floor plans and color conceptual renderings have been provided. A
modern design aesthetic utilizing grey and white tones with pops of red has been achieved on the front
street-facing elevation, with a series of recesses and projections providing visual interest. While the
height of the building is 4 stories overall, the 3™ and 2" stories step down from 53 ft. to 41 ft. The
primary and public entrance faces Westgate Avenue Fourteen ground floor bays at the rear of the
building are designated for antique car storage and serve as the multi-access self-service storage
component of the project. A separate east side entrance is provided for access to this area from the
interior of the building. A larger interior loading area is provided on the west side of the building. No
outdoor storage is contemplated. Site circulation flows one way from a west access point to the rear of
the building to an east exit point. Unlike the many architectural requirements for projects in the NC, NG

Page|5
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September 14,2020
1280 N, Congress Avenue, Suite 215 ~  West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 ~ 561.6408181 ~ westgatecra.org

5 |



||W!| arn

ﬂnl’l

VEATGATEBESEDEREHONES

RN MR

or NRM Sub-areas, none exist for projects in the UH Sub-area. Class A uses typically require Art. 5.C
architectural review by the Zoning Division. Fenestration is noticeably missing with the exception of the
ground floor main door, lobby and office window. The absence of windows is intentional; Museo Vault
WPB, LLC provides a high security, discreet services to clients with valuable fine art. However,
fenestration, or the absence of blank walls, is a requirement of Article 5 that will have to be addres_sed
by the project architect.

Traffic & Drainage Considerations

141 daily trips and 28 pm peak hour trips will be returned to the CRA's Traffic Concurrency Exception
Area (TCEA) pool as a result of the abandonment of the office-warehouse development order. Only 67
net new daily trips, 4 am peak hour, and 7 pm peak hour, are anticipated to he generated from the
project. The applicant is not requesting an allocation from the WCRA TCEA and instead, due to minimal
impact, will meet TPS and concurrency.

Storm water will be managed through exfiltration trench and interconnected culvert pipes to accomplish
legal positive outfall to Westgate Avenue. Due to its location in the C-51 basin, this project, including site
grading, will be reviewed for compensating floodplain storage and permitted through the SFWMD.

Staff Recormmendation

Staff recommends approval of applicant’s petition to include the following:
1. Class B Conditional Use to allow a +/- 45,304 sf Limited Access Self-Storage Facility;
2. Class B Conditionat Use to allow a +/- 4,456 sf Multi-Access Self Storage Facility;
3. Abandonment of R-2004-2275 (Class A Conditional Use approval for Office/Warehouse) and R-
2008-259 {DOA to amend conditions of approval for R-2004-2275); and,
4. Final DRO Site Plan approval.

Page| 6
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September 14,2020
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 ~ West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 ~ 561.640.8181 ~ westgatecra.org

5 A



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION FORM #1

AT Palm Beach County Zoning Division
% %5 2300 N. Jag Road
£ West Palm Beach, Florida 33411
@ Phore: (561) 233-5200

Lon> Fax: (561} 233-5165

[0 oOfficial Zoning Map Amendment from Zoning District to Zoning District

O with a Concurrent Land Use Amendment from Land Use to Land Use

[ Class A Conditional Use (CA) for

Class B Conditional Use (CB) for: Self-Service Slorage, Limited Access, and Self-Storage, Mulli-Access

Development Order Abandonment {ABN} of Resolution No: 20042275 and R-2008-255 which allowed Class A Conditional Use
to allow an office/warebouse in the CG zonlng district, and Development Order Amendment to amend conditions of approval, respectively

m Expedited Application Consideration (EAC) for:

O Development Order Amendment (DDA} to a previously approved:
O coz [ PDD/TDD [] ClassA [J] ClassB {1 other:

[l To modify andfor delete Conditions of Approval; [(] To add and/or delete land area;
O To reconfigure Plan(s) (] Master [] Site [] Subdivision [3 To add andfor delete units;

[ Landscape [ Regulatng [C] Sign Plan O To add, delete, or madify Uses;
[} To add and/or delete square footage; [1 To add access paints;
[ other:

Type 2 Variance: (Submit Form #43 Variance Supplemental) Concurrent [ Standatone []
Subdivision Variance: (Submit Form #43 Variance Supplemental) Concurrent [ Standatone [
PQ Deviations: (Submit Form #92 PO Deviation) from Article(s)

Pre-Application Conference (PAC) IRO or PRA: With Questions? [vyes [INo
Type 2 Waiver: (Submit Form #19 Waiver Supplementall Concurrent [J Standalone [

Unique Structure:

o0 o ooo

Other:

- DRO ADMINISTRATIVE REQUESTS:

Expedited Development Review Officer approval (DROE) {within 2 months of BCC/ZC approval)
Use subject to Development Review Officer {DRO) approval for

Pre-Application Conference (PAC) - Concurrent Review: With Questions? [Jyes [ONo

Type 3 Concurrent Review (Zoning, Land Development and Building)
Administrative Modification to a Plan approved by the ZC/BCC / DRO for

Administrative Abandonment (ABN) of a DRO Approval

O
O
O
| Type 2 Concurrent Review: O with Building Permit # or ] with Plat, Name/No.
|
]
O
O

Subdivision

O  Transfer of Development Rights (TDR} { Submit Form #16 TDR Supplementai}
O Type 1Waiver (Submit Form #19 Waiver Supplermental) from Article for

Other Conirol Name Change - See Supplemerital Farm 115

Genaral Application — Public Hearing and DRO Administrative Processes Revised 7/1/2020
Page 1 of 4 Web Formal 2015

L%



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION

FORM# 1

Current Property Owner{s) Name: Westcate Centrs, LLC

Address: 631 US Highway 1, Suite 409

City: North Palm Beach

State; FL

Zip; 33408

Phone: Please contact agent.

Cell Phone: Please contact agent.

Email Address: Please contact agent.

Applicant's name (if other than property owner(s): Museo Vault WPB, LLC

Address: 3201 West Commercial Boulsvard, Suite 218

City: FortLauderdale

State: FL

Zip: 33309

Phone: Piease contact agent.

Caoll Phone: Please contact agent,

Email Address; cdiaz@valuestoreit.com

Check (v} here if Applicant is a coniract purchaser. Consent is required from the contract purchaser if a contract Is pending to
purchase the subject property. Home Owners Association (HOA) or Property Owners Association (P OA) consent wilt
be required if subject property is under common ownership or request Is to modify any aspect of the project which applies to the

entire development (i.e. condition of approval, internal readway, etfc.)

Agent;* Ele Zachariades, Esq.

]

Name of Firm: Dunay, Miskel and Backman, LLP

Phone; (561) 405-3300

Address: 14 SE 4th Street, Suite 36 City: BocaRaton State: FL Zip: 33432
Cell Phone #; (954) 850-8573

Email Address: ele@dmbblaw.com

Agent:* Beth Schrantz, Director of Planning Services Name of Firm: Dunay, Miskel and Backman, LLP

Address: 14 SE 4ih Street, Suite 36 City: Boca Raton State: FL Zip: 33432

Phone: (788)763-0585

Cell Phone #: (786) 763-0565

Email Address: bschrantz@dmbblaw.com

* Al correspondonce will be sent to the Agenl(s) unless otherwise specified.

*Location of subject property:

A. *Property Control Number (PCN):  |00-42-43-25-00-000-1430
(List additional PCN(S) on separate sheat)
B. *Control Number: 2003-096
C. *Control Name : Westgate Commerce Park (Change Requested)
D. Application Number: Not Yet Assigned
E. *Application Name: Museo Vault
F. Project Number: 5003-000
G. *Gross Acreage: 1.43 acres
H. Gross Acreage of affected area: 1.43 acres
I.

(oroximity to closest major intersection/road)}

South side of Westgale Avenue approximately 1/4 mile east of Military Trail

J. *Address: 4200 Westgate Avenue

K. *BCC District: 7

L. Overlay {(Special Study Area): Woesltgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Area | RRO
M. Tier u/s [0 REX [ AGR [J GLADES

Current Future Land Use
designation: CH/8

Proposed Future Land Use
designation:

Current Zoning District: [CG

Proposed Zoning District: e

Existing Use(s):

Wacant | Previously Approved for
Cffice / Warehouse Use

Proposed Use(s):

Self-Service Sterage, Limited Acc:r

Existing Square Footage:

0 SF | Previous Approval for 3,750
SF Office / 11,250 SF Warehouse

Proposed Square Footage:

49,760 SF

Existing Number of Units:

None

Proposed Number of Units:

None

General Application — Public Hearing and DRO Administrative Processes

Page 2 of 4

5¢

Revised 7/1/2020
Web Formal 2015



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION

ARCHITECTURATRE!

e

MIEW e ' . Y

FORM # 1

This application is subject to the requirements of Article 5.C, Design Standards and request review of the
proposed elevations concurrent with:

O Type 1 Projects Requiring BCC Approval
[0 Type 2 Projects Requiring ZC Appraval

[ Type 3 Projects Requiring DRO or Site Plan Approval
Type 4 Projects Requiring Building Permit Approval

This application also incfudes request(s) for Elevation review and consideration, as indicated below:

[0 Revise previously approved Elevations;

[0 Non-conforming structures that are subject to Article 5.C, Percentage of Renovations;
O Approval for Green Architecture (Type 1 Waiver, Art.5.C.1.E.3)
O Approval for Unique Structure (Art.5.C.1.E.2)

Note: All application documents shall be consistent with the current Technical Manual, refer fo the Zoning Web Page.

[Adjacent FLU Zoning Existing Use Approved Use 5:'1:'“0% Aspp]:v:g Cc(u:ti:zl # Resolution
Property District | (Res, Comm, Ind, etc.)| (Res, Comm, Ind, etc.)| pUAC I?U I AC Petition #) #R_
EAST HR-18 RM Residential Residential 80 DU 80 DU |2007-233 N/A
norTH | CH/8 | CG/SE |Office/Warehouse | Office/Warehouse | 20,072 SF| 20,072 SF| 1983-089 | R-1996-0543
R-1996-0544
soutH | CHX/8 [CG/SE| Stormwater Stormwater None None |1977-133|R-2008-16
Retention Pond | Retention Pond 94
wesy | CH/8 RM [Food Distribution | None Unknown| None None None
Vacant School
COM F,LEI“AN
Is the property in compliance with all previous Conditions of Approval and applicable Code
vEs X no O Requirements? If no, please explain in the Jdustification Statement.
Is the property currently the subject of Code Enforcement action?
YES O NO [ If yes, provide Code Enforcement Case Number:
YES [] NO %] Will the request require modification(s) to a recorded plat or plat with Technical Compliance?
If yes, explain in the Justification Statement.
YES @ NO [ is the subject property an existing legal lot of record?
If no, submit Legal Lot Review Application to the Land Development Division.
Does the proposed improevements exceed the allowable improvement value of the existing structure
YES [J NO X | asidentifiedin ULDC, Arlicle 1?7 If yes, comply with Article 1.F — Nonconformities.

o RPROP ‘
S5
Bu“ding Name (as per ULDC) ’ gg:taargee NuLTrE:; of :::’ls: Outpal’cel
Limited-Access | Self-Service Storage, {45,304 SF N/A N/A N/A
Storage Limited Access
Multi-Access | Self-Service Storage, | 4,456 SF N/A NIA N/A
Storage Multi-Access

General Application — Public Hearing and DRO Administrative Processes

55

Page 3 of 4

Revised 7/1/2020
Welb Format 2015



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION FORM# 1

Concurrency Reservation Concurrency Equivalency [ Concurrency Exemption []

A. Water Provider: PBC WUD

B. Waste Water Provider: PBC WUD

C. Drainage District: LWDD

D. Traffic Provider: PBC Traffic Trips Existing: 0

E. Mass Transit Provider: Palm Tran Traffic Trips Proposed: |74

F. Traffic Capacity: Frester o 30 st sty i o rerer)

G. Public School: SD of PBC (Not Applicable as Project is Non-Residential)
H. Public Health Provider: PBC Well /Septic tank :

I. Parks PBC (Not Applicable as Project is Non-Residential)

J. Fire Rescue PBC

K. Solid Waste: SWA

L. Check the proposed means of achieving access from the development site to a point of Legal Positive

OQutfall for storm water discharged from the site:

] Properiy is contiguous to a natural waterway, or a canal owned and operated by a water control district.

{] Property owner has legally established drainage rights to convey storm water through all intervening properties
between the development site and natural waterway or water control district canal.

[0 Property abuts a road with a functioning drainage system, and property owner has obtained written confirmation
from the entity responsible for maintaining the road that the proposed development is eligible to utilize the road
drainage system, subject to meeting all permit requirements for drainage connection.

Other (specify): Please refer io Dralnage Statement.

ENVIRONMENTAD

ENVIRONMENTAL RESOQURCE MANAGEMENT (ERM) — Art. 14.B.8.C

[ Yes [ No ifyes; a Pre-Application Appointment with ERM is reqmred

Is there Native Vegetation on Site? Enter date of PAA meeting with ERM TBD

General Vegetation Statement:
The site has been cleared. There are scattered trees that will be relocated or removed.

Existing and Proposed Please refer to Survey.
Grade/Elevation where existing

Native Vegetation is to be preserved:

Is site in a Wellfield protectionzone? |[] Yes [X]No [f yes; submit Wellfield Protection Affidavit, available from ERM

HEALTH DEPARTMENT — Art.15

In Justification Statemeni, under heading "Hazardous Material’, address type(s) and amount of:

1)all industrial, manufacturing, special or hazardous waste that may be generated; 2) airborne pollutants that
may be generated {i.e. dust or other unconfined particutates such as NOx, SOx, CQ, VOC's, heavy metails,
etc.); and, 3} any special handling of solid waste that may be required.

This application is not complete without the following documents as attachments:

1. Justification Statement: to address the purpose, project history, intent and design objectives of
this request, refer to Art.2.A.6.A.1 for the required information.

2, Status of Conditions of Approval (COA):
a. Provide letter/document which includes the status of all current Conditions of Approval;
b. Include the exact language for any modification(s) to any Condition of Approval;
c. If the application request requires time extension for Commencement of Development or
recording & Plat, then provide further explanation. (This explanation may be added to the
Justification Statement.}

Note: Please refer to PZB Zoning Website for all ULDC Articles http://www.pbegov.com/ulde/index.htm
referenced in this document and the Technical Manual for helpful information
http://www.pbegov.com/techmanual/index.htm

General Application — Public Hearing and DRO Administrative Processes Revised 7/1/2020
Page 4 of 4 é Web Format 2015



‘ D U N AY Gary Dunay Melanie Brill Matthew H. Scott
/ ST Bonnie Miskel Hope Calhoun Christina Bilenki
==— MISKEL
‘*/ Scott Backman Dwayne Dickerson Lauren G. Odom

b
t
'

! : Eric Coffman Ele Zachariades
S BACKMAN LLP

Westgate Commerce Park
{change to Museo Vault requested)
Statement of Use and Justification for
Development Order Abandonment and
Class B Conditional Use Appraval for Limited Access Self Storage and Multi-Access Self Storage
Westgate Community Redevelopment Agency (“CRA”) Submittal: August 31, 2020

INTRODUCTION

Museo Vault WPB, LLC (“Petitioner”) is the contract purchaser of the 1.43-acre site known as “Westgate
Commerce Park” (“Property”), which is generally located on the south side of Westgate Avenue approximately
1/4 mile east of Military Trail within the Urban/Suburban Tier of Unincorporated Palm Beach County (“County”).
The Property is comprised of one (1) parcel, which is currently designated CH/8, Commercial High with an
underlying HR-8, on the County’s Future Land Use Atlas (“FLUA”"} and located within the CG, General Commercial,
zoning district. The Property is referenced by parcel contral number 00-42-43-25-00-000-1430. The Property is
located within the UH, Urban Highway, sub-area of the WCRAQO, Westgate Community Redevelopment Area
Overlay, and the RRO, Revitalization and Redevelopment Overlay. The Property is located along an existing
commercially developed corridor, is currently vacant and was previously approved for development of a 15,000
square foot building including 3,750 square feet of Office use and 11,250 square feet of Warehouse use.

At this time, Petitioner intends to develop the Property with a +/- 49,760 square foot Self-Service Storage Facility
including a +/- 45,304 square foot Limited Access Self-Storage Facility component and a +/- 4,456 square foot
Multi-Access Self-Storage Facility component in order to develop a fine art storage facility providing a unique
storage option for the County’s fine art collectors that offers a secure viewing room, state of the art security,
climate control with redundant mechanical systems, UV filtration on interior lighting, and a variety of storage unit
sizes (“Project”).

PROJECT HISTORY

The Property’s FLUA designation has been modified twice since the adoption of the 1989 Comprehensive Plan as
reflected on the most recently updated Future Land Use Atlas Map Number 57. On October 28, 2004, the Board
of County Commissioners (“BCC”) adopted Ordinance Number 2004-048 amending the Property’s FLUA from the
CH, Commercial High, with cross-hatching designation to the CH, Commercial High, designation. On October 30,
2017, the BCC adopted Ordinance 2017-035 providing a corrective ordinance to assign an underlying High
Residential, 8 dwelling units per acre, FLUA designation to the Property resulting in the current CH/8 FLUA
designation that exists for the Property today. Copies of the ordinances referenced herein are included with this
application for reference.

The Property was previously a part of the Cross County Mall shopping center but was removed from the shopping
center in 1995 as it was no longer needed for drainage or parking for the mall. Since the removal of the Property
from the Cross County Mall shopping center, the Property has been subject to the following Zoning public hearing
approvals (per the records available through the County’s Zoning Division}:

14 5.E. 4th Street, Suite 36, Boca Raton, FL 33432 | Tel: [561) 405-3300 | Fax:[561) 409-2341 | www.dmbblaw.com

57



Prior Approvals

Resolution

D -
Number ate Request Decision

Class A Conditional Use to allow an Office/Warehouse use in the

R-2004-22 28/2
75 | 10/28/2004 CG zoning district

Approved

Status Report to approve a Development Order Amendment to
R-2008-0259 | 2/28/2008 amend conditions of approval of the development order Approved
previously granted by the approval of Resolution R-2004-2275

No extensions to allow additional time to commence development have been granted. As such, Petitioner has
included a request to abandan these approvals with this application. Copies of the resolutions referenced in the
table above are included with this application for reference.

SURROUNDING USES

The surrounding uses vary yet are consistent and compatible with the Project as it is designed to address any
potential impacts on the surrounding area. The following table summarizes the nature of the development
surrounding the Property:

Adjacent Lands Uses FLU Zoning
East Westgate Plaza Apartments Multifamily Residential HR-18 RM

North Cross County Commerce Center Office/Warehouse CH/8 CG/SE

South Crass County Mall Stormwater Retention Pond CHX/8 CG/SE
West Food Distribution Center - Do Right Church | School Property CH/8 RM

The foregoing table demonstrates that the Project is located within an established commercial corridor with an
office/warehouse development located across Westgate Avenue to the north, a stormwater retention pond
serving the Cross County Mall located to the south, the four (4} story, eighty {80) dwelling unit Westgate Plaza
multifamily residential development located to the east, and a School District of Palm Beach County property
serving as a food distribution center located to the west. The Project is compatible with the surrounding land
uses and promotes development that will make a positive contribution to the character of the locality while aiso
providing a valuable resource to fine art collectors within the County.

The Project is designed to provide the landscape buffers and screening necessary along the north, south, east,
and west property lines to ensure that the Project provides appropriate transitions to the surrounding properties.
Specifically, eight foot {8") wide compatibility buffers are provided between the Property and the distribution use
to the west and the retention area to the south, a fifteen foot (15’) wide right-of-way buffer is provided along
Westgate Avenue, and a fifteen foot (15°) wide incompatibility buffer including a six foot (6") high wall is provided
between the proposed building and the four (4) story multifamily residential use located to the east. Further,
the upper stories of the east side of the building facing the existing four (4) story multifamily residential use do
not include fenestration that would impact the residential privacy of the residents. The proposed landscape and
building design are consistent and compatible with the surrounding uses on all sides.

-2

5%



APPLICATION REQUEST

As described above, Petitioner intends to deveiop the Property with a +/- 49,760 square foot Self-Service Storage
Facility including a +/- 45,304 square foot Limited Access Self-Storage Facility component and a +/- 4,456 square
foot Multi-Access Self-Storage Facility compaonent in order to develop a fine art storage facility providing a unique
storage option for the County’s collectors that offers a secure viewing room, state of the art security, climate
control with redundant mechanical systems, UV filtration on interior lighting, and a variety of storage unit sizes.
'n order to develop the Project, Petitioner respectfully requests approval for:

Class B Conditional Use to allow a +/- 45,304 square foot Limited Access Self-
Storage Facility;

Class B Conditional Use to allow a +/- 4,456 square foot Multi-Access Self-
Storage Facility; and

Abandonment of Resolution R-2004-2275, which allowed a Class A Conditional
Use for Office/Warehouse in the CG zoning district, and Resolution R-2008-259,
which allowed a Development Order Amendment to amend conditions of
approval of R-2004-2275 (collectively referred to herein as “Project”).

As detailed herein, the Project is consistent and compliant with all applicable regulations.

CLASS B CONDITIONAL USE STANDARDS

Pursuant to ULDC Section 2.B.7.B.2, Petitioner will demonstrate that the Project: (a) is consistent with the County’s
Comprehensive Plan; (b) is consistent with the County’s Unified Land Development Code (“ULDC"); (c) is
compatible with surrounding uses; {d) is designed to minimize adverse impacts (e} is designed to minimize
environmental impacts; (f) will result in a logical, orderly and timely development pattern; (g) is compliant with
the County's concurrency standards; and (e} is necessitated by changed conditions.

a) Consistency with the Plan — Approval of the Project is consistent with the purposes, goals, objectives and
policies of the Plan, including standards for building and structural intensities and densities, and intensities of
use. As noted above, the Property is designated CH/8, Commercial High with an underlying HR-8, on the
County’s FLUA. The Project proposes a mix of Limited Access Self-Service Storage and Multi-Access Self-
service Storage uses on Westgate Avenue, which is an arterial thoroughfare. The Project will serve community
and regional commercial demand for individuals, business and government establishments, and other
organizations in need of highly secure fine art storage in accordance with the requirements of the CH land use
category. The Project will provide a much needed fine art self-storage use in the County. Further, the Project
promotes Sub-Objective 1.2.3 of the Future Land Use Element as it involves development within the WCRAQ,
that will expand upon the goods and services currently provided along the Westgate Avenue commercial
carridor and increase the value of the Property and surrounding area. In addition, the Project is designed to
provide a significant buffer and concrete wall along the east property line in order to buffer the existing four
(4) story multifamily residential use. Approval of the Project is not only consistent with the land use
designation of the Property, it is also consistent with Policy 2.2.c of the PBC Comprehensive Plan, which
requires the PBC Code to be consistent with appropriate elements of the PBC Comprehensive Plan including
compatibility with adjacent future land uses.

© 59



b} Consistency with the Code — The Project complies with the applicable standards and provisions of the County
ULDC for use, layout, function, and general development characteristics to the greatest extent possible. The
Property is zoned CG and was previously approved for a 15,000 square foot office/warehouse development
as discussed in greater detail above. Petitioner proposes to abandon the prior development orders and
requests approval for two (2) Class B Conditional uses to allow both Limited Access and Multi-Access Seif-
Service Storage Facility uses. The Project is designed to comply with the dimensional, building and safety
requirements established by the Code. The Project provides a unique, highly secure fine art and collector
storage facility that will serve the County’s many collectors. The Property is located on Westgate Avenue,
which is identified as an Urban Collector on Map TE 3.1, Functional Classification of Roads. As such, the Project
is consistent with the purpose of the CG zoning district “to encourage the development of intensive
commercial uses providing a wide range of goods and services, with access from a Collector or Arterial Street
and services a consumer market of at least a three-mile radius”.

Article 1: The Project complies with Article 1 with the request to abandon the pricr approvals. Further,
Petitioner is not seeking to vest any existing nonconformities.

Article 2: The Project complies with the Development Review procedures outlined in Article 2 through the
processing of this application.

Article 3: The Project complies with the requirement for a recommendation from the Westgate CRA prior to
submittal as it will be considered at the September 14, 2020 Westgate CRA meeting. The Project is allowed
subject to Class B Conditional Use approval for the Limited Access Self-Storage and Multi-Access Self-Storage
uses pursuant to ULDC Section 3.B.14.D.2.b., which allows a Class A Conditional Use on a WCRAO property
that is less than 2 acres to be approved as a Class B Conditional Use. The Project complies with the Article 3
Property Development Regulations for properties designated CG within the WCRAO with the provision of:

e 100% Non-Residential Use where 100% Non-Residential Use is allowed (Table 3.B.14.E),

e 1.43 acre lot area where a minimum of 1 acre is required {Table 3.D.1.A),

e +/-297 foot lot width and frontage where a minimum 100 foot lot width and frontage is required (Table
3.D.1.A),

e +/-209 foot lot depth where a minimum 200 foot lot depth is required {Table 3.D.1.A),

e 0.80 FAR where 0.85 FAR is permitted {Table 3.D.1.A),

» 28.02% building coverage where 40% is permitted (Table 3.B.14.F),

s 67'-8” setback from the front (north) property line where a minimum 50’ setback is required{Table

3.D.1.A),

e 35-10” setback from the rear {south) property line where a minimum 25’ setback is required (Table
3.B.14.F),

e 55'-10” setback from the side (west} property line where a minimum 15’ setback is required (Table
3.B.14.F),

e 67'-3” setback from the side {east) property line where a minimum 15’ setback is required {Table 3.B.14.F),
e 53’ building height were 120’ maximum building height is permitted (Table 3.B.14.F), and
e 4 stories where a maximum of 10 stories are permitted (Table 3.B.14.F).

Article 4. The Project complies with all applicable portions of Article 4.B, Supplementary Use Standards, as
described in more detail helow.

4.B.2.C.37 Self-Service Storage —

C 1



a.

Definition - A facility consisting of individual, seif-contained units that are leased for the storage of
business, household, or other personal goods.

The Project is a facility that consists of individual, self-contained units leased for the storage of
business, household, or other personal goods. As such, the Project is consistent with the use
definition.

1)

Types Permitted - Self-Service Storage facilities may include but are not limited to Limited or Multi
Access storage units, with or without Outdoor Storage areas, limited to the storage of personal or
household goods, automobiles, recreational vehicles, boats, or personal watercraft, only, subject
to the following:

The proposed Self-Storage Facility includes both Limited and Multi-Access without Outdoor
Storage for the storage of fine art, collectibles, and high end vehicles. As such, the Project is
allowed.

a) Limited Access - Limited Access is a Self-Service Storage facility with fimited access points
from the exterior of the building to interior halls that serve individual storage units.
A +/- 45,304 square foot portion of the Project is dedicated to Limited Access Self-Service
Storage with the public entrance located at the exterior of the north side of the building
and interjor corridors that serve the individual storage units. As such, the Project is allowed.

b) Multi-Access - Multi-Access Is a one-story Self-Service Storage facility with multi-access points
from the exterior of the building to individual storage units.
A +/- 4,456 square foot portion of the Project is dedicated to Multi-Access Self-Service
Storage with access directly to the individual storage units from the exterior of the south
side of the building. As such, the Project is allowed.

Overlay — Westgate Community Redevelopment Area Overlay (WCRAQ) - Self-Service Storage is
prohibited in the NR, NRM, NG, and NC Sub-areas, as outlined in Table 3.8.14.E, WCRAOQ Sub-area
Use Regulations.
The Property is not located in the WCRAO NR, NRM, NG, or NC Sub-area. As such, this criterion
is not applicable.

Zoning Districts — Commercial Pod of PUD or Neighborhood Center of TND
The Property is not located in a Cammercial Pod of PUD or Neighborhood Center of TND. As
such, this criterion is not applicable.

Accessory Uses — Industrial Districts
The Property is not located in an Industrial District. As such, this criterion is not applicable.

Architecture

1) Storage Access or Storage Unit Door Screening - Access points and storage unit doors shall be
screened from all public streets, residential uses, or vacant parcels with a residential FLU
designation, through the use of buildings, walls, opaque vehicular gates which primarily
remain closed, or other similar barriers.
The Project is designed to screen all access points and storage unit doors screened from
public streets, residential uses, and vacant parcels with a residential FLU through the use of
buildings and walls. As such, the Project complies with this criterion.

A



f.

2)

Fenestration - The use of fenestration that allows visibility of storage unit doors or is designed
in conjunction with intericr signage, logos, lighting, or paint schemes intended to expand
permitted extericr signage shall be prohibited.

The Project is not designed to use fenestration to allow visibility of storage unit doors or in
conjunction with interior signage, logos, lighting, or paint schemes intended to expand
permitted exterior signage. The Project is a highly secure facility and is designed to
discourage identification of the valuable goods stored within rather than to call attention
to the use. As such, the Project complies with this criterion.

Landscaping — Incompatibility Buffer Screening Requirements - Where an Incompatibility Buffer
is required, the minimum six-foot screening requirement may be waived, subject to the following:
Petitioner does not intend to waive the minimum screening requirement where an
incompatibility buffer is required. As such, this criterion is not applicable.

Storage

1)

2)

Hazardous Materials Prohibited - The storage of flammable, hazardous or explosive materials,
goods or products shall be prohibited.

The Project does not include storage of hazardous materials. As such, the Project complies
with this criterion.

Outdoor Storage Standards
The Project does not include Qutdoor Storage. As such, these criteria are not applicable.

Supplemental Circuiation Standards for Multi-Access Facilities

1)

2)

Interior - The minimum width of aisle ways between storage structures shall be 20 feet for
one-way traffic, and 30 feet if two-way traffic.

The drive aisle adjacent to the multi-access storage structures is designed as a one-way 20-
foot wide aisle. As such, the Project complies with this criterion.

Flow - Traffic flow patterns in aisle ways shall be clearly marked. Markings shall consist at a
minimum of standard directional signage and painted lane markings with arrows.

The Project is designed to clearly mark traffic flow patterns with standard directional
signage and painted lane markings with arrow. As such, the Project complies with this
criterion.

Business Uses Prohibited - Businesses shall be prohibited from operating within any Self-Service
Storage facility or storage unit or outdoor storage area, except as follows:

1)

2)

Storage of Business Goods - A storage unit shall not be used to store inventory, equipment or
material required on a daily or recurring basis necessary for a business trade or occupation.
No storage units will be used to store inventory, equipment or material required on a daily
or recurring basis necessary for a business trade or occupation. Only longer term storage of
store inventory, etc, will be permitted. As such, the Project complies with this criterion.

Home Occupation Vehicles - A maximum of one business related vehicle per storage customer

a maximum of 8,000 pounds curb weight may be stored in a Multi-Access storage unit or
outdoor storage area.

sé,?\



A maximum of one business related vehicle per storage customer that is a maximum of
8,000 pounds curb weight will be stored in a Multi-Access storage unit. As such, the Project
complies with this criterion.

Article 5; The Project complies with ULDC Sections 5.B.1.A.8.A, 5.B.1.A.8.B, 5.8.1.A.8.C.2, and 5.B.1.A.8.D as
all refuse containers will be stored in a storage area with a minimum dimension of ten feet (10') by ten feet
(10°), located to minimize furning and backup movements by pick-up and removal vehicles, set back a
minimum of twenty-five feet (25") from the property line, and screened from view by a solid enclosure and a
swing-gate screening. In accordance with ULDC Section 5.C Architectural Review will be completed at time of
Building Permit, however conceptual elevations will be presented to the Westgate CRA, Zoning Commission,
and Board of County Commissioners to provide additional context regarding the building.

Article 6: The Project complies with the parking regulations in Article 6 with the provision of 25 parking spaces
where 10 parking spaces are required for the proposed uses. The parking stalls located to the north of the
building are proposed to be 90-degree with a minimum stall size of 9.5 foot width and 18.5 foot depth. These
parking stalls are served by drive aisles with a minimum width of 25 feet as required for 90-degree parking
stalls that are 9.5 feet wide by 18.5 feet deep. The parking stalls located to the east of the building are
proposed to be 60-degree with a minimum stall size of 9.5 foot width and 19 foot depth. These parking stalls
are served by drive aisles with a minimum width of 19°-9” feet in excess of the requirement for 60-degree
parking stalls that are 9.5 feet wide by 19 feet deep. Further, the access complies with the standards of Table
6.B.3.A with the provision of a 28 foot wide two-way access way where a 25 foot wide access way is required.
Lastly, the Project exceeds the requirement for loading spaces with the provision of two {2) 14 foot wide by
59 foot deep loading zones provided adjacent to the access to the limited access self-storage bays where two
(2) 12 foot wide by 18.5 foot deep loading zones are required.

Article 7: The Project is designed to comply with or exceed, the landscape standards within Article 7. The
proposed ROW buffer width along Westgate Avenue is 15-foot width where 15-foot width is required. The
provided incompatibility buffer along the east property line meets the 15-foot width requirement, and the
provided compatibility buffers along the west and south property lines meets the 8-foot minimum width
requirement. The Project provides the required 8-foot wide foundation planting buffers alang 40 percent of
the facade for the north, east, and west facades. Interior and terminal landscape islands are provided with a
maximum of 7 parking spaces in a row where a maximum of 10 are permitted and meet the minimum
dimensional requirements of the ULDC with the provision of a minimum 8-foot width and 15-foot depth.

Article 8: No exterior signage is proposed. As such, the Project complies with the signage requirements in
Article 8.

Compatibifity with Surrounding Uses — The Project is compatible and generally consistent with the uses and
character of the land surrounding and in the vicinity of the Property. The surrounding uses vary yet are
consistent and compatible with the Project. The following table summarizes the nature of the development
surrounding the Property:

Adjacent Lands Uses FLU | Zoning
East Westgate Plaza Apartments Multifamily Residential HR-18 RM
North Cross County Commerce Center Office/Warehouse CH/8 | CG/SE

743



South Cross County Mall Stormwater Retention Pond CHX/8 | CG/SE

West Food Distribution Center - Do Right Church | School Property | CH/8 RM

The foregoing table demonstrates that the Project is located within an established commercial corridor with
an office/warehouse development located across Westgate Avenue to the north, a stormwater retention
pond serving the Cross County Mall located to the south, the four (4) story, eighty (80) dwelling unit Westgate
Plaza multifamily residential development located to the east, and a School District of Palm Beach County
property serving as a food distribution center located to the west. The Project is compatible with the
surrounding land uses and promotes development that will make a positive contribution to the Westgate CRA
while also providing a valuable resource to fine art collectors within the County.

In addition, the Project is designed to address any potential impacts on the surrounding area with the
provision of landscape buffers and screening necessary along the north, south, east, and west property lines
to ensure that the Project provides appropriate transitions to the surrounding properties. Specifically, eight
foot {8') wide compatibility buffers are provided between the Property and the distribution use to the west
and the retention area to the south, a fifteen foot (15') wide right-of-way buffer is provided along Westgate
Avenue, and a fifteen foot (15') wide incompatibility buffer including a six foot (6’) high wall is provided
between the proposed building and the four (4) story multifamily residential use located to the east. Further,
the upper stories of the east side of the building facing the existing four (4) story multifamily residential use
do not include fenestration that would impact the residential privacy of the residents. The proposed
landscape and building design, and Project in general, are consistent and compatible with the surrounding
uses on all sides.

Design Minimizes Adverse Impacts — The design of the Project minimizes adverse impacts, including visual
impact and intensity of the proposed use on adjacent lands. As detailed above, the Project is designed to be
compatible with existing residential uses to the east and to provide appropriate setbacks and buffering to
reduce the visual impact on passershy. The Project is also designed to meet or exceed the ULDC required
dimensional and landscaping components, which ensure that the Project is aesthetically pleasing and
compatible with other uses in the area.

Design Minimizes Environmental Impact — The Project minimizes environmental impacts, including, but not
limited to, water, air, stormwater management, wildlife, vegetation, wetlands and the natural functioning of
the environment. Furthermore, the Project is designed to comply with all County, State and Federal
environmental requirements.

Development Patterns — The Project will result in a logical, orderly and timely development pattern. Approval
of the Project will allow for a unique, highly secure, fine art and collectible self-service storage facility and
expand the storage options that serve the growing population of the County within the Urban/Suburban Tier.
The Property is located along an established commercial corridor within the Westgate CRA where
development that improves property values is encouraged. Considering the foregoing, the Project will allow
for the logical, orderly and timely development of the Property.

Adequate Public Facilities — The Project will not have an adverse effect on the ability of the County to provide
adequate public facilities to the residents or husinesses in the surrounding area. Please refer to the Traffic

8 éé[



Statement and Drainage Statement that are included with this proposal. Further, Petitioner is applying for a
concurrency reservation for the Project to ensure adequate public facilities exist.

8. Changed Conditions or Circumstances — There are changed conditions or circumstances that necessitate the
Project. The Westgate corrider and County at large have significantly changed since the Plan adoption in 1989
and there is a growing need for specialized storage options, thus creating the need for additional commercial
facilities far the County residents. As such, the County’s growth and establishment as a place for high-end art
and collectibles, are changed circumstances that necessitate the amendment.

9. Hozardous Material =The Project wiil not generate noxious odors, noises, airborne pollutants, chemicals or
waste. As such, no special handling of waste will be required.

CONCLUSION

This Project is consistent with the Goals and Objectives of the Pian, meets or exceeds the technical requirements
of the Unified Land Development Code (ULDC), and furthers the goals of the Westgate CRA.

Based on the above and attached information, the Petitioner respectfully requests Class B Conditional Use
approval for the Project, and Abandonment of the previous development orders.



130l
iON L33HS

o
0

]
LI ]
ITVIS OMHIVED

I QYIS
YilY

VOISO ALNNOD HOVIA Wivd '1Sv3 ZF 3ONvY

HLNOS £¥ dIHSNMOL 'SZ NOLO3S J0 J0 +/1'3N

30 MOUHOd ¥ _J0 AJABNS 11U QNv1 SdS

‘ONI "SHOAZANNG ONY] ADIINYA

(rmsuaing gt 23 Beror
a2z rez ()
Db A G2 Jod B el uarg e Avoary Baey

SNOLLYWHOANI ONINDZ

oA L Sy Cp (g e Y 3%ad THY S WO Y YD
a Pt ] ML B A D A A M) [a ey L an) tarat

SHCUIHLSIY ONY S1NOM3SYI

(Lestt w0 umtnsh ] Apaadond |t v i)
pujea Gpuiaed |0 sbus) s geng 0 g pame g fuaslay (1

Temmnioan3

e ) 1 wpais 4o napwa oy L

L) "oTh W 11 ey Pobieem DL TR Ao ‘3

B e

TEA-000 5L~ 4—Tp 00 “SPant JARu0] Lpactid Ty

om0 P g 8 ey ajobiinn O] ain Rasiee KA am St R UL
. LIOT S #0130 prIAD | ST

S550L1 maew ey FTIT3 N1 w1 Gaeon T, 10 HT poot) b e FLadd JATAT 0}
BHAE  M syamy  pS
T3 11ZOD A1 e 0} Buratn Pum oppony K wpmeg ey - 71 st

S5 S AILS) T NS 1 o LR Sl 0 FRDD B \mmy ot Bismog T

N AR S LA N RGPS IR B ety WAGYS BEOLD|FR P RRameq BY U
o 0 djaded prcame Meae #1 5

L L L il iy gl o
sy Sy pus Bapyng my daded

Prams wom w e v dasp Ko o el ke tepsieide o BeeD 3
ot 23 v

s PO dn ()it B [HES 4/p mriie Srlp b ] i S
“sodom s sl poviay SPURL) B [ B B

PR P T Wiy ety ryf o i e s v
+upt b 00 prasiad wom £y oduig PuL e o

0 14711 st 5 Tmep i VPUMES £ 50y R Dul 10 BERL e T
[P
5 ) i 300 8850 Lo U oy Lt by OZBZ AT iy $380 “EOETED O
I O] ST L PRGN A ey Pe AN DI Yuble kO] B

' Pt 50 voupioeiq BEIT ) 5 PSd P A e 1N PaoTR MeE R T

A5 Tu DY SaHIEITY A e ey

F53L0N 5,80A3AHNS

{00.p0- EFPSPL
L LE'80°070T 318
¢ £onuew H uyor Aq
paubis A|jzubiq

wouny im aims
WS o ke ) proded
ke 1 e

OK0Z 't Wrtey megued
02 2E ine M2

otut ‘et

ooy Py Bl GIGE ‘CE AP <2 PN M piie Py b bl ¥ oL 1 P
SUTL FALT] el S b SN R FLN A4 PR DL BeacEies L s
WIHL P LER/NITY ) Pl AToeis JOISD RASPRIE \ba T ol Virs S3cpETa
BBl ke FAMA B e N b £hmid T Nopd 0 G 0 0 D S L

Yl W ¥ TS I8 B4R 80 P Ay A3 Wil P A P el
am JSaley” wid smpamey Fimaey S fohml Boll = IT] ‘G win by =L

INOULYOLILEEY TUL ONYT SASH/YLTY

1 71 B B B b/l WA A g b ) pheedln 3 19 /G b
MOLARDYS3] T
n

AGAHNE ANYONMOE TUM ONYT SISN/YITY

3OS CL 10N
d¥N NOLYICT

ey

VoK HYEH
KM

e

O6FL=000—D0-—6Z ~Lr~Zr =00 _ON WINLNOD AlRIJONd
DTN HINMO AULKIGD 550HD W3NG ALYIONd INIIVTOY

{HOLYILUNIN O8) TH={r-57 HOLDIS 10

15¥3 136430 005

LRIANKOR U3HINGD " ¥ .
w¥ X_¥ ORNOS 0 %-—Mpuﬁaaﬂmwpﬁhhﬁ’h:!'%-s: L‘anﬂnh—q_nm”uak,
wu..w.:__nw.ﬁ._.m_,.;._xu 1/ a = T/ 13s
. . b =
BL96Z AN M2t 898N T y
P> f ../ 1
B By
K3 < & ..cm...o_. €3 o
o A
201 o.‘@ ke m.m_u
n LIk
Pmuﬂaiﬂ * a ] A1
2 e
=1 H
- (HOLLIONOZ 0D} 5 ]
H gl 30N mm rd B
g ol s a8 12 LY
] = ERI 3
= i 3 Z = z ga-
EE s & & L2
% §4 & 3 554
g8 qsf A Btg
3 H ] . ELE)
;3o BEw il LE I
I S R g N
CEREL BT > ] A
ok F g 0 ] 2%E o3
gy 83 1l ® : e W
faf i B G Lo
3R L R LNVYOIVA g LEE
230 & Bz . 28 ez
LT I ~ I %
25 m % LY te 28p
in s 5 8
m 2 5 B
z N g
z o §
m (£961 9d "FEZPI 'BUC) —aor
2L w4 “PIL M08 1Vl a8
MINLEYSY ¥2YId UYOLSIH, 2B S¥ 1
NINISY3 553337 03 KAT 2
s
<
FIne 7 Qo 2 O s LEE
: RRELTE 0] ATy {ecc1b 57)
W3 0 g Mg Hamod
ugsu 5 >
41T 4
U T 1 % , \uim &
teaced a3 Ton" = :
P ‘ ‘_wm 962 @ ! WMI0S  3LumNoa ' 3 o FioHNwR
=N Em\%r N 08 o A..&z 3 o T Favlye
& L T i @ gany 2—/ 5 < e L
S i DG Yowern |8 od wawea) 5 PESE v
»lune & LY " ooom e Favired
AJTVA 7 -2 PN sma .9 TE=TE-5Z NOUO3S 40 . _ M
2 viTh ,n...u\ -m:‘uz ux‘w 40 $/136 3HL 20 1/ 1M N \ﬁ.h - |
- _ —_ — HL 40 2/t 153 3HL JO 3NT HIBON:
ML G W] HIgN— 7 - J.&|~|I -y __<
o INN3AY ALVILSIM g
/o3 2 -0 VHIY NG HZ .
% 2 AL P GH0 7 =2 = &)
S o S 4 1 g g
P ; . . b
B | =
55 1o
Zg | @
~
| L
t=z
N TOBANE LNGHYY =AY I8 =
oEd = (d) ﬁ Zm =
SHOLWATD SMISEG = RO —
B0 a = (3) _ = ™
ditne g0 Ba@m = (9) ] 3
3dd TAIM TGy - 4R [ =<
e = (W |&
o = (W)
amwps s 11 = D Ty-Er-SZ HOLLD3S 40 INIT HLAON ‘ ulum.
L v Hl dv2 ¥
Wbz - 8 / _ﬁl 3 -
LHOMGAYd TTVHISY = —_— = — — — — L1 mwﬂl_ A A1L22.685
LMIrGAYd ZL3oNoD = FElRs [’ -_—
iz - 2 QYVAIINGE  33IQOHIIINO
powvan - O
s =y
HOOU GHENWY =
nammEm - 3

]

Tr=0v—GZ NOIDIS
40 #7VIN ML 0
HINHOD LSIMHLHON:

bb



e 26 %0 ¥ OZ0LILEA Fnp ZEA0L YT SLE D TVIGIN 1R 04N - IZD OTZOD B Ich |

-~

Lo g wowa 1 02=9ul 1
{sr =) LA i) .\E/
= =_=_] RVId LIS 0AS0d0d \_| )
or CC T w
AVOS JHAVAD ox
(HOtL YL NIC) ON) x40
TH-Ch-C2 HOUIT K8
. AN 30N HVTA B0 /OIS Sl U T
A ] 20 Z/L LW L 0028 HIROS T J0 W) HLIOK ovD R Hid NOHl
Bzuﬂ NN NV - = /1 19
T . HFIVT &
; R SN h e
§ i
B . B =L Y
» i = — -
g o] Q it : The 't et ]
H 2 el £ ) & m.....: T
d -~ S a * - .m:m L J |20
- -- .,
g 5 .
b ~ N
4, n I X & >, 3, m e
AUEARLSKID 50l 1o due)g Suwoyz _H_ dweg JuswpusY D St 7 N A EEE
g 3 s i A : R I I+ 1
§ mm o E L { 7 7 4 *£ Gy H NN & = 88
H g cﬂ;.ouwshu wad 5 % fo} T i FOVEOIS $3300V- LI & 5 13 m b an
Far 3 - * 2
Sl i 5] & e 1H 37U\ 9-2T AH015 | v by &2
iR m m =| 3 -5, Yac 1 shoalt: z
~ m M m iy - n i H o a W
5 8 £, orgord v m E E
2z afa 5\ A anes Ed ]
IHVHD Y.IFG VIIS \ £ 3 Nl g § it B 33 =
PEH e d o + 3 "2 £
DR g3 =F * Y 21 s
Svast | OGN TITTS TS T LN TIOL Ws 2 " AT TR MM E R9E
H [ £ % .3+.2) A5 S CriT A3V IICNT MaN wZ na Alaw | IS EE Laes [ - I~ 2 N
Lo 3% X981 530V N7 oIV ONT 1S R £4 vEg 5 _ ki = #ig
WICTy 3 v 5d 42 4 .—_ FiE
e e e e e e T T e R e ey mm a azw \_ v e Aos “ H oty
S33we £ V5 4D W5 OOUSS Ay I 44 Sovas |+ Zak judS N Y 1 ! ...M.m
ST L VD G ONEr) | TOW 5O 5 OO B LYHL ¥4T B0 e ( 2kB M Y ;o 83
(e AP T A TPLG-HG > 3h LD ¥ ; s2R
SEovas % EEELT] NCRIT LTINS 1O WD FzR ol AR ewa i o
AV & TR AENIGE3 & N az e 4 P P A - by
. - s3Ivas (9179 FoTHOLS M} | SAVE 3DTROLIS 0027 TIVaA 1 WV By ) e S /f i svRarT \/ o ¥
i H IE B Pem——— (S 3vaS BBIUSOS & N g N !1!%&, By = “ N
tlm?® W $aoved 02 ISavE I01A 996) | SAvE ITTHOLS S22 4 FoveS | sy i) L . @. . ey i3 [ P TR
g3F aEoa0sd Az GELY DM CALNNEA HEaAY ol sy . . = = b Sos = -
m & ._Hu 4 H [ R 2 BRI I ] ENCE T e 4 P a1s v it :.FH\| .h WEu_w [ oF
50 5 3 A & WIMOLS 40 NFATN TR - 5790 T o | o / " o] Eﬁom«u.-ﬂ;ﬁ(ﬁm iz - y O = e samanen [
ER ] EX ) 1OrE oaTing N3 INEZTTSY 5 9 X0 PRy m [ oY | il IR red e mamy
z ! o i ocsy, - VT HOO 12 TR -1h“.|.mn.n mw - s —— = <o A S _..H .uzzu“
w m EE=] o= B ol o ®Z @ I ...“uwr & SOOI 1S GNnd - @@tY 390 O
= m R e S e e T E R R e KL Y ? Q 4 % a SIS0t IN3TTIaY
NGRS P ] vET A L3N A3e0uCuel W ® e z o .
[} - K ) Ara (eeot @)
RIS 4% O9GEr i TERAT 3115 1N OIS T Hmod SEVE s m T 1 L~ av3 ® M how
m o 1 5 Leztd T TR AU D OO SarRal | —O00M /._utmf.ung poua-a |2 § D03 O NusREAT T .m..@u.. ._%. LA 1! .,9ﬂ| 9/ GNN0d
PO 45 o9sEr 1 VY TN eecD D5 IS 57 AN 3 r o W[5 %Y 3 o M E T
ue ] Yo 4% e NOLaRo5 3 M0 HIE—— e 2l N R,
= BRI S e (cavcd €1) RT ey Ty TR O E o AN o ey e T = TR == =
s 3 w W Sea FOL SATTNE Def7HL 4D ¥ Md NOYI L R R b s (e e 4 O Y ¢ g0fean | o B TOH
W = SRIAVIY 1LV FOTHCLE 4135 - &3S e .PV P 2ellary Fovhovsg
a4 m CER00v -G FvaoIs 4198 0 VO § e 228 o0 J— 02 o T aoa ] I Y Y
g N () ST i 5 Lovtn way e 000 , senw Q
1y H o R ] HTRN NG 03 wittno = WM ¥ BHD 2 - Do |G Nod dwod o
» CRi-ro-ovNT LREAD 23T 2 ) . vitny o
3 W (933 19351 7| RIZHGD THINED TNNGT OFs0acHa ,w.w_ /ﬁmﬂ[ «/1IN uﬂthum_ mw_uqm_._.www mm__ v\—.;.zwu 1
'
- m 1907 LOMISIa Ty SHRI0oD ._qmu‘muniu S ou«?&&mﬂnzou GELHMH . - S - ML s Z/) LSIM_JHL JO 3NTT HLHOH. L
3 R e 0 s et iy SR TETYRA T
2P E% A R R LR B g R R S SRErts
*g L e st e A R R R N R e . Y
o-toar FEC A I v T NEAY LwoLsEN I
A B3 BN MOV St XLFULA JHdien. ~
F1AvL viva LS WM 2 gm = b
B8 (18 =
3318
L2 ||z : @
o <} &5 PAST FTTEOIS d135
mm g a7 IR 1 = d¥N NOLLYOOT IDFrodd \ 2
[N ! T18VL ADNIFHHNONOD .
.. g o :
ﬁ ] 2 i B & ETFCE POROH MOV LTd 16T
H - 130 A0S HE HIITTH KGR e
SIOHHN LG e v
m IO 24 Chty Dot
%% [ % mar 0| ve QILGr L4 2t 14 ov et b d ez [sRiow €] OFecacad AT LT HHEHRE
m RVR.O0G | % oF ] - =] DM NN TP NIT WD
i | wSAoD LT EVLNCR] =T :l..m_ “H Moo T
FOL ¢ CRITAITIOR Tt LSO ELLL HTRRG
M oo | waw | wva | aueaa SHOISNENIE 10 HIEH TNNGT . noS Tirt 150 C1iz £
sl SNOLYINDIY INIWDOTIATO ALYAdONd
IrriE FOROR OTIE TRANEIA
2 IK & 2 HEINID SOG T I
m Ve 40RIMZeY ROSRAVT RNV JEETUE
4 wGO
K PNAMLWACHEM  w3=913830
WvdL INZWNJOT3A3T




e 1T
Xapu|
adeospue]

Su__:-_-.czz..x:-:_u...!_._::
31399 W1 St Bobmed

LN PRI GTATA I YT Y 10 10
Gy W Do I B i T Wi

SNOISSIANANS / SNOISIATY
zetat oN Rt
SUELE “ON 3.

s Hgprey?
Wy A uwex]
aw Ag udytag.

BT LT s

DT TR0 e

JJNeA 09SNIA
alebisopn

EpLO[4 ‘AJUNOD) udeag uljed

TETOO0ST 10N U2
IO VR PUEUE AN S GRA
Lo UEpUE S SO | eus3
TPT5PHS TS Buolry
TOFEE M WMOE WiEd Uap
ZOL 15 il 13(314 N 1561

ORINNYId NVYBHN AONY
JEMNLIAUHINY JJVISONYT

STOHDIN
1AIWHDS

AN

M. le0ets

LDDlZ

BP0 ey Sapu
g At 9)

[LISTTY

E PR T

\
o S S .
L ||W||\l, e 2

T

M, Ch. 95 88N

P it
v 2 Ik
73 F Do
v,
e Gupmg vbesns ]}
A [prtwsse ] S
- o B i _
4
. Y J4 21
p - 2
L. Db
_ ! 2 j
v H M
— “
" - e
= e T
L - :
T b ¢ v
H v I !
AL i P ~ P
3 T OB Yl iy + t
il - - ! A
et b o A Bk St e P e T e B B b e M, 2€,90.68N
NG MADH O i )
ad) e pio ®
oy pross
E . ___3NN3AYILVOLSIM .

3,B2.62.1

060z

rurg Aypaedund o)

LT

L

“Bip nakasoiq |
L0402 =) 3je35 .__sn_ua:«m..mzx

8 o oz 8 9

™

i

suojjeaynads adeospue Z-d471
ue|q adesspue |-d7
10aus xopy| edeospuey |1

LINYA O3SNIN J1¥OLSIM

dYiAl NOILYQ0T

5%



P 5 e
P T K] B e | e zowe] wvemennZEl g |
T
N_m. WNQ. avm et 4 frvera w0 - - aries vazrad | i | wimieman| MBI &
o v 23 frven 13 ~omeaw e B | amessowmon
s vt e | o = Tow vt B | movo sowesats
wwra - - e s s | £
- e e e || 1| o GacriDevEn|  eMY | SITIA e | s aad cava
ke sya e e I o e wouwa| o incwicanra | @
bt BRSO A Ly A | 1 are 1 | iy o Al B | eiTea Nea | Snbal dncad aainva | (3
Lren I i ey 1| P | mpie a meoma | rwen | S0 e | s wvaid adre | 63
Ao B e m e | | iy o] uss | mimvve ey | e imeay s
v s o UEACY - W | S v | oy Deract| | moh | Gt el | Dol WG Glierd
A g it ey v | T wre|  nal | s e | s e cavers
e a1 e e || ua T | oy WaRod avwo| Wn | s e | saom oo avd
v e ] I aunowa|  seer | savmoe et | swoa mnoe cavere | @
Tie] I s [ |
TIE m ; it i T i ] -

TN MO

iz
W: P )

NOIIVAZ1d HIN0S \ L/

Y O3 TATH

v
v
v
v
v
%

AT QU AT
EaTr it

[T e —e————
BrUe - LIF {rJe) Hd

ZrPE€ YANOTE ‘HOvIE aaiasa
IE FUNS W [ZUNED LNOCTEN T 331

¥d LISLHNY — NOSTHVI ¥ HEIINNIH

i (G

NOIIVAZTT RIHON \ ]/

4 3@ VATE
WU OWOw T3 %

BI%% - LIF (+T%) Xvd

ELWSCD vV

“H 'HOYaa Wivd lgam
3AY UYDLIIN SR

¥ Beire AT
- WU o1
HT AR AT

T

AV RS AT

T raTm

Tdvaive N O
iy sy raam

® Tdviita W o1

ONITTING JOVHOLS JHY INIL -ITAVA OFSAN

Wl S0 T Z QIO BUpZE0OLT KT TERLLYAT 150 SWSAM 1A DRE - TR DNLITNRoRRL |

s




Lo % wwa

cdVd

[

H
;
i
s

NOMENEIISROO HOd JOX

i

Hi
fi

]
8

P2 S i
T - LIF (PSR) Hd

=
IrPEE vARCT: HOvIE dTEIRNEIA

NE 3L "W WIINID LuodmEN T 99
Y'd LOFLINMY — NOSTYVD ¥ HiTNNIX

BIBG - LTF (Fak) Xv'd

RLRIPOT ¥V

T4 'HOVIE WTvd 1630
SAV AUVOLEEN GOLr

)
NITTING FIVHOQLS JUY INIE —ITAVA OF5RK

] g atmtetiten] sbe] o] wni e revm|_anow ocaii|
T I

srws e 19 |everss aa rve Twzna| oo, | weamanmas| M SIRERL SRR &
e v 30 prverd 49 | oo e 5 | R vcaaeos | &
avas aliva v - O | v ~TD it - wu Tz ot | €3
Foa) Tou [ e N | &
= T TR [ | o, | B e T T T )
arwssama 10t s e b || e | i s roum| B inca aird | 8
Aruvwva e Ty W || v | o Mo NAGa | s | e eme| senual naa o G

Ced S TSR U] B |y | ot | mecs 3y mcan | ree | S | s enaa camrd |
svam o ataa: |1 e e | DT v e e | 180 | T ey | Sanucl wnai ol | 63
Lras 1) sl ey IR Tertimn| | man | S e | Zeos e e | 63
re umn e ] I T o] na [ wm s | s e e | @
= W o e BRI T R L T ] o Sy
ira Lo et s | vt | 2L nvwoa|  wen | s | s mca g | @)

- oz ] iy =TS | N BTV |

bl e ANQICTD i ol WO i HALA T | DT

1]

@ [
[® ]

U

W E BT Q20T "Ll ZT000 D



SHOIHALNI
OHINNY14d
NDIS34

Va s YAIHOT 'HOVAE WA 1SIM
A SNa, WaET TN 111z

/



SHOIHILNI
BNINNY1d
NDIS3Q
Wd - LDILIHDHY
NOSTuYD
HLINNaY B

-



7280 West Palmetto Park Road
Suite 105
Boca Raton, FL 33433

Englneermg Inc. Phone: 561-325-6700

4200 WESTGATE AVENUE
DRAINAGE SUMMARY

INTRODUCTION:

The proposed development is a 1.43+ acre parcel that is currently a vacant cleared lot. The development proposes to
construct a self-storage building with associated parking, drive aisles, and landscaping.

EXISTING CONDITIONS:

The affected area is currently vacant and is located on the south side of Westgate Avenue in unincorporated Palm
Beach County. The existing site does not have any drainage facilities. The site is within the LWDD service area, but is
not adjacent to any of their facilities. The site is bordered on the East by a residential development, the South by a
stormwater pond, the West by a SFWMD 40’ wide drainage right-of-way with conveyance pipe, and on the North by
the Westgate Avenue right-of-way.

PROPOSED DESIGN:

The proposed development will require pretreatment and storage of the stormwater runoff per state requirements. The
development’s drainage system includes installation of pavement, curbs, grass swales, storm inlets, exfiltration trench,
and conveyance piping. The site is within the C-51 basin and is allowed offsite discharge. The site is currently
designed to contain the 25-year 3-day runoff onsite without offsite connection but a bleeder pipe may be utilized if
found to be beneficial.

The site will be required to provide 0.5” of dry pre-treatment for water quality which is accomplished within the
proposed exfiltration trench. The state water quality requirements will also be provided within the exfiltration
trenching.

A perimeter berm will be set at a minimum elevation to contain the velume of runcff from the 25-year 3-day storm
event., The minimum pavement grade will be at or above the staging if the 10-year 1-day storm event. The finish floor
will be at or above the minimum of the FEMA flood map elevation or the calculated 100-year 3-day storm event.

The site meets the land use and grading assumptions of the master permit with the F.F.E set to 18.50°’ NGVD and the
perimeter berm set to 17.20° NGVD min. The table below shows the approved and proposed land use breakdown

CONCLUSION

The proposed development is in compliance with the storm water criteria set forth in the state code. The development
will provide onsite storage storm mitigation. The amount of proposed exfiltration trench exceeds the required amount
to provide water quality. Given the above the proposed development will not adversely impact the adjacent properties.

\\\\\1””,’//

/ — .
O -_\,,‘f"_’_iee’@ . Digitally signed
iEiEs

& NCENSE L S

S " Z by Erik J Wilczek
___:;*:- No 58216 ‘.'*:_‘_.
= * i o = Date:

a,/%\. TWEY A4S 2020.08.06
‘\\\\ 16:15:20 -04'00"'

IHIIH\\\
72,



JMD ENGINEERING, INC.
September 1, 2020

" Quazi Bari, PE
PBC Department of Engineering — Traffic Division
2300 Jog Road, 3rd Floor
West Palm Beach, FL. 33411

Re:  Traffic Statement — Museo Vault - Self-Storage
Palm Beacg County, FL
PCN: 00-42-43-25-00-000-1430

Dear Mr. Bari;

A change is proposed for the above referenced site with PCN # 00-42-43-
25-00-000-1430 in unincorporated Palm Beach County, Florida. Site
location is shown in Figure 1. It is proposed to construct 49,760 square
feet of self-storage. The build out for this proposed use is 2025.

Trip Generation

Trip generation rates published by Palm Beach County and the Institute of
Transportation Engineers' (ITE) publication were utilized to determine the
daily and peak hour traffic for the site.

The proposed project is expected to generate 67 net external daily trips, 4
net a.m. peak hour trips and 7 net p.m. peak hour trips as shown in Table
1.

12773 FOREST HILL BEOULEVARD, SUITE 204, WELLINGTON, FL 33414
PHONE 561- 383-5595 FAX 561-383-5596

T4



‘TADLE

MUSEQ VAULT-4200 WESTGATE AVENUE
TRIP GENERATION COMPARISON

Land Use Intensity ! AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour
Daily Total [ In Ow_| Tainl In_| Qut
Mini Warchouse/Self Storage 49,7260 5., 75 5 3 2 8 4 4
Subtotal 49760 sl 75 5 3 2 8 4 4
Pass-By
Self Storape 10.00% 3 1 0 1 1 h!] 1
Subrotal § 1 [¢] 1 1 0 1
TOTAL RETPROFOSED TRIPS 67 4 3 1 1 4 3
ITe AH Paak Hour P Peak Hour
Landuse CODE |y Dally RaletEquation | Pawesys [ wout | RaletEquaiion Infout | RalelEqualien
Wik Wathouse/SS 15t | 1000SF. 151 10% e | 01 a5 | 0.7

Project Traffic Assignment

Based on a review of the travel time characteristics, complementary land
uses in the project's radius of influence and previous approvals, it is
expected that the distribution of traffic would be 100% onto Westgate

Aavenue,

Test 1 - Significance Analysis

As the project is not significant, no link analysis is required. The project
weekday driveway volumes are shown in Figure 2.

Test 2 — Significance Analysis

As the project is not significant, no link analysis is required.

Page 3

75




AM PEAK HOUR
(PM PEAK HOUR)
[DAILY TRIPS]

FIGURE 2
MUSEO VAULT

2
ENGINEERING, INC,

7¢




Conclusion

Based on the analysis presented above, the proposed 49,760 square foot
self-storage facility meets the TPS standards.

If there are any questions regarding this analysis, please do not hesitate to
call me at 561-383-5595.

Sincerely,
JMD ENGINEERING, INC Digitally signed
T Sk by JOHN M
John M. Donaldson, P.E.,, PTOE  §;/ “1™ 3 DONALDSON
T . - E - . . SIATE o i3 ::;53:
ransportation Engineet ; s Date: 2020.09.01
Florida Registration 06:53:52 -04'00"

Number 40568
Engineering Business
Number CA00009514
Aftachments

Page 5

77



saA ozoz/efe £¥50-¥85-T95 {ou SIedh S TZ Aspjuan 000°0TS 54| HN PAIg 3300Y23B%0) 9EST aoueuAuiety|  SI0W T3 SINRIG SIRININ
198u1A Joj} jueys uopiays ulfsenn/ijosied R neday 3Py

saA 0z0T/3/6 0097-¥89-195 A |BM UBLIN s1eah /T liodhed 000°0TS L2 oN PAIg AJDUILIES GSIT 131U90 ase3 Aeq 3483 1 A0 13pUal
sak 0zoT/v/e {0} +¥9t-0¥5-195 3]eH StUON sieak gg [losAedfuay 000°01S S3A n Vi “40 A9y204 2042 sueUUIEW S30IAIAS
E60T-685-T195 R Neday 3Py SANOWNINY IAIBUIBLY

saA 0zZ0Z/vi6 22T0-68Z-T95| (anys Auuag) gnys au3jsen sweahg floshed/juay 000°01S EEN HN|  {suownol yiesg wied) safes pelay [LEITELTTS

IIeLL ATEUNIN ‘N PEET
sah 0zZ0Z/v/6 {2} 598/-70E-T95 painssy stdiiyd-ues( siead Tz way 000°0TS SaA HN|  pAig saqumipeayD ZEST 11BY34/30140 [EIIPIIN UGISIA PRJueApY
{a1038) #THE-£89-T95
ZeaWo)|  pannoans| #PE0) uonedn) 0)|  Zp:senbed| IIBE| esie-gng $$3IpPY SSaUISNg JO adAL S5aUISNg JO SWEN
“ofdde s1eq JUeana3E| pasn 2q 03 SpUNg JUOWY ovEom
"SIE3K JO 1IN N

133HS ONIDVYL NOLLYIINddV/1SIHILIN] - WYEDOYd NYOT ITaVAIDNCA 4317138 AINIDYING SSINISNG TIVINS 6T-GIACD YU ILYDLSIM




a-4- 35U

WESTGATEBELVEDERE HOMEN

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES
COMMUNITY REDVELOPMENT AGENCY

COVID-19
SMALL BUSINESS EMERGENCY RELIEF
FORGIVABLE LOAN PROGRAM

(EFFECTIVE JUNE 9, 2020)

Westgate CRA
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215
Wes” Palm Beach, FL 33409
(561) 640-8181
www.wesigatecra,org

71




PROGRAM DESCRIPTION AND RULES

The COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program (“Program”) is created to
provide direct financial emergency relief to small businesses within the Westgate community
redevelopment area. The Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency (“Westgate
CRA or CRA”) recognizes that small businesses are being forced to make unprecedented decisions amid
the COVID-19 pandemic. Efforts to mitigate the spread of the novel coronavirus by local and state
governments has resuited in business closures, reductions in services, disruptions in inventory supply
chains, impacts to cash flow, and payroll deficits. The Program is intended to support the retention of
small businesses vital to the overall economic health of the redevelopment area, protect and support
capital improvements undertaken and planned by the CRA, and to prevent the creation of further slum
and urban blight, pursuant to the goals and objectives of the Westgate CRA Community Redevelopment
Plan.

Through the Program, the Westgate CRA will provide businesses with 25 or fewer employees up to
$10,000 in an interest free loan. If the business can demonstrate compliance with the Program and that
the loan was used towards rent, payroll support, inventory purchases, utility expenses, upgrades to
technology to facilitate remote working, and/or expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior
spaces to accommodate 6’ physical separation within 1 year of the loan date, the loan will be forgiven,
and the business will not be required to repay the loan. Loans will be awarded on a first-come, first-
served basis. Loan recipients will be required to sign a promissory note to ensure compliance with the
Program, loan terms, and conditions. The Westgate CRA has sole discretion to determine compliance
with the Program, loan terms, and conditions sufficient to allow forgiveness of the loan.

The Westgate CRA is a public agency, governed by the Florida Public Records Law under Chapter 119,
Florida Statutes. The CRA may produce any documents provided by loan applicants upon receipt of a
public records request, subject to any exemptions provided by Fiorida law. If the loan applicant believes
that any information is proprietary and exempt from public records such as a trade secret, the loan
applicant should indicate such in the application.

PROGRAM FUNDING

The Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Forgivable Loan Program offers financial assistance to the-
business in the form of a forgivable loan for eligibie expenses, up to $10,000, associated with rent, payroll
support, inventory purchases, utility expenses, technology upgrades to facilitate remote working, and/or
expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior spaces to accommodate 6’ physical separation. The
Program will be funded with Tax Increment Financing in accordance with the CRA’s Redevelopment Plan. A
total amount of $150,000 is considered for the Program.

FROGRAM ELIGIBILITY

Loan applicants must meet all of the following requirements in order to be considered eligible to receive
Program loan funding: : E
= Must be located within the Westgate CRA redeveloprient area (see attached boundary map);
v Loan applicant must be a business that was or became operational (as evidenced by a Certificate
of Occupancy or Paim Beach County Business Tax Receipt) prior to January 1, 2020; .

itials: 30O
2
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

A



= Loan applicant must be the business entity (or d/b/a) named on the corporate documents, and
the application must be executed by the principal/owner(s) named on the corporate documents.
If a corporate entity, the principal must execute a personal guarantee for the loan;

= Must be a for-profit, privately held business with less than 25 employees;

*» Must provide proof that the business is properly entitled and licensed by all necessary levels of
government;

* Businesses must have an executed one (1) year minimum lease;

*  Business must employ a minimum of two (2) full-time equivalent W-2 employees whose wages
are reported to the state and federal government; one (1) position occupied by the business
owner may count toward the required job positions;

» |If any individual is the Principal/Owner for more than one eligible business, the Principal/owner
may only sign the application on behalf of one business. (Note: this means that if one or more
eligible businesses have a Principal/Owner in common, only one of those businesses may apply
for the Program, even if the business(s) has(have} more than one Principal/Owner).

The following businesses are automatically considered ineligible for assistance under the Program:
» Businesses that are prohibited uses within the Westgate Community Redevelopment Area
Overlay (WCRAOQ) or certain sub-areas of the WCRAO including, but not limited to: adult
entertainment, convenience stores, employment agencies, gas and fuel sales, self-service
storage, or contractor storage yards; _

» Businesses that do not further the redevelopment goals of the Westgate CRA Community
Redevelopment Plan including, but not limited to firearm sales, check cashing stores, adult
arcades, pawn shops, liquor stores, smoke/e-cig or vape shops, tattoo shops, or any other
use as determined by the Westgate CRA Board or designee;

» Not for profit organizations or places of worship;

= Businesses with more than 25 and less than two (2) full-time equivalent employees;

= Businesses which are publicly traded; and,

= Businesses that do not report employees’ wages.

The following types of businesses are eligible o receive funding under the Program inciude, but
are not limited to:
= Restaurants, professional/general offices (based on NAICS codes), medical/dental offices,
neighborhood grocers, brick and mortar retail sales, veterinary clinics, catering services,
personal services, financial institutions, and home-based businesses or home-based day
cares with a residential address in the CRA.

LOAN TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The maximum amount of loan to any one business under the Program is $10,000. Loan applicants may
apply multiple times if loaned less than the maximum amount, but no loan applicant will receive more
than the maximum amount in total. If the maximum amount of funding to the Program is later increased,
loan applicants that were loaned $10,000 may reapply for additional funding unti! the new maximum is
reached.

nitials: N
: 3
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

%



Loans shall be interest-free, and the loan amount shall be due to be repaid to the Westgate CRA one {1)
year from the date of the loan. Loan applicants will be required to sign a promissory note to ensure
compliance with the loan, program terms, and conditions {see attached sample).

However, if the loan applicant provides evidence acceptable to the CRA of an amount equivalent to the
loan, or any part thereof, that has been paid by the loan applicant to employees in the form of payroll,
or to inventory suppliers, utility providers, receipt of purchase of technology or equipment to facilitate
remote working, and/or invoices for expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior spaces to
accommodate 6’ physical separation, then that amount may be forgiven, in which case the loan applicant
would not be required to repay such amount to the CRA. Loan funds may be used towards total payroll
expenses including wages and benefits, but may not be used towards employee bonuses. Evidence to
support loan and promissory note forgiveness includes but is not limited to invoices, receipts, paystubs,
utility bills, or other acceptable evidence of payment or expenses associated with the loan request. Loan
applicants may redact sensitive information such as social security numbers, etc. No cash payments will
he accepted as evidence in support of a request for loan forgiveness. Loan applicants may request loan
forgiveness at any time between the CRA loan check date and the loan repayment date by submitting a
request and the required evidence to the Westgate CRA. All evidence must be submitted to the Westgate
CRA one (1) month prior to the loan repayment date electronically to Denise Penneli at
dpennell@pbcgov.org or by mailing a hard copy to Westgate CRA, 1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215,
West Palm Beach, FL 33409, attention to Denise Pennell, Senior Planner/Project Manager. The Westgate
CRA Board will review the evidence and determine whether the loan is eligible to be forgiven.

The Westgate CRA Board has sole discretion to determine what evidence is acceptable, to ask for more
information, or different evidence to support any loan application or any request for loan forgiveness.
Westgate CRA staff will notify the loan applicant on the determination as to whether the loan is deemed
forgiven within 30 days of receipt of the evidence supporting the request for forgiveness. The loan may
be prepaid, in whole or in part, without penalty, at. any time prior to the date on which repayment is
due.

All loan checks from the Westgate CRA to the successful loan applicant will be made out to the applicant
business entity.

APPLICATION PROCESS

Applications can be downloaded from the Westgate CRA website at westgatecra.org or may be obtained
by email. All loan applicants are strongly encouraged to speak with CRA staff in order to determine
eligibility before submitting an application. Please contact Denise Pennell at dpennell@pbcgov.org for
assistance. Applications will not be considered until all required documentation is submitted to the
Waestgate CRA office by sending the application electronically or by dropping off a hard copy to 1280 N,
Congress Avenue, Suite 215, West Palm Beach, FL 33409, between the hours of 9:00 A.M. — 2:00 P.M.
with attention to Elizée Michel, Executive Director. Loan -applicants are STRONGLY encouraged to
submit applications electronically. Applications will be considered by the Westgate CRA Board at their
regularly scheduled monthly Board meeting on the 2" Monday of each month. Completed applications
must be submitted no later than two (2) weeks before the monthly CRA Board meeting to be considered
within that month.

Initials; ,é%

4
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

BA



Application to this Program is not a guarantee of funding. Approval for funding is at the sole discretion
of the Westgate CRA Board, and subject to availability of funds from the CRA’s annual budget. Loan
applicants wil! be notified of loan approval in writing by email.

Loan funding must be used for payment of rent, utility bills, employee payroll (excluding bonuses),
upgrades to technology to facilitate remote working, and/or expenses associated with the
reconfiguration of interior spaces to accommodate 6 physical separation.

Applications will be considered on a first-come, first-served basis. Applications are not considered fully
submitted until all supporting documents have been received. If the loan amount requested, or part
thereof, includes expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior spaces to accommodate &’
physical separation, the Westgate CRA reserves the right to visit the business location during the loan
vetting period.

Application packets must include (please check):
" Copy of the corporate documents for the applying business entity (an active copy of your
registered business as shown on SunBiz.Org).
L Copy of Palm Beach County occupational license (Business Tax Receipt or BTR).

[ Documentation to support the loan applicant's request for approval including a breakdown of
eligible expenses for rent, payroll, inventory, utility expenses, and/or technology upgrades.
Examples include, but are not limited to: lease agreements, invoices, receipts, paystubs, utility
bills or other acceptabie evidence of payment or expenses associated with the loan request, Loan
applicants may redact sensitive information such as specified above.

4" Completed, signed, and notarized application (attached).
[J W-9 Form (attached).

[l Other proof as necessary to evidence compliance with Funding Eligibility.

SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION IS NOT A GUARANTEE OF APPROVAL.

it is the responsibility of the loan applicant to READ AND UNDERSTAND
all Program rules, eligibility, loan terms and conditions, and this application.

NOTICE TO THIRD PARTIES: The loan application and loan do not create any rights for third parties. Nor
shall issuance of a loan result in any obligation on the part of the Westgate CRA to any third party. The
Westgate CRA is not required to verify that entities that have contracted with the loan applicant have
been paid in full, or that such entities have paid any vendors or subcontractors in full.

Initials: _} s
5 .
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

L3



LOAN APPLICANT SIGNATURES:

All Principal/Owner(s) eligible to sign on behalf of the loan applicant must sign this application on
behalf of the loan applicant. For the purposes of this Program, the term “Principal/Owner” means a
principal or owner of the business:

1. Principal/Owner Signature: \BG\C/—’-/ } e Date: _£) .»7«’/0 ‘f//Z@m

Printed Name: \]T:m—u Pr =Y Title: _ ©e0> Mol
Witness Signature: y Date: 0% (/O‘E/QOQO
Printed Name: 1YICu o P’erram _
2. Principal/Owner Signature: >/¢/‘/‘-/\"L" Date: O ‘["/a y/Z G-
Printed Name: PS5 rT=5 Title: B ,LJ‘E’:"R-..»
Witness Signature: Date:

Printed Name:

3. Principal/Owner Signature: Date:

Printed Name: Title:

Witness Signature: Date:

Printed Name:

4. Principal/Owner Signature: Date:

Printed Name: Title:

Witness Signature: Date:

Printed Name:

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this __ */ day of gé”P , 2020
by I&AN Chitivre Moet Hss Y4 {name of person acknowledging), an officer duly

4e=ggininister oaths and take acknowled . T N
. > VALERJE SOLONON o

T% MY COMMISSION# GG 919918 g

2t PIRES: Decomber 10,2023 ({§otary Seal)

“#" Bonded Thru Notary Public Underwrtrs g Sigriature of State of Florida Notary Public

Personally Known or Produced Identification FLoi0A_ Deivées & «

Type of Identification Produced: £t . O;éﬂ. L.

Initials; ESE?E

10
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

B



COVID-19 SMALL BUSINESSES EMERGENCY RELIEF FORGIVABLE LOAN PROGRAM

LOAN APPLICATION
(please type or print clearly)

BUSINESS INFORMATIQON:

Business Name (d/b/a if applicable); GEREANT 0w oxF ML (e Iﬁfmf,fﬁce/g \/‘.Sfc;/\j'

“T —f
Loan Applicant Name: Szpn s ien Title: _ Hanace=a // gl kS
Business Address: /532 Opsscpobze RN Wul Pa C. RL&@.Q& Ef! ’335‘0 7

eng: _F1 226210
Business Phone: 56/ &84 14/ cell: _ %/ 302 IWES.

Email: MV (e Vislon = LivE . cel 7

Website: 112 OPT et . ¢ori

Type of Business: R&T A { ' Hours of operation: 11o 4 o aa7 o Satony

Please list expenses seeking loan funding for:

RenT

Requested loan amount: _{J. OO O

Please estimate the total loss {physical, fiscal) to your business due to the economic crisis caused by
the COVID-19 pandemic:

L5 1o bo %o og _Qansg p% YZ@M/V&,
[50c0 To _ LS. 08O 0 Pﬂ‘/’w }Z(.D’-J\d_ -

Number of full-time W-2 employees: Currently __ 47; Prior to March 15, 2020 -7—

Initials: __LP_EAS
6
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

%5



Have you had to lay off or furlough employees due to the economic crisis caused by the COVID-19

pandemic: Yes S'No d

Number of years in operation at current location: ,,Z Qg

Do you have business interruption insurance? Yes [INo Xl

Have you applied for the U.S. Office of Small Business Administration’s Economic Injury Disaster Loan
(SBA EIDL) and/or Paycheck Protection Program (PPP)?

Amount requested: bo. ose Loan received? Yes [ No [

Have you applied for the State of Florida Small Business Emergency Bridge Loan?

Amount requested: Loan received? Yes [0 No ¥

Have you applied for a Palm Beach County Cares for Business Restart Business Grant?

Amount requested: Loan received? Yes O No KX

If applicable, please provide the percentage difference in business revenue since March 15, 2020
compared to the same period last year?

If applicable, please provide the dollar value of inventory lost or spoiled as a result of the economic
crisis caused by the COVID-19 pandemic:

Do you have an executed multi-year (1-year minimum) lease agreement? Yes [ENo [

If so, monthly base rent: 288 1 FéF ead 4+ LY Slo Tose — $¥352,

Name of |andlord/property management group: H‘ftﬂic‘ro,u Reai v

Address of landlord/property management group: _ X0 M Elicler. Ne.

Business Phone: 361 £ SS 203 Cell:
email: HATREALTY & AOL . (ol

Have you applied for assistance under any other program offered by the CRA? Yes [ No ;Sk

If so, program name: Amount received:

Initials: .yzi\h

7
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small B.isiness Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

% 6



PRINCIPAL /OWNER INFORMATION:
-
1. Principal/Owner Name: ___\roa-AS A SO =N

Date of Birth: D€ /Io / ‘/‘75?' Email: _AJEas ATANMN FLO & HOTI7AC (ad7
Residential Address: 74 ¥ NEwaras qr Gl B El 33y &
Cell Phone: S&/ 202 3IRE6S

2. Principal/Owner Name:

Date of Birth: Email;

Residential Address;

Cell Phone:

3. Principal/Owner Name:

Date of Birth: . Email:

Residential Address:

Cell Phone:

4. Principal/Owner Name:

Date of Birth: Email:

Residential Address:

Cell Phone:

Note: If more than 4 principals/owners, additional sheets may be used.

Initials: _,_S.Z il
8
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program



CERTIFICATION AND WAIVER OF PRIVACY:

For purposes of this certification and waiver of privacy, the term "I" refers to the loan applicant and to
all signatories on the Program application individually. By signing and submitting the application to the
Program, each signatory represents and confirms that he or she is authorized to sign on behalf of the
foan applicant(s).

[, the undersigned loan applicant(s), certify that all information presented in this application, and all of
the information furnished in support of the application, is given for the purpose of obtaining a loan under
the Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Forgivable Loan Program, and it is true and
complete to the best of my knowledge and belief.

| further certify that | am aware of the fact that | can be penalized by fine and/or imprisonment for
making false statements or presenting false information. | further acknowledge that | have read and
understand the terms and conditions set forth and described in the Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small
Business Emergency Forgivable Loan Program.

| understand that this application is not a guarantee of a loan, and that award of loans is at the sole
discretion of the Westgate CRA Board. | understand that the purpose of the loan is to support the
retention of smali businesses vital to the overall economic health of the redevelopment area, to protect
and support capital improvements undertaken and planned by the CRA, and to prevent the creation of
slum and urban blight, furthering the implementation of the Westgate CRA Community Redevelopment
Plan, and that the CRA may decline my application for any legal reason, including the reason that
approving the loan will not further the Community Redevelopment Plan. Should my application be
approved, | understand that the Westgate CRA has the sole discretion to determine whether the
Program criteria have been met and whether the loan may be forgiven.

To the maximum extent possible, | hereby waive my rights to privacy and confidentiality for all matters
contained in this application, and give my consent to the Westgate CRA, its agents, and contractors to
examine any confidential information given herein. | further grant permission, and authorize any bank,
employers, or other public or private agency to disclose information deemed necessary to complete this
application.

| give permission to the Westgate CRA or its agents to take photos of myself and business to be used to
promote the Program.

| understand that if this application and the information furnished in support of the application are found
to be incomplete or inaccurate, it will be not processed.

Initials: AP
9
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Smal] Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

BE



SAMPLE PROMISSORY NOTE
Westgate CRA, Palm Beach County, Florida

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned ("Loan Recipient") promises to pay to the order of the
Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency {"Westgate CRA") at 1280 N. Congress
Avenue, Suite 215, West Palm Beach, FL 33409 or at such other address as may be indicated in writing,

in the manner hereinafter specified, the principal sum of dollars $_ f¢- © 6 © without interest. The

said principal shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America, on [date] (22 [0%1202‘5
and in the following manner:

Thesumof$_{n Oeco representing a payment of principal shall be due and payable one year from
the date set forth above {"Repayment Date").

If, prior to the Repayment Date, the Loan Recipient provides evidence acceptable to the Westgate CRA
that an amount equivalent to the principal or any part thereof has been paid by the Loan Recipient
towards rent, payroll for employees (excluding bonuses), utility providers, inventory providers, or
toward expenses to upgrade technology to facilitate remote working, the Westgate CRA, in its sole
discretion, may forgive that amount, in which case the Loan Recipient shall not be required to pay such
amount to the Westgate CRA. Evidence may be provided at any time prior to the Repayment Date, and
may be provided on an ongoing basis as such evidence becomes available. Loan Recipient must abide by
all terms and conditions of the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency
COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Forgivable Loan Program in order to be eligible for the loan
forgiveness described in this paragraph.

This note may be prepaid, in whole or in par, without penalty, at any time prior to maturity. If payment
due under this note is not paid within 10 days of the Repayment Date, a late charge of 5% of the payment
due shall be added to the principal. In the event of defauit in the payment of this note, and if the same
is placed in the hands of any attorney for collection, the undersigned hereby agrees to pay all costs of
collection, including a reasonable attorneys' fee. This note shall be construed and enforced according to
the laws of the State of Florida and nothing in this note shall be deemed to waive any rights of the
Westgate CRA thereunder.

Makers waive demand, presentment for payment, protest, and notice of nonpayment and dishonor.
Loan Recipient Name (inciuding d/b/a): (ENZAATIOM DLE _1JLC. _{]}\m 4)4 {aticEn Ms’;mﬂ
Authorized Sighature: \ i Ol i

Q ”
Title: Oai T AL

Date: @7//07 [r092

initials: _QS_Q
11
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

%9



SAMPLE PERSONAL GUARANTY

PROMISSORY NOTE BETWEEN
WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
AND

IN CONSIDERATION of the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency (the
“Lender”) loaning Toras  Asse . TA (“Borrower”) memorialized by a Promissory Note
dated O?’/O ¥ /io iz, 2020 in the amount of $_ /8 . OO0 (the “Note”), the undersigned
individual un’condit/ionaliy and irrevocably guarantees the payment and collection of all sums due by
Borrower under the Note, and any and all amendments, addenda, extensions, renewals and
modifications thereof. The undersigned agrees that the obligations of the undersigned will be joint,
several and primary with Borrower’s obligations and not secondary. The Lender need not first pursue
action against Borrower before proceeding against the undersigned. The undersighed agrees that he is
bound by all amendments, addenda, extensions, renewals, and modifications of the Note referenced
above, whether or not the undersigned has signed the same. This Personal Guaranty is supported by
separate consideration, including but not limited to the benefit flowing to the Guarantor as an owner of
the Borrower, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by Lender and Borrower.

WITNESSES: P GUARANTOR(S): A
-é, Withess Signature: /W/?/MJ% Principal/Owner Sighature: \?\ /‘“7}/&__'

—=
Printed Name: /%’/’77%0 ]ﬂ/ﬁ/p@ Printed Name: 74 Ssuee

Date: Q{/ ‘l‘[/)"‘)”

Principal/Owner Signature: XC"“MX\

Printed Name: %eo:kt?? LOEG.V\ Printed Name: AS LJ‘CQ‘E?’M5
Date: 04 g@q R}BOQO

Witness Signature:

(Business owner’s signature must be notarized)

The foregoing instrument was acknowiedgcyf before me onthis_8%  day of SQ,Q irg& £5 , 202

e

B 15 MY COMMISSION # GG 319918

& EXPIRES: Decamber 10,2023 i
= Bonded Thru Notary Pubilic Undemwrlters 1§ - .
T srnrasaremgiP roduced ldentification

A

by _} ‘%H?ﬁ’cf,, TeAK -Fhil, e «(name of person acknowledging) by! an officer du ;,‘? :
authorized by law to administer oaths and take aW%W T
d| s, VRERBSSEAILN / P4 =__ |

Sig@/_at/uLa:*A&Jf‘ﬁ?g:"c;c Florida Notary Public

/

N

HOWOTOS JHT3vA

Type of Identification Produced: fbbé’f;ﬂﬂ Déavins Lat

£202 ‘01 Jaqu20ag :5audXT
818816 DD # NOISSIANOD AW 3

Initials: _L) i
12 |
Westgate CRA COViD-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

40



G420

HETCATERELVEDRRE HOVES

COMMUNTY REDEVELOPHENT AGENCY

WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES
COMMUNITY REDVELOPMENT AGENCY

COVID-19
SMALL BUSINESS EMERGENCY RELIEF
FORGIVABLE LOAN PROGRAM

(EFFECTIVE JUNE 9,2020)

Westgate CRA
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215
West Palm Beach, FI. 33409
(561} 640-8181

www.westgatectra.org

@




PROGRAM DESCRIPTION AND RULES

The COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program (“Program”) is created to
provide direct financial emergency relief to small businesses within the Westgate community
redevelopment area. The Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency (“Westgate
CRA or CRA”) recognizes that small businesses are being forced to make unprecedented decisions amid
the COVID-19 pandemic. Efforts to mitigate the spread of the novel coronavirus by local and state
governments has resulted in business closures, reductions in services, disruptions in inventory supply
chains, impacts to cash flow, and payroll deficits. The Program is intended to support the retention of
small businesses vital to the overall economic health of the redevelopment area, protect and support
capital improvements undertaken and planned by the CRA, and to prevent the creation of further slum
and urban blight, pursuant to the goals and objectives of the Westgate CRA Community Redevelopment
Plan.

Through the Program, the Westgate CRA will provide businesses with 25 or fewer employees up fo
$10,000 in an interest free loan. If the business can demonstrate compliance with the Program and that
the loan was used towards rent, payroll support, inventory purchases, utility expenses, upgrades to
technology to facilitate remote working, and/or expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior
spaces to accommodate &' physical separation within 1 year of the loan date, the loan will be forgiven,
and the business will not be required to repay the loan. Loans will be awarded on a first-come, first-
served basis. Loan recipients will be required to sign a promissory note to ensure compliance with the
Program, loan terms, and conditions. The Westgate CRA has sole discretion to determine compliance
with the Program, loan terms, and conditions sufficient to allow forgiveness of the foan.

The Westgate CRA is a public agency, governed by the Florida Public Records Law under Chapter 119,
Florida Statutes. The CRA may produce any documents provided by loan applicants upon receipt of a
public records request, subject to any exemptions provided by Florida law. If the loan applicant believes
that any information is proprietary and exempt from public records such as a trade secret, the loan
applicant should indicate such in the application.

PROGRAM FUNDING

The Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Forgivable Loan Program offers financial assistance to the
husiness in the form of a forgivable loan for eligible expenses, up to $10,000, associated with rent, payroll
support, inventory purchases, utility expenses, technology upgrades to facilitate remote working, and/or
expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior spaces to accommodate 6’ physical separation. The
Program will be funded with Tax Increment Financing in accordance with the CRA’s Redevelopment Plan. A
total amount of $150,000 is considered for the Program.

PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY

Loan applicants must meet afl of the following requirements in order to be considered eligible to receive
Program loan funding:

= Must be located within the Westgate CRA redevelopment area (see attached boundary map);

o Loan applicant must be a business that was or became operational (as evidenced by a Certificate

of Occupancy or Palm Beach County Business Tax Receipt) prior to January 1, 2020;
. )
2/
s
Initials; :

2
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

a9




= Loan applicant must be the business entity {or d/b/a) named on the corporate documents, and
the application must be executed by the principal/owner(s) named on the corporate documents.
If a corporate entity, the principal must execute a personal guarantee for the loan;

»  Must be a for-profit, privately held business with less than 25 employees;

= Must provide proof that the business is properly entitled and licensed by all necessary levels of
government;

«  Businesses must have an executed one (1) year minimum lease;

= Business must employ a minimum of two (2} full-time equivalent W-2 employees whose wages
are reported to the state and federal government; one (1) position occupied by the business
owner may count toward the required job positions;

«  If any individual is the Principal/Owner for more than one eligible business, the Principal/owner
may only sign the application on behalf of one business. (Note: this means that if one or more
eligible businesses have a Principal/Owner in common, only one of those businesses may apply
for the Program, even if the business(s) has(have)} more than ohe Principal/Owner).

The foliowing businesses are automatically considered ineligible for assistance under the Program:
s Businesses that are prohibited uses within the Westgate Community Redevelopment Area
Overlay (WCRAQ) or certain sub-areas of the WCRAC including, but not limited to: adult
entertainment, convenience stores, employment agencies, gas and fuel sales, self-service
storage, or contractor storage yards;

»  Businesses that do not further the redevelopment goals of the Westgate CRA Community
Redevelopment Plan including, but not limited to firearm sales, check cashing stores, aduit
arcades, pawn shops, liquor stores, smoke/e-cig or vape shops, tattoo shops, or any other
use as determined by the Westgate CRA Board or designee;

* Not for profit organizations or places of worship;

s Businesses with more than 25 and less than two (2) full-time equivalent employees;

»  Businesses which are publicly traded; and,

» Businesses that do not report employees’ wages.

The following types of businesses are gligible to receive funding under the Program include, but
are not limited to:

» Restaurants, professional/general offices (based on NAICS codes), medical/dental offices,
neighborhood grocers, brick and mortar retail sales, veterinary clinics, catering services,
perscnal services, financial institutions, and home-based businesses or home-based day
cares with a residential address in the CRA.

LOAN TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The maximum amount of foan to any one business under the Program is 510,000. Loan applicants may
apply multiple times if loaned less than the maximum amount, but no loan applicant will receive more
than the maximum amount in total. If the maximum amount of funding to the Program is later increased,
loan applicants that were loaned 510,000 may reapply for additional funding until the new maximum is
teached.

Pr
‘ "J
Initia}?

3
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivahie Loan Program

13



Loans shall be interest-free, and the loan amount shall be due to be repaid to the Westgate CRA one (1}
year from the date of the foan. Loan applicants will be required to sign a promissory note to ensure
compliance with the loan, program terms, and conditions {see attached sample).

However, if the loan applicant provides evidence acceptable to the CRA of an amount equivalent to the
loan, or any part thereof, that has been paid by the loan applicant to employees in the form of payroll,
or to inventory suppliers, utility providers, receipt of purchase of technology or equipment to facilitate
remote working, and/or invoices for expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior spaces to
accommodate &' physical separation, then that amount may be forgiven, in which case the loan applicant
would not be required to repay such amount to the CRA. Loan funds may be used towards total payroll
expenses including wages and benefits, but may not be used towards employee bonuses. Evidence to
support loan and promissory note forgiveness includes but is not limited to invoices, receipts, paystubs,
utility bills, or other acceptable evidence of payment or expenses associated with the loan request. Loan
applicants may redact sensitive information such as social security numbers, etc. No cash payments will
be accepted as evidence in support of a request for loan forgiveness. Loan applicants may request loan
forgiveness at any time between the CRA loan check date and the loan repayment date by submitting a
request and the required evidence to the Westgate CRA. All evidence must be submitted to the Westgate
CRA one (1) month prior to the loan repayment date electronically to Denise Pennell at
dpenneli@pbcgov.org or by mailing a hard copy to Westgate CRA, 1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215,
West Palm Beach, FL 33409, attention to Denise Pennell, Senior Planner/Project Manager. The Westgate
CRA Board will review the evidence and determine whether the loan is eligible to be forgiven.

The Westgate CRA Board has sole discretion to determine what evidence is acceptable, to ask for more
information, or different evidence to support any loan application or any req uest for loan forgiveness.
Westgate CRA staff will notify the loan applicant on the determination as to whether the loan is deemed
forgiven within 30 days of receipt of the evidence supporting the request for forgiveness. The loan may
be prepaid, in whole or in part, without penalty, at any time prior to the date on which repayment is
due.

All loan checks from the Westgate CRA to the successful loan applicant will be made out to the applicant
business entity,

APPLICATION PROCESS

Applications can be downloaded from the Westgate CRA website at westgatecra.crg or may be obtained
by email. All loan applicants are strongly encouraged fo speak with CRA staff in order to determine
eligibility before submitting an application. Please contact Denise Pennell at dpennell@pbcgov.org for
assistance. Applications will not be considered until all required documentation is submitted to the
Westgate CRA office by sending the application electronically or by dropping off a hard copy to 1280 N.
Congress Avenue, Suite 215, West Palm Beach, FL 33409, between the hours of 9:00 A.M. — 2:00 P.M.
with attention to Elizée Michel, Executive Director. Loan applicants are STRONGLY encouraged to
submit applications electronically. Applications will be considered by the Westgate CRA Board at their
regularly scheduled monthly Board meeting on the 2" Monday of each month. Completed applications
must be submitted no later than two {2) weeks before the monthly CRA Board meeting to be considered
within that month.

4
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

0/} —



Application to this Program is not a guarantee of funding. Approval for funding is at the sole discretion
of the Westgate CRA Board, and subject to availability of funds from the CRA’s annual budget. Loan
apolicants will be notified of loan approval in writing by email.

Loan funding must be used for payment of rent, utility bills, employee payroll {excluding bonuses),
upgrades to technology to facilitate remote working, and/or expenses associated with the
reconfiguration of interior spaces ta accommodate &’ physical separation.

Applications will be considered on a first-come, first-served basis. Applications are not considered fully
submitted until all supporting documents have been received. If the loan amount requested, or part
thereof, includes expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior spaces to accommodate 6’
physical separation, the Westgate CRA reserves the right to visit the business location during the loan
vetting period.

Application packets must include (please check):
[1 Copy of the corporate documents for the applying business entity (an active copy of your
registered business as shown on SunBiz.Qrg).
T1 Copy of Palm Beach County occupational license (Business Tax Receipt or BTR).

7] Documentation to support the loan applicant's request for approval including a breakdown of
eligible expenses for rent, payroll, inventory, utility expenses, and/or technology upgrades.
Examples include, but are not limited to: lease agreements, invoices, receipts, paystubs, utility
bills or other acceptable evidence of payment or expenses associated with the loan reguest. Loan
applicants may redact sensitive information such as specified above.

1 Completed, signed, and notarized application (attached).
W-9 Form (attached).

i

Other proof as necessary to evidence compliance with Funding Eligibility.

SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION IS NOT A GUARANTEE OF APPROVAL.

It is the responsibility of the loan applicant to READ AND UNDERSTAND
all Program rules, eligibility, loan terms and conditions, and this application.

NOTICE TO THIRD PARTIES: The loan application and loan do not create any rights for third parties. Nor
shall issuance of a loan result in any obligation on the part of the Westgate CRA to any third party. The
Westgate CRA is not required to verify that entities that have contracted with the loan applicant have
been paid in full, or that such entities have paid any vendors or subcontractors in full.

5
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

s




COVID-19 SMALL BUSINESSES EMERGENCY RELIEF FORGIVABLE LOAN PROGRAM

LOAN APPLICATION
{piease type or print clearly}

éf\bﬂ.. = a\e(f_g%&\
BUSINESS INFORMATION:

Business Name (d/b/a if applicable): H\W,\\@;swmm.-

. . 'ﬁ\
Loan Applicant Name: YA ezt DN Titler | Nwers -

Business Address:  \Zai_ Ny - C}-“)\;\&\cs;aa\\ NN\
T PP

Business Phone: A - 28N -G 22 Cell:  Shadr 2 —ev2.22

Email: mm\ €@ DA N — U s

Website: ‘S\fﬂué‘l\r\&‘;\;\ﬁ'f:\;\r:ﬁﬁ\qlf ¢ m L ET v

Type of Business: &&}d"-w\-_ A e e Hours of operation: AQ - fe i & e

. OSSN,
Please list expenses seeking loan funding for: AN e = Y OO enms

Q?m \c_.:'.cu\_\.

Requested loan amount: _\C> _\C%D_ =)

Please estimate the total loss (physical, fiscal) to your business due to the economic crisis caused by
the COVID-19 pandemic:

NSO o .eO
LY

Number of full-time W-2 employees: Currently k 5 Prior to March 15, 2020 O\

6
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

9¢



Have you had to Ia;y‘( or furlough employees due to the economic crisis caused by the COVID-12
pandemic: Yes No [J

Number of years in operation at current location: (c -..\..;E.* -

Do you have business interruption insurance? Yes Edo C

Have you applied for the U.S. Office of Small Business Administration’s Economic Injury Disaster Loan
(SBA EIDL) and/or Paycheck Protection Program (PPP)?

Amount requested: T4\ i (=0 . & O |oan received? Yes % O

Have you applied for the State of Florida Small Business Emergency Bridge Loan?

Amount requested: Loan received? Yes [ No Iﬂ/

Have you applied for a Palm Beach County Cares for Business Restart Business Grant?

Amount requested: Loan received? Yes [ No

If applicable, please provide the percentage difference in business revenue since March 15, 2020
compared to the same period last year? SO (o \é_.:-x.:-

If applicable, please provide the dollar value of inventory lost or spoiled as a result of the economic
crisis caused by the COVID-19 pandemic:

Do you have an executed multi-year {1-year minimum) lease agreement? Yes E@ [

If s0, monthly base rent: NG B (SN

Name of landlord/property management group: __ &t CL- L LC.

Address of landlord/property management group: (N, Yoo iy € Jo- L

Business Phone: ~“SHA~SNS (oS Cell:

Email: &mqf)&ww\ Q%\Q{\I\D\\_}’ﬁ“\:\a@\ il NV
. \u 2y

Have you applied for assistance under any other program offered by the CRA? Yes [ No I'Q//

Initi:

If 50, program name: Amount received: /j,///

7
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

q17




PRINCIPAL/OWNER INFORMATION:
1. Principal/Owner Name: SN oSN e %\mh
Date of Birth: _\ -\ NS Email: M\r\_\\ @wg}\\ﬁ-ﬂ\k v g

Residential Address: e ] SN Xy Dee s ﬁ_a;\be_ ('f_:;_r:ége_
Ser o Vot L 2k A e

Cell Phone:
e\ P A2 P

2. Principal/Owner Name:

Date of Birth: Email:

Residential Address:

Cell Phone:

3. Principal/Owner Name:

Date of Birth: Email:

Residential Address:

Cell Phone:

4, Principal/Owner Name:

Date of Birth: Email:

Residential Address:

Cell Phone:

Note: If more than 4 principals/owners, additional sheets may be used.

‘7
Initialst/zf/z

8
Woestgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

TN



CERTIFICATION AND WAIVER OF PRIVACY:

For purposes of this certification and waiver of privacy, the term ™" refers to the loan applicant and to
all signatories on the Program application individually. By signing and submitting the application to the
Program, each signatory represents and confirms that he or she is authorized to sign on behalf of the
loan applicant{s).

|, the undersigned loan applicant(s), certify that all information presented in this application, and all of
the information furnished in support of the application, is given for the purpose of obtaininga loan under
the Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Forgivable Loan Program, and it is true and
complete to the best of my knowledge and belief.

| further certify that 1 am aware of the fact that | can be penalized by fine and/or imprisonment for
making false statements or presenting false information. | further acknowledge that | have read and
understand the terms and conditions set forth and described in the Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small
Business Emergency Forgivable Loan Program.

| understand that this application is not a guarantee of a loan, and that award of loans is at the sole
discretion of the Westgate CRA Board. | understand that the purpose of the loan is to support the
retention of small businesses vital to the overall economic health of the redevelopment area, to protect
and support capital improvements undertaken and planned by the CRA, and to prevent the creation of
slum and urban blight, furthering the implementation of the Westgate CRA Community Redevelopment
Plan, and that the CRA may decline my application for any legal reason, including the reason that
approving the loan will not further the Community Redevelopment Plan. Should my application be
approved, | understand that the Westgate CRA has the sole discretion to determine whether the
Program criteria have been met and whether the loan may be forgiven.

To the maximum extent possible, | hereby waive my rights to privacy and confidentiality for all matters
contained in this application, and give my consent to the Westgate CRA, its agents, and contractors to
examine any confidential information given herein. | further grant permission, and authorize any bank,

employers, or other public or private agency to disclose information deemed necessary to complete this
application.

| give permission to the Westgate CRA or its agents to take photos of myself and business to be used to
promote the Program.

| understand that if this application and the information furnished in support of the application are found
to be incomplete or inaccurate, it will be not processed.

/4

Initials?

5
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

Y



LOAN APPLICANT SIGNATURES:

All Principal/Owner(s} eligible to sigh on behalf of the loan applicant must sign this application on
behalf of the loan applicant. For the purposes of this Program, the term “Principal/Owner” means a

principal or owner of the business:
Zf/ﬁf/ﬁ )Mate A -z 2 O

1. Principal/Owner Slgnature

Printed Name: %)\a:\eﬁe__ m Title: 5\—-“\3:’:&,‘-; -

f Date:  A-A-ro2

Witness Signature:

Printed Name: Dt’,\\’nq ( 'LlﬁrcLOV

2. Principal/Owner Signature: Date:
Printed Name: Title:
Witness Signature: Date:
Printed Name:
3. Principal/Owner Signature: Date:
Printed Name: Title:
Withess Signature: Date:
Printed Name:
4, Principal/Owner Signature: Date;
Printed Name: Title:
Withess Sighature: Date:

Printed Name:
s acknowledged before me on this fZ day ofbé,{/w& , 2020

The fo/}iomg mstrument 8
(name of person acknowledging), a/woﬁ(cer duly
authorlzed by Iaw g\admm}ﬁter oaths and take aingements
\

Tis00e Vo))

Z Signature of State of Florida Nf)tary Public

W @MM
'5.%;,1'-
0]
‘it
’
aE=®
2
mmme
o
3
[ ]
o,
| ey
Q)
[12]
O,
o
[¢]
3
=
—+
(&)
5]
&
[}
=

Personally 2
l.?

Hry
z s o
WWﬂdﬂte‘H§ 5
B, OF FLORION ,
’mmum\“‘ A
InisitE

Type of ldent

10
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

iy s



PROMISSORY NOTE
Waestgate CRA, Palm Beach County, Florida

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned {"Loan Recipient") promises to pay to the order of the
Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency ("Westgate CRA") at 1280 N. Congress
Avenue, Suite 215, West Palm Beach, FL 33409 or at such other address as may be indicated in writing,
in the manner hereinafter specified, the principal sum of dollars $ A& w2 without interest. The
said principal shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America, on [date]

and in the following manner:

The sum of S \&, o200 representing a payment of principal shall be due and payable one year from
the date set forth above ("Repayment Date").

If, prior to the Repayment Date, the Loan Recipient provides evidence acceptable to the Westgate CRA
that an amount equivalent to the principal or any part thereof has been paid by the Loan Recipient
towards rent, payroll for employees (excluding bonuses}, utility providers, inventory providers, or
toward expenses to upgrade technology to facilitate remote working, the Westgate CRA, in its sole
discretion, may forgive that amount, in which case the Loan Recipient shall not be required to pay such
amount to the Westgate CRA. Evidence may be provided at any time prior to the Repayment Date, and
may be provided on an ongoing basis as such evidence becomes available. Loan Recipient must abide by
all terms and conditions of the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency
COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Forgivable Loan Program in order to be eligible for the loan
forgiveness described in this paragraph.

This note may be prepaid, in whole or in part, without penalty, at any time prior to maturity. If payment
due under this note is not paid within 10 days of the Repayment Date, a late charge of 5% of the payment
due shall be added to the principal. In the event of default in the payment of this note, and if the same
is placed in the hands of any attorney for collection, the undersigned hereby agrees to pay all costs of
collection, including a reasonable attorneys' fee. This note shall be construed and enforced according to
the laws of the State of Florida and nothing in this note shall be deemed to waive any rights of the
Westgate CRA thereunder.

Makers waive demand, presentment for payment, protest, and notice of nonpayment and dishonor.

N Y NSNS
Loan Recipient Name {includi M e £ S o
Authorized Signature: P e AT M//&

8

Title: s b b

Date: AN

]nitiﬂ/

11
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

1n/ —



PERSONAL GUARANTY

PROMISSORY NOTE BETWEEN
WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
AND

%:"\M\\ gﬂw;i TN~

IN CONSIDERATION of the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency {the
“lender”) loaning ":\-:—\_Scz»iﬂ—\eas&z’iﬂ- (“Borrower”) memorialized by a Promissory Note
dated Q. ~&n-2620 20200n the amount of $ N oo .2 (the “Note”), the undersigned
individual unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees the payment and collection of all sums due by
Borrower under the Note, and any and all amendments, addenda, extensions, renewals and
modifications thereof. The undersigned agrees that the obligations of the undersigned will be joint,
several and primary with Borrower’s obligations and not secondary. The Lender need not first pursue
action against Borrower before proceeding against the undersigned. The undersigned agrees that he is
bound by all amendments, addenda, extensions, renewals, and modifications of the Note referenced
above, whether or not the undersigned has signed the same. This Personal Guaranty is supported hy
separate consideration, inciuding but not limited to the benefit flowing to the Guarantor as an owner of
the Borrower, recemt(Q‘ which is hereby acknowledged by Lender and Borrower.

WITNESSES: NSAU/@ GUARANTOR(S): .

Witness Sighature?, Principal/Owner Signature; _
{«"

Printed Name: be\\mxu @uu\hiﬁ(\@ Printed Name: V\cpm \"""" MC - D\"l L{_lﬁ)

Date;: A -\ 2elo

Witiness Sighature: Principal/Owner Signature:

Printed Name: Printed Name:

Date: SJ—P/’!’D" d/’ 220

(Business owner's signature must be notarized) !

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this Z day of }/ 020
by MM mﬁf] U4 b (name of person acknowledgmg) by ‘an officer duly
authorlz Iaw toa ’%« |ster oaths and take acknowlgggements. /
§$ Seal), _/’M\_, /L'{JL ,
§§ Signature of State of Florida Nétary Public

%25 .
. ) ) 7
Type of'{d%aﬁ S Erg\@ced. W
""lmuum\\“ Initiglsr s

12
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

102



VESTCATEBELVEDERE AR

DONMALINTY REDEVEL GPMENT AGENCY:]

WESTGATE /BELVEDERE HOMES
COMMUNITY REDVELOPMENT AGENCY

COVID-19
SMALL BUSINESS EMERGENCY RELIEF
FORGIVABLE LOAN PROGRAM

(EFFECTIVEIUNES, 2020)

Westgate CRA
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215
, West Palm Beach, FL 33409
(561) 640-8181

www.wg;tga EECFB.OI‘g

(0%



PROGRAM DESCRICTION ARG RULES

The COVID-18 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program {“Program”} is created to
provide direct financial emergency relief to small businesses within the Westgate community
redevelopment area, The Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency (“Westgate
CRA or CRA") recognizes that small businesses are belng forced to make unprecedented decisions amid
the COVID-19 pandemic. Efforts to mitigate the spread of the novel coronavirus by local and state
governments has resulted in business closures, reductions in services, disruptions in inventory supply
chains, impacts to cash flow, and payroll deficits. The Program is intended to support the retention of
small businesses vital to the overall economic health of the redevelopment area, protect and support
capital improvements undertaken and planned by the CRA, and to prevent the creation of further slum
and urban blight, pursuant to the goals and objectives of the Westgate CRA Community Redevelopment
Plan,

Through the Program, the Westgate CRA will provide businesses with 25 or fewer employees up to
$10,000 in an interest free Joan. If the business can demonstrate compliance with the Program and that
the loan was used fowards rent, payroll support, inventory purchases, utility expenses, upgrades to
technology to facilitate remote working, and/or expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior
spaces to accommodate &' physical separation within 1 year of the loan date, the loan wilt be forgiven,
and the business will not be required to repay the loan. Loans will be awarded on a first-come, first-
served basis. Loan recipients wiil be required to sign a promissory note to ensure compliance with the
Program, foan terms, and conditions. The Westgate CRA has sole discretion to determine compliance
with the Program, loan terms, and conditions sufficient to allow forgiveness of the loan.

The Westgate CRA is a public agency, governed by the Florida Public Records Law under Chapter 119,
Florida Statutes. The CRA may produce any documents provided by foan applicants upon receipt of a
public records request, subject to any exemptions provided by Florida law. If the loan applicant believes
that any information is proprietary and exempt from public records such as a trade secret, the loan
applicant should indicate such in the application.

PROGRAM FUNDING

The Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Forgivable Loan Program offers financial assistance to the
business in the form of a forgivable loan for eligible expenses, up to $10,000, associated with rent, payroll
support, inventory purchases, utility expenses, technology upgrades to facilitate remote working, and/or
axpenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior spaces to accommodate 6’ physical separation. The
Program will be funded with Tax Increment Financing in accordance with the CRA’s Redevelopment Plan. A
total amount of $150,000 is considered for the Program.

PROGRAM BLIGIBILITY
Loan applicants must meet all of the following requirements in order to be considered eligible to receive
Program loan funding:
«  Must be located within the Westgate CRA redevelopment area {see attached boundary map);
= Loan applicant must be a business that was or became operational (as evidenced by a Certificate
of Oceupancy or Palm Beach County Business Tax Receipt) prior to January %, 2020;

MH

Initials:

2
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

[0 ¢



* Loan applicant must be the business entity (or d/b/a) named on the corporate documents, and
the application must be executed by the principal/owner{s} named on the corporate documents.
if a corporate entity, the principal must execute & personal guarantee for the loan;

* Must be a for-profit, privately held business with less than 25 employees;

* Must provide proof that the business is properly entitled and licensed by all necessary levels of
government;

* Businesses must have an executed one (1) year minimum lease;

* Business must employ a minimum of two (2) full-time equivalent W-2 employees whose wages
are reported to the state and federal government; one (1} position occupied by the business
owher may count toward the required job positions;

* Wany individual is the Principal/Owner for more than one eligible business, the Principal/owner
may enly sign the application on behalf of one business. (Note: this means that if one or more
eligible businesses have a Principal/Owner in common, only one of those businesses may apply
for the Program, even if the business(s) has{have} more than one Principal/Owner).

The following businesses are automatically considered ineligible for assistance under the Program:
* Businesses that are prohibited uses within the Westgate Community Redevelopment Area
Overlay {WCRAO) or certain sub-areas of the WCRAQ including, but not limited to: adult
entertainment, convenience stores, employment agencies, gas and fuel sales, self-service
storage, or contractor storage yards;

* Businesses that do not further the redevelopment goals of the Westgate CRA Community
Redevelopment Plan including, but not limited to firearm sales, check cashing stores, adult
arcades, pawn shops, liquor stores, smoke/e-cig or vape shops, tattoo shops, or any other
use as determined by the Westgate CRA Board or designee;

= Not for profit organizations or places of worship;

® Businesses with more than 25 and less than twao (2) full-time equivalent employees;

* Businesses which are publicly traded; and,

= Businesses that do not report employees’ wages.

The following types of businesses are eligible to receive funding under the Program include, but
are not limited to:

* Restaurants, professional/general offices (based on NAICS codes), medical/dental offices,
neighborhood grocers, brick and mortar retail sales, veterinary clinics, catering services,
personal services, financial institutions, and home-based businesses or home-based day
cares with a residential address in the CRA.

LOAN TERMS AND CONTHTIONS

The maximum amount of loan to any one business under the Program is $10,000. Loan applicants may
apply multiple times if loaned less than the maximum amount, but no loan applicant will receive more
than the maximum amount in total. If the maximum amount of funding to the Program is later increased,
loan applicants that were loaned $10,000 may reapply for additional funding until the new maximum is
reached.

Initials: MH

3
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

105



Loans shall be interest-free, and the loan amount shall be due to be repaid to the Westgate CRA one (1)
year from the date of the loan. Loan applicants will be required to sign a promissory note to ensure
compliance with the loan, program terms, and conditions {see attached sample).

However, if the loan applicant provides evidence acceptable to the CRA of an amount equivalent to the
loan, or any part thereof, that has been paid by the loan applicant to employees in the form of payroli,
or to inventory suppliers, utility providers, receipt of purchase of technology or equipment to facilitate
remote working, and/or invoices for expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior spaces to
accommodate 6’ physical separation, then that amount may be forgiven, in which case the loan applicant
would not be required to repay such amount to the CRA. Loan funds may be used towards total payroil
expenses including wages and benefits, but may not be used towards employee bonuses. Evidence to
support foan and promissory note forgiveness includes but s not limited to invoices, receipts, paystubs,
utility bills, or other acceptable evidence of payment or expenses associated with the loan request. Loan
applicants may redact sensitive information such as socfal security numbers, etc. No cash payments will
be accepted as evidence in support of a request for loan forgiveness. Loan applicants may request loan
forgiveness at any time between the CRA loan check date and the loan repayment date by submitting a
request and the required evidence to the Westgate CRA. All evidence must be stbmitted to the Westgate
CRA one {1} month prior to the loan repayment date electronically to Denise Pennell at
dpennell@pbcgov.org or by mailing a hard copy to Westgate CRA, 1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215,
West Palm Beach, FL 33409; attention to Denise Penneil, Senior Planner/Project Manager. The Westgate
CRA Board will review the evidence and determine whether the loan is eligible to be forgiven.

The Westgate CRA Board has sole discretion to determine what evidence is acceptable, to ask for more
Information, or different evidence to support any loan application or any request for loan forgiveness.
Westgate CRA staff will notify the ioan applicant on the determination as to whether the loan is deemed
forgiven within 30 days of receipt of the evidence supporting the request for forgiveness. The loan may
be prepaid, in whole or in part, without penalty, at any time prior to the date on which repayment is
due.

All loan checks from the Westgate CRA to the successful loan applicant will be made out to the applicant
business entity.

APPLICATION PROCESS

Applications can be downloaded from the Westgate CRA website at westgatecra.org or may be obtained
by email. All loan applicants are strongly encouraged to speak with CRA staff in order to determine
eligibility before submitting an application. Please contact Denise Pennell at dpenneli@phrgov.org for
assistance. Applications will not be considered until all required documentation is submitted to the
Westgate CRA office by sending the application electronically or by dropping off a hard copy to 1280 N.
Congress Avenug, Suite 215, West Palm Beach, FL 33409, between the hours of $:00 A.M. —2:00 P.M.
with attention to Elizée Michel, Executive Director. Loan applicants are STRONGLY encouraged to
submit applications etectronically. Applications will be considered by the Westgate CRA Board at their
regularly scheduled monthly Board meeting on the 2" Monday of each month, Completed applications
must be submitted no later than two {2) weeks before the monthly CRA Board meeting to be considered
within that month.

Initials: MB

4
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loat Program

(06



Application to this Program is not a guarantee of funding. Approval for funding is at the sole discretion
of the Westgate CRA Board, and subject to availability of funds from the CRA’s annual budget. Loan
applicants will be notified of loan approval in writing by email.

Loan funding must be used for payment of rent, utility bills, employee payroll (excluding bonuses},
upgrades to technology to facilitate remote working, and/or expenses associated with the
reconfiguration of interior spaces to accommodate 6' physical separation.

Applications will be considered on a first-come, first-served basis. Applications are not considered fully
submitted until all supporting documents have been received. If the foan amount requested, or part
thereof, includes expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior spaces to accommodate 6
physical separation, the Westgate CRA reserves the right to visit the business location during the loan
vetting period.

Application packets must include (please check):

X Copy of the corporate documents for the applying business entity (an active copy of your
registered business as shown on SunBiz.Org).

® Copy of Palm Beach County occupational license (Business Tax Recelpt or BTR).

¥ Documentation to support the loan applicant's request for approval including a breakdown of
eligible expenses for rent, payroll, inventory, utility expenses, and/or technology upgrades.
Examples include, but are not limited to: lease agreements, invoices, recelpts, paystubs, utility
bills or other acceptable evidence of payment or expenses associated with the loan request. Loan
applicants may redact sensitive information such as specified above.

Completed, signed, and notarized application (attached).
W-9 Form (attached).
Other proof as necessary to evidence compliance with Funding Eligibility.

0O X

SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION IS NOT A GUARANTEE OF APPROVAL.

It is the responsibility of the loan applicant to READ AND UNDERSTAND
all Program rules, eligibility, loan terms and conditions, and this application.

NOTICE TO THIRD PARTIES: The loan application and loan do not create any rights for third parties. Nor
shall issuance of a loan result in any abiigation on the part of the Westgate CRA to any third party. The
Westgate CRA is not required to verify that entities that have contracted with the loan applicant have
been paid in full, or that such entities have paid any vendors or subcontractors in full.

Initials: MH

5
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program



COVID-19 MALL BUSINESSES BMERGEMCY RELIEE FORGIVARLE LUAN PROGRARM

LOAN APPLICATION
{please type or print clearly)

BUSINESS INFORMATION:

Business Name (d/b/a if applicable): Alternative Automotive Services LLC

Loan Applicant Name: _Morris Hale Title: Owner

Business Address: 2702 Rockey Dr, WPB, FL 33409

EIN#: 55-0866812

Business Phone: _ 561 640-4644 Cell:

Email: _alternativeautowpb@gmail.com

Website: alternativeautowpb.com

Type of Business: Automotive Repair Hours of operation: Mon-Fri 8am-5pm

Please list expenses seeking loan funding for:

payroll, and rent

Requested loan amount: $10,000.00

Please estimate the total loss (physical, fiscal) te your business due to the economic crisis caused by
the COVID-19 pandemic:

Second quarter total receipts has dropped -18.2% or -817450.00, compared to 2019

Number of full-time W-2 employees: Currently 4 Prior to March 15, 2020 _S

Initials:

MH

6
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

(0%



Have you had to lay off or furlough employees due to the economic crisis caused by the COVID-19

pandemic: Yes K No OO

Number of years in operation at current location: 38 years

Do you have business interruption insurance? Yes O No [

Have you applied for the U.5. Office of Small Business Administration’s Economie Injury Disaster Loan
{SBA EIDL) and/or Paycheck Protection Program (PPP)?

Amount requested: $68,800 Loan received? Yes EINo [J

Have you applied for the State of Florida Small Business Emergency Bridge Loan?

Amount requested: Loan received? Yes [ No

Have you applied for a Palm Beach County Cares for Business Restart Business Grant?

Amount requested: Loanreceived? Yes O No &l

If applicable, please provide the percentage difference in business revenue since March 15, 2020
compared to the same period last year? -$18.2

if applicable, please provide the dollar value of inventory lost or spoiled as a result of the economic
crisis caused by the COVID-19 pandemic: _ not applicable

Do you have an executed multi-year (1-year minimum) lease agreement? Yes K No [J

If so, monthly base rent: _$1855.40

Name of landlord/property management group: _ Preferred LLC

Address of landlord/property management group: 1643 Donna Rd. WPB, FL 33400

Business Phone; 561-689-1093 Cell:

Email: ticia@preferredacmech.com

Have you applied for assistance under any other program offered by the CRA? Yes O No [®

If so, program name: Amount received:
Initials: MH

7
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

[ 01



SRINCIFAL/OWNER INFORMATHON:

1. Principal/Owner Name; _Morris Hale

Date of Birth; /771957 Email: alternativeautowpb@gmail.com

Residential Address: 13881 42nd Rd N, WPB, FL, 33411  SEROEy

Cell Phone; 561-318-1026

2. Principal/Owner Name; _1€resa Hale

Date of Birth: 12/19/1958 Email: alfernativeautowpb@gmail.com

Residentiat Address: 13881 42nd Rd N, WPB, FL, 33411

Cell Phone: 581-777-5575

3. Principal/Owner Name:

Date of Birth: Email:

Residential Address:

Cell Phone:

4, Principal/Owner Name:

Date of Birth: Email:

Residential Address:

Cell Phone:

Note: if more than 4 principois/owners, additional sheets may be used.

Initials: MH
8
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program




LERTIFICATION AND WAIVER GF PRIVACY:

For purposes of this certification and waiver of privacy, the term "I" refers to the loan applicant and to
all signatories on the Program application individually. By signing and submitting the application to the
Program, each signatory represents and confirms that he or she is authorized to sign on behalf of the
loan applicant(s).

|, the undersigned loan applicant(s), certify that all information presented in this application, and ail of
the information furnished in support of the application, is given for the purpose of obtaining a loan under
the Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Forgivable Loan Program, and it is true and
complete to the best of my knowledge and belief.

| further certify that 1 am aware of the fact that | can be penalized by fine and/or imprisonment for
making false statements or presenting false infermation. | further acknowledge that | have read and
understand the terms and conditions set forth and described in the Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small

Business Emergency Forgivable Loan Program.

| understand that this application is not a guarantee of a loan, and that award of loans is at the sole .
discretion of the Westgate CRA Board. | understand that the purpose of the loan is to support the
retention of small businesses vital to the overall economic health of the redevelopment area, to protect
and support capital improvements undertaken and planned by the CRA, and to prevent the creation of
slum and urban blight, furthering the implementation of the Westgate CRA Community Redevelopment
Plan, and that the CRA may decline my application for any legal reason, including the reason that
approving the loan will not further the Community Redevelopment Plan. Should my application be
approved, | understand that the Westgate CRA has the sole discretion to determine whether the
Program criteria have been met and whether the loan may be forgiven.

To the maximum extent possible, | hereby waive my rights to privacy and confidentiality for all matters
contained in this application, and give my consent to the Westgate CRA, its agents, and contractors to
examine any confidentfal information given herein. | further grant permission, and authorize any bank,
employers, or other public or private agency to disclose information deemed necessary to complete this
application.

| give permission to the Westgate CRA or its agents to take photos of myself and business to be used to
promote the Program.

i understand that if this application and the information furnished in support of the application are found
to be incomplete or inaccurate, it will be not processed.

[nitials: MH

g
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program



LOAN APPLICANT SIGNATURES:

All Principal/Owner(s) eligible to sign on behalf of the loan applicant must sign this application on
behalf of the loan applicant. For the purposes of this Program, the term “Principal/Owner” means &
principal or owner of the business:

1. Principal/Owner Signature: Date: 94/2020

Printed Name: Morris Hale ltle winer

Witness Signature: /W Date: 91472020

Printed Name: _Monica Wojtas—7 /

2

2. Principal/Owner Signature: Date: QIW} b

7 Tt

Printed Name: _Tergsa Hale/ / m%wner
Witness Signature: /7 2/ // J Date: 9”14' 2020

Printed Name: Monica Wojtas

3. Principal/Qwner Signature: Date:

Printed Name: Title:

Witness Signature: Date:

Printed Name:

4, Principal/Owner Signature: Date:

Printed Name: Title:

Witness Signature: Date:

Printed Name:

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this ﬁ day of Septermber 2020
by __Mocee Hale {name of person acknowledging), an officer duly

authorized by Iaw to administer oaths and take acknowledgemenE M

Signature of sthts of Florida Notary Public

Persona o X or Produced tdentification

Type of Identification Produced:

nitials: MH
10
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program




SAMPLE PROMISSOEY NOTE
Westgate CRA, Palm Beach County, Florida

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned ("Loan Recipient") promises to pay to the order of the
Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency ("Westgate CRA") at 1280 N. Congress
Avenue, Suite 215, West Palm Beach, FL 33409 or at such other address as may be indicated in writing,
in the manner hereinafter specified, the principal sum of dollars $10.000.00 _ without intergst. The
said principal shall be payabie in lawful money of the United States of America, on [date]_7/¢ /opde
and in the following manner:

The sum of $_10,000.00  representing a payment of principal shall be due and payable one year from
the date set forth ahove ("Repayment Date").,

If, prior to the Repayment Date, the Loan Recipient provides evidence acceptable to the Westgate CRA
that an amount equivalent to the principal or any part thereof has been paid by the Loan Recipient
towards rent, payroll for employees (exciuding bonuses), utility providers, inventory providers, or
toward expenses to upgrade technology to facilitate remote working, the Westgate CRA, in its sole
discretion, may forgive that amount, in which case the Loan Recipient shall not be required to pay such
amount to the Westgate CRA. Evidence may be provided at any time prior to the Repayment Date, and
may be provided on an ongoing basis as such evidence becomes available. Loan Recipient must abide by
all terms and conditions of the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency
COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Forgivable Loan Program In order to be eligible for the loan
forgiveness described in this paragraph.

This note may be prepaid, in whole or in part, without penalty, at any time prior to maturity. If payment
due under this note is not paid within 10 days of the Repayment Date, a |ate charge of 5% of the payment
due shall be added to the principal. In the event of default in the payment of this note, and if the same
is placed in the hands of any attorney for collection, the undersigned hereby agrees to pay all costs of
collection, including a reasonable attorneys' fee. This note shall be construed and enforced according to
the laws of the State of Florida and nothing in this note shall be deemed to waive any rights of the
Westgate CRA thereunder.

Makers waive demand, presentment for payment, protest, and notice of nonpayment and dishonor.

Loan Recipient Name {including d/b/a): Morris Hale d/b/aZAlternative Automotive Services LLC
Authorized Signature: / : ?/Z

Title: _Owner

Date: 9712020

Initiats: MH
11
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Fargivable Loan Program

[/



SAMPLE PERSUNAL CUARANTY

PROMISSORY NOTE BETWEEN
WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
AND

Alternative Automotive Services LLC

IN COMSIDERATION of the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency {the
*Lender”) loaning Alternative Automotive Services LLC {“Borrower”) memorialized by a Promissory Note
dated __ 214 , 2020 in the amount of $10,000.00 {the “Note”}, the undersigned
individual unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees the payment and collection of all sums due by
Borrower under the Note, and any and all amendments, addenda, extensions, renewals and
modifications thereof. The undersigned agrees that the obligations of the undersigned will be joint,
several and primary with Borrower's obligations and not secondary. The Lender need not first pursue
action against Borrower before proceeding against the undersigned. The undersigned agrees that he is
bound by all amendments, addenda, extensions, renewais, and modifications of the Note referenced
above, whether or not the undersigned has signed the same. This Personal Guaranty 1s supported by
separate consideration, Including but not limited to the benefit flowing to the Guarantor as an owner of
the Borrower, receipt of which is hep y\acknowledged by Lender and Borrower.

WITNESSES: y / '/ L GUARANTOR(S): WM
WitnessSignature:%/% ;’/% Principal/Owner Signature: "ﬂ WA

Printed Name:

Date: o/4/2020

Printed Name: Morris Hale
i ———— e '\
| ,§,‘/ﬁ~
. \ )
P
Witness Signature: W U/ _ /VPrincipa JOwner Signature: '

Printed Name: _Monipa Whojtas Printed Naine; _ Terssa Hale

Date: /412020

{Business owner's signature must be notarized)

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this H day of September , 2020
by Morois Haie. {name of person acknowledging) by an officer duly
t

authorized by law to administer oaths and take acknowledgerrter(%lz‘uh
SR T T R 00w, s

Signature of ét@t}.- of Florida Notary Public

or Produced |dentiication

Type of Identification Produced:

Initials: MH
12
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program




-] 89,

c adillil
g

WESTGATEBELVEDERE HOM

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY |

WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES
COMMUNITY REDVELOPMENT AGENCY

COVID-19
SMALL BUSINESS EMERGENCY RELIEF
FORGIVABLE LOAN PROGRAM

{EFFECTIVE JUNE 9, 2020)

Westgate CRA
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215
West Palm Beach, FL 33409
(561) 640-8181
www.wesfgatecra.org

|15




PROGRAM DESCRIPTION AND RULES

The COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program (“Program”) is created to
provide direct financial emergency relief to small businesses within the Westgate community
redevelopment area. The Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency ("Westgate
CRA or CRA"} recognizes that small businesses are being forced to make unprecedented decisions amid
the COVID-19 pandemic. Efforts to mitigate the spread of the novel coronavirus by local and state
governments has resulted in business closures, reductions in services, disruptions in inventory supply
chains, impacts to cash flow, and payrolt deficits. The Program is intended to support the retention of
small businesses vital to the overall economic health of the redevelopment area, protect and support
capital improvements undertaken and planned by the CRA, and to prevent the creation of further slum
and urban blight, pursuant to the goals and objectives of the Westgate CRA Community Redevelopment
Plan.

Through the Program, the Westgate CRA will provide businesses with 25 or fewer employees up to
510,000 in an interest free loan. If the business can demonstrate compliance with the Program and that
the loan was used towards rent, payroll support, inventory purchases, utility expenses, upgrades to
technology to facilitate remote working, and/or expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior
spaces to accommodate 6’ physical separation within 1 year of the loan date, the loan will be forgiven,
and the business will not be required to repay the loan. Loans will be awarded on a first-come, first-
served basis. Loan recipients will be required to sign a promissory note to ensure compliance with the
Program, loan terms, and conditions. The Westgate CRA has sole discretion to determine compliance
with the Program, loan terms, and conditions sufficient to allow forgiveness of the loan.

The Westgate CRA is a public agency, governed by the Florida Public Records Law under Chapter 119,
Florida Statutes. The CRA may produce any documents provided by [oan applicants upon receipt of a
public records request, subject to any exemptions provided by Florida law. If the loan applicant believes
that any information is proprietary and exempt from public records such as a trade secret, the loan
applicant should indicate such in the application.

PROGRAM FUNDING

The Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Forgivable Loan Program offers financial assistance to the
business in the form of a forgivable loan for eligible expenses, up to $10,000, associated with rent, payroll
support, inventory purchases, utility expenses, technology upgrades to facilitate remote working, and/or
expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior spaces to accommodate 6’ physical separation. The
Program will be funded with Tax Increment Financing in accordance with the CRA’s Redevelopment Plan. A
total amount of $150,000 is considered for the Program.

PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY

Loan applicants must meet all of the following requirements in order to be considered eligible to receive
Program loan funding:
»  Must be located within the Westgate CRA redevelopment area (see attached boundary map);
* Loan applicant must be a business that was or became operational {as evidenced by a Certificate
of Occupancy or Palm Beach County Business Tax Receipt) prior to January 1, 2020;

Initials: M&\J

2
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

[l'6



» Loan applicant must be the business entity {or d/b/a) named on the corporate documents, and
the application must be executed by the principal/owner(s} named on the corporate documents.
If a corporate entity, the principal must execute a personal guarantee for the loan;

= Must be a for-profit, privately held business with less than 25 employees;

»  Must provide proof that the business is properly entitled and licensed by all necessary levels of
government;

» Businesses must have an executed one (1) year minimum lease;

» Business must employ a minimum of two (2) full-time equivalent W-2 employees whose wages
are reported to the state and federal government; one (1) position occupied by the business
owner may count toward the required job positions;

* If any individual is the Principal/Owner for more than one eligible business, the Principal/owner
may only sign the application on behalf of one business. {Note: this means that if one or more
eligible businesses have a Principal/Owner in common, only one of those businesses may apply
for the Program, even if the businass(s) has{have} more than one Principal/Owner).

The following businesses are automatically considered ineligible for assistance under the Program:
= Businesses that are prohibited uses within the Westgate Community Redevelopment Area
Overlay (WCRAQ) or certain sub-areas of the WCRAO including, but not limited to: adult
entertainment, convenience stores, employment agencies, gas and fuel sales, self-service
storage, or contractor storage yards;

» Businesses that do not further the redevelopment goals of the Westgate CRA Community
Redevelopment Plan including, but not limited to firearm sales, check cashing stores, adult
arcades, pawn shops, liquor stores, smoke/e-cig or vape shops, tattoo shops, or any other
use as determined by the Westgate CRA Board or designee;

= Not for profit organizations or places of worship;

»  Businesses with more than 25 and less than two (2) full-time equivalent empioyees;

= Businesses which are publicly traded; and,

»  Businesses that do not report employees’ wages.

The following types of businesses are eligible to receive funding under the Program include, but
are not limited to:
= Restaurants, professional/general offices (based on NAICS codes), medical/dental offices,
neighborhood grocers, brick and mortar retail sales, veterinary clinics, catering services,
personal services, financial institutions, and home-based businesses or home-based day
cares with a residential address in the CRA.

LOAN TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The maximum amount of loan to any one business under the Program is $10,000. Loan applicants may
apply multiple times if loaned less than the maximum amount, but no loan applicant will receive more
than the maximum amount in total. If the maximum amount of funding to the Program is later increased,
loan applicants that were loaned $10,000 may reapply for additional funding until the new maximum is
reached.

Initials: E“j\)

3
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

17



Loans shall be interast-free, and the [oan amount shall be due to be repaid to the Westgate CRA one (1)
year from the date of the loan. Loan applicants will be required to sign a promissory note to ensure
compliance with the loan, program terms, and conditions (see attached sample}.

However, if the loan applicant provides evidence acceptable to the CRA of an amount equivalent to the
loan, or any part thereof, that has been paid by the loan applicant to employees in the form of payroll,
or to inventory suppliers, utility providers, receipt of purchase of technology or equipment to facilitate
remote working, and/or invoices for expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior spaces to
accommodate & physical separation, then that amount may be forgiven, in which case the loan applicant
would not be required to repay such amount to the CRA. Loan funds may be used towards total payroll
expenses including wages and henefits, but may not be used towards employee bonuses. Evidence to
support loan and promissory note forgiveness includes but is not limited to invoices, receipts, paystubs,
utility bills, or other acceptable evidence of payment or expenses associated with the loan request. Loan
applicants may redact sensitive information such as social security numbers, etc. No cash payments will
be accepted as evidence in support of a request for loan forgiveness. Loan applicants may request loan
forgiveness at any time between the CRA loan check date and the loan repayment date by submitting a
request and the required evidence to the Westgate CRA. All evidence must be submitted to the Westgate
CRA one {1) month prior to the loan repayment date electronically to Denise Pennell at
dpennell@pbcgov.org or by mailing a hard copy to Westgate CRA, 1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215,
West Palm Beach, FL 33409, attention to Denise Pennell, Senior Planner/Project Manager. The Westgate
CRA Board will review the evidence and determine whether the ioan is eligible to be forgiven.

The Westgate CRA Board has sole discretion to determine what evidence is acceptable, to ask for more
information, or different evidence to support any loan application or any request for loan forgiveness.
Westgate CRA staff will notify the loan applicant on the determination as to whether the loan is deemed
forgiven within 30 days of receipt of the evidence supporting the request for forgiveness. The loan may
be prepaid, in whole or in part, without penalty, at any time prior to the date on which repayment is
due.

All loan checks from the Westgate CRA to the successful loan applicant will be made out to the applicant
business entity.

APPLICATION PROCESS

Applications can be downloaded from the Westgate CRA website at westgatecra.org or may be obtained
by email. All loan applicants are strongly encouraged to speak with CRA staff in order to determine
eligibility before submitting an application. Please contact Denise Pennell at dpennell@pbcgov.org for
assistance. Applications will not be considered until all required documentation is submitted to the
Westgate CRA office by sending the application electronically or by dropping off a hard copy to 1280 N.
Congress Avenue, Suite 215, West Palm Beach, FL 33409, between the hours of 9:00 A.M. — 2:00 P.M.
with attention to Elizée Michel, Executive Director. Loan applicants are STRONGLY encouraged to
submit applications electronically. Applications will be considered by the Westgate CRA Board at their
regularly scheduled monthly Board meeting on the 2" Monday of each month, Completed applications
must be submitted no later than two {2) weeks before the monthly CRA Board meeting to be considered

within that month.
i
Initials: \./

4
Waestgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Frogram

/14



Application to this Program is not a guarantee of funding. Approval for funding is at the sole discretion
of the Westgate CRA Board, and subject to availability of funds from the CRA’s annual budget. Loan
applicants will be notified of loan approval in writing by email.

Loan funding must be used for payment of rent, utility bills, employee payroll {excluding bonuses),
upgrades to technology to facilitate remote working, and/or expenses associated with the
reconfiguration of interior spaces to accommodate 6’ physical separation.

Applications will be considered on a first-come, first-served basis. Applications are not considered fully
submitted until all supporting documents have been received. If the loan amount requested, or part
thereof, includes expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior spaces to accommodate 6
physical separation, the Westgate CRA reserves the right to visit the business location during the loan
vetting period.

Application packets must include (please check):
Copy of the corporate documents for the applying business entity {an active copy of your
m)v,gistered business as shown on SunBiz.Org).
E/ﬁpy of Palm Beach County occupational license {Business Tax Receipt or BTR).
i Documentation to support the loan applicant's request for approval including a breakdown of
eligible expenses for rent, payroll, inventory, utility expenses, and/or technology upgrades,
Examples include, but are not limited to: lease agreements, invoices, receipts, paystubs, utility

bills or other acceptable evidence of payment or expenses associated with the loan request. Loan
E;l}p]in:ants may redact sensitive information such as specified above.

Completed, signed, and notarized application (attached).
[ W-9 Form (attached).
[1 Other proof as necessary to evidence compliance with Funding Eligibility.

SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION IS NOT A GUARANTEE OF APPROVAL.
It is the responsibility of the loan applicant to READ AND UNDERSTAND
all Program rules, eligibility, loan terms and conditions, and this application.

NQTICE TO THIRD PARTIES: The loan application and loan do not create any rights for third parties. Nor
shall issuance of a loan result in any obligation on the part of the Westgate CRA to any third party. The
Westgate CRA is not required to verify that entities that have contracted with the loan applicant have
been paid in full, or that such entities have paid any vendors or subcontractors in full.

Injtials: \ l w
5
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

[19



COVID-19 SMALL BUSINESSES EMERGENCY RELIEF FORGIVABLE LOAN PROGRAM

LOAN APPLICATION
{please type or print clearly)

BUSINESS INFORMATION: .

— 7' , \ —
Business Name (d/b/a if applicable): : (' 11! e
Loan Applicant Name:\\}\'\\r;\(‘w‘\ \A()\\\L&\/ Title: OOusaly
Business Address: | \ . % 3 3

FL . ANY

e - 1 DB GRYT

Business Phone: (_3\&% Log4d-2LBD cen: {Ses) QOI- 0o R
Email: AONE ¢ s

Website: Niﬂ'

Type of Business: C_,\'\\\ Q\C.OJ& Hours of operation: q-LJQ G0\ LO' 66{3 ')

Please list expenses seeking loan funding for:

DQ&. YN

Requested [oan amount; % \D. mh - D\\_}

Please estimate the total loss {physical, fiscal) to your business due to the economic crisis caused by
the COVID-19 pandemic:

DD R1ADID

Number of full-time W-2 employees: Currently i 5 ) Prior to March 15, 2020 \5
Initials: “_‘tu )

6
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

J2¢



Have you had to lay off or furlough employees due to the economic crisis caused by the COVID-19

pandemic: Yes EINOX

Number of years in operation at current location: \r-\ \l&fx\’ R

Do you have business interruption insurance? Yes [ No :)Z(

Have you applied for the U.S. Office of Small Business Administration’s Economic Injury Disaster Loan
{SBA EIDL} and/or Paycheck Protection Program (PPP)?

Amount requested:?r\r‘ ;95{3) f)q Loan received? Yes E\No O

Have you applied for the State of Florida Small Business Emergency Bridge Loan?

Amount requested: N 2 A Loan received? Yes 1] No 3{

Have you applied for a Palm Beach County Cares for Business Restart Business Grant?

Amount requested: H ) ﬁ Loan received? Yes [ No M

If applicable, please provide the percentage difference i bt_Jsiness revenue since March 15, 2020
compared to the same period last year? ; 5"‘ e,

If applicable, please provide the doliar value of inventory lost Tr&poiled as a result of the economic
crisis caused by the COVID-19 pandemic: N [

L

Do you have an executed multi-year {1-year minimum) lease agreement? Yes [1No ﬁ&

If so, monthly base rent: ‘\J l !0\
Name of landlord/property management group: M l ﬁ
Address of landlord/property management group: N\ (’;\

Business Phone: Lﬁ&h‘ KO%"\'QHSD Cell: L&B 8 G\ - D\ &r)

Email: - ASve , O

Have you applied for assistance under any other program offered by the CRA? Yes Ll No .ﬁ{

If so, program name: }Vl ’ pf Amount received: V\.! L«

Initials: | :H.D
7
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

[~



PRINCIPAL/OWNER INFORMATION:
1. Principal/Owner Name: \\[\'\‘{‘K(\(\ \A(” \WNe
Date of Birth: D"]lOSI 1902 emai_endec\ovecde Cu\J{‘l\ﬂCsLJ O
RESIdentlaIAddress \\’%’D 41# Lood Noeds \Nesy Bln P\Mr_h FL. 3341
Celi Phone: (801) 0 1~ O} R

2. Principal/Owner Name:

Date of Birth: Email:

Residential Address:

Cell Phone:

3. Principal/Owner Name:

Date of Birth: Email:

Residential Address:

Cell Phone:

4. Principal/Owner Name:

Date of Birth: Email:

Residential Address:

Cell Phone:

Note: If more than 4 principals/owners, additional sheets may be used.

Initials: t &@

8
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

|22



CERTIFICATION AND WAIVER OF PRIVACY:

For purposes of this certification and waiver of privacy, the term "I" refers to the loan applicant and to
all signatories on the Program application individually. By signing and submitting the application to the
Program, each signatory represents and confirms that he or she is authorized to sign on behalf of the
loan applicant(s). :

, the undersigned loan applicant(s), certify that all information presented in this application, and all of
the information furnished in support of the application, is given for the purpose of obtaining a loan under
the Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Forgivable Loan Program, and it is true and
complete to the best of my knowledge and belief,

| further certify that | am aware of the fact that | can be penalized by fine and/or imprisonment for
making false statements or presenting false information. | further acknowledge that | have read and
understand the terms and conditions set forth and described in the Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small
Business Emergency Forgivable Loan Program.

| understand that this application is not a guarantee of a loan, and that award of loans is at the sole
discretion of the Westgate CRA Board. | understand that the purpose of the loan is to support the
retention of small businesses vital to the overall economic health of the redevelopment area, to protect
and support capital improvements undertaken and planned by the CRA, and to prevent the creation of
slum and urban blight, furthering the implementation of the Westgate CRA Community Redevelopment
Plan, and that the CRA may decline my application for any legal reason, including the reason that
approving the loan will not further the Community Redevelopment Plan. Should my application be
approved, | understand that the Westgate CRA has the sole discretion to determine whether the
Program criteria have been met and whether the loan may be forgiven.

To the maximum extent possible, | hereby waive my rights to privacy and confidentiality for all matters
contained in this application, and give my consent to the Westgate CRA, its agents, and contractors to
examine any confidential information given herein. | further grant permission, and authorize any bank,
emplayers, or other public or private agency to disclose information deemed necessary to complete this
application.

| give permission to the Westgate CRA or its agents to take photos of myself and business to be used to
promote the Program.

f understand that if this application and the information furnished in support of the application are found
to be incomplete or inaccurate, it will be not processed.

Initials: H;__@

9
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

(25



LOAN APPLICANT SIGNATURES:

All Principal/Owner{s} eligible to sign on behalf of the loan applicant must sign this application on
behalf of the |oan applicant. For the purposes of this Program, the term “Principal/Owner” means a
principal or owner of the business:

1. Principal/Owner Signature: ] ‘_;tﬁ/ln- L A\JM‘! Date: q!/ 3:/ (on? U
Printed Name: M \ \’\\\ aa )‘Na“{\f\/ \F\ Title: D@nfr :
| e 3 | 2|00

Witness Sighatufe;
N\o‘w&@ Geonh L!f

2. Principal/Owner Signature: Date:

Printed Name:

Printed Name: Title:

Witness Signature: Date:

Printed Name;

3. Principal/Owner Signature: Date:

Printed Name: Title:

Witness Signature: Date:

Printed Name:

4. Principal/Owner Signature: Date:

Printed Name: Title:

Witness Signature: Date:

Printed Name:

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this -é;%; day of &j_(?ﬁgl\;&y_, 2020

by M\‘f‘\(\‘f\ \’\\OL\Y’\Q X~ (name of person acknowledging), an officer duly
authorized by law to administer oaths and take acknowledgementg.

ty, Britingy Griffn RPN
g COMMI i Qingture of’State @ida Notary Public

< EXPIRES: Now 15, 2022 ,
Persona\s?l howiAnded W‘\'}M NoAYY  or Produced Identification _ LAC @ \NE._

Type of Identification Produced:‘)‘gﬁﬁ Ve l ALeoNNe . }&‘;\319—“)35' &QQ’F‘L{ ﬂ: 2‘\
Initials:&@

10
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

[ 24



SAMPLE PROMISSORY NOTE
Westgate CRA, Palm Beach County, Florida

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned ("Loan Recipient"} promises to pay to the order of the
Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency ("Westgate CRA"} at 1280 N. Congress
Avenue, Suite 215, West Palm Beach, FL 33409 or at such other address as may be indicated in writing,
in the manner hereinafter specified, the principal sum of dollars § /0, 0. 00 _ without interest, Th
said principal shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America, on [date] éb[ @
and in the following manner:

The sumof § ZO! 00 |0 representing a payment of principal shall be due and payable one year from
the date set forth above ("Repayment Date"}.

if, prior to the Repayment Date, the Loan Recipient provides evidence acceptable to the Westgate CRA
that an amount equivalent to the principal or any part thereof has been paid by the Loan Recipient
towards rent, payroll for employees {excluding bonuses}, utility providers, inventory providers, or
toward expenses to upgrade technology to facilitate remote working, the Westgate CRA, in its sole
discretion, may forgive that amount, in which case the Loan Recipient shall not be required to pay such
amount to the Westgate CRA. Evidence may be provided at any time prior to the Repayment Date, and
may be provided on an ongoing basis as such evidence becomes available. Loan Recipient must abide by
all terms and conditions of the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency
COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Forgivable Loan Program in order to be eligible for the loan
forgiveness described in this paragraph.

This note may be prepaid, in whole or in part, without penalty, at any time prior to maturity. If payment
due under this note is not paid within 10 days of the Repayment Date, a late charge of 5% of the payment
due shall be added to the principal. In the avent of default in the payment of this note, and if the same
is placed in the hands of any attorney for collection, the undersigned hereby agrees to pay all costs of
collection, including a reasonable attorneys' fee, This note shall be construed and enforced according to
the laws of the State of Florida and nothing in this note shall be deemed to waive any rights of the
Westgate CRA thereunder,

Makers waive demand, presentment for payment, protest, and notice of nonpayment and dishonor.

Loan Recipient Name\(i%c)lu/iig d/b/a): M I‘(;\ (i W&,\K‘ft’

Authorized Signature: [ ¢ v/},,{fﬂ/{_’,\ L/() 1 1
Title: _DWON £y

Date; Q}X) 20 Q0

Initials: \'_@

11
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

25



SAMPLE PERSONAL GUARANTY

PROMISSORY NOTE BETWEEN
WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
AND

e, Tac,

IN CONSIDERATION of the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency (the
“Lender”), loaning ARTLTA C‘u ‘(\ﬁ’ ("Borrower”) memorialized by a Promissory Note
dated q a\ , 2020 in the amount of § / )D D, DD {the “Note”), the undersigned
individual uncondltionally and irrevocably guarantees the payment and collection of all sums due by
Borrower under the Note, and any and all amendments, addenda, extensions, renewals and
modifications thereof. The undersigned agrees that the obligations of the undersigned will he joint,
several and primary with Borrower’s obligations and not secondary. The Lender need not first pursue
action against Borrower before proceeding against the undersigned. The undersigned agrees that he is
bound by all amendments, addenda, extensions, renewals, and modifications of the Note referenced
above, whether or not the undersigned has signed the same. This Personal Guaranty is supported by
separate consideration including but not limited to the benefit flowing to the Guarantor as an owner of
the Borrower, receint of which is hereby acknowledged by Lender and Borrower.

WITNESSES: GUARANTOR(S): \ﬂ/ﬂ/ W M
Witness Signattire; U Prmc:pal/Owner Slgnature ubﬂ’/-ﬁ_,

Printed Name [ / Printed Name: MI I8N/8% Wa. ”Qﬂpf

et 121 aoao

d j —
Witness Signatufre: 4 ’ Principal/Owner S:gnature d/t,é’{h-‘ é‘/d‘//
Printed Name: Ad Ar Dé}g le \e  Printed Name: Ml [tGn Wﬁ IL“[(

Date: G / /&O 20

{Business owner's signature must be notarized} i

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this day of 32;253 M2y, 2020

by M\Y‘\(‘M{\, }\\&\V\Q( (name of person acknowledging) by an officer duly
authorized by law to administer oaths and taktww
: BntfH%V@ﬁTﬁn

Sig_rﬁture bf State of Iori&erotary Public

EXPIRES 2022 or Produced Identification \_\C_QJTXSQ_

Initials: S,\JO

12
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

|26



L
1 ])W

WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES
COMMUNITY REDVELOPMENT AGENCY

COVID-19
SMALL BUSINESS EMERGENCY RELIEF
FORGIVABLE LOAN PROGRAM

(EFFECTIVE JUNE 9,2020)

Westgate CRA
1280 N, Congress Avenue, Suite 215
West Palm Beach, FL 33409
(561} 640-8181

www.westgatecra.org

iy



PROGRAM DESCRIPTION AND RULES

The COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program (“Program”) is created to
" provide direct financial emergency relief to small businesses within the Westgate community
redevelopment area. The Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency (“Westgate
CRA or CRA”) recognizes that small businesses are being forced to make unprecedented decisions amid
the COVID-19 pandemic. Efforts to mitigate the spread of the novel coronavirus by local and state
governments has resuited in business closures, reductions in services, disruptions in inventary supply
chains, impacts to cash flow, and payroll deficits. The Program is intended to support the retention of
small businesses vital to the overall economic health of the redevelopment area, protect and support
capital improvements undertaken and planned by the CRA, and to prevent the creation of further slum
and urban blight, pursuant to the goals and objectives of the Westgate CRA Community Redevelopment
Plan.

Through the Program, the Westgate CRA will provide businesses with 25 or fewer employees up to
$10,000 in an interest free loan. If the business can demonstrate compliance with the Program and that
the loan was used towards rent, payroll support, inventory purchases, utility expenses, upgrades to
technology to facilitate remote working, and/or expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior
spaces to accommodate 6’ physical separation within 1 year of the ioan date, the loan will be forgiven,
and the business will not be required to repay the loan. Loans will be awarded on a first-come, first-
served basis, Loan recipients will be required to sign a promissory note to ensure compliance with the
Pragram, loan terms, and conditions. The Westgate CRA has sole discretion to determine compliance
with the Program, Joan terms, and conditions sufficient to allow forgiveness of the loan.

The Westgate CRA is a public agency, governed by the Florida Public Records Law under Chapter 119,
Florida Statutes. The CRA may produce any documents provided by loan applicants upon receipt of a
public records request, subject to any exemptions provided by Florida law. If the loan applicant believes
that any information is proprietary and exempt from public records such as a trade secret, the loan
applicant should indicate such in the application.

PROGRAM FUNDING

The Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Forgivable Loan Program offers financial assistance to the
business in tha form of a forgivable loan for eligible expenses, up to $10,000, associated with rent, payroll
support, inventory purchases, utility expenses, technology upgrades to facilitate remote working, and/or
expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior spaces to accommodate 6’ physical separation. The
Program will be funded with Tax Increment Financing in accordance with the CRA’s Redevelopment Plan. A
total amount of $150,000 is considered for the Program.

PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY

Loan applicants must meet all of the following requirements in order to be considered eligible to receive

Program loan funding:
»  Must be located within the Westgate CRA redevelopment area (see attached boundary map);

= Loan applicant must be a business that was or became operational (as evidenced by a Certificate
of Occupancy or Paim Beach County Business Tax Receipt) prior to January 1, 2020;

Initials: ~7 /

2
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

|28



Loan applicant must be the business entity (or d/b/a} named on the corporate documents, and
the application must be executed by the principal/owner{s) named on the corporate documents.
If a corporate entity, the principal must execute a personal guarantee for the loan;

Must be a for-profit, privately held business with less than 25 employees;

Must provide proof that the business is properly entitled and licensed by all necessary levels of
government;

Businesses must have an executed one (1) year minimum lease;

Business must employ a minimum of two {2) full-time equivalent W-2 employees whose wages
are reported to the state and federal government; one (1} position occupied by the business
owner may count toward the required job positions;

If any individual is the Principal/Owner for more than one eligible business, the Principal/owner
may only sign the application on behalf of one business. (Note: this means that if one or more
eligible businesses have a Principal/Owner in common, only one of those businesses may apply
for the Program, even if the business(s) has(have) more than one Principal/Owner).

The following businesses are automatically considered ineligible for assistance under the Program:

»  Businesses that are prohibited uses within the Westgate Community Redevelopment Area
Overlay {WCRADQ) or certain sub-areas of the WCRAO including, but not limited to: adult
entertainment, convenience stores, employment agencies, gas and fue! sales, self-service
storage, or contractor storage yards;

»  Businesses that do not further the redevelopment goals of the Westgate CRA Cornmunity

Redevelopment Plan including, but not limited to firearm sales, check cashing stores, adult

arcades, pawn shops, liquor stores, smoke/e-cig or vape shops, tattoo shops, or any other

use as determined by the Westgate CRA Board or designee;

Not for profit organizations or places of worship;

Businesses with more than 25 and less than two (2) full-time equivalent employees;

Businesses which are publicly traded; and,

Businesses that do not report employees’ wages.

The following types of businesses are eligible to receive funding under the Program include, but
are not limited to:

= Restaurants, professional/general offices (based on NAICS codes), medical/dental offices,
neighborhood grocers, brick and mortar retail sales, veterinary clinics, catering services,
personal services, financial institutions, and home-based businesses or home-based day
cares with a residential address in the CRA.

LOAN TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The maximum amount of loan to any one business under the Program is $10,000. Loan applicants may
apply multiple times if loaned less than the maximum amount, but no loan applicant will receive more
than the maximum amount In total. If the maximum amount of funding to the Program is iater increased,
loan applicants that were loaned $10,000 may reapply for additional funding until the new maximum is
reached,

Initials/////

3
Westgate CRA COVID-16 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

12 1



Loans shall be interest-free, and the loan amount shall be due to be repaid to the Westgate CRA one {1)
year from the date of the foan. Loan applicants will be required to sign a promissory note to ensure
compliance with the loan, program terms, and conditions {see attached sample).

However, if the loan applicant provides evidence acceptable to the CRA of an amount equivalent to the
loan, or any part thereof, that has been paid by the loan applicant to employees in the form of payroll,
or to inventory suppliers, utility providers, receipt of purchase of technology or equipment to facilitate
remote working, and/or invoices for expenses associated with the reconfiguration of inferior spaces to
accommodate 6 physical separation, then that amount may be forgiven, in which case the loan applicant
would not be required to repay such amount to the CRA. Loan funds may be used towards total payroll
expenses including wages and benefits, but may not be used towards employee bonuses. Evidence to
support loan and promissory note forgiveness includes but is not limited to invoices, recelpts, paystubs,
utility bills, or other acceptable evidence of payment or expenses associated with the loan request. Loan
applicants may redact sensitive information such as social security numbers, etc. No cash payments will
be accepted as evidente in support of a request for loan forgiveness. Loan applicants may request loan
forgiveness at any time between the CRA loan check date and the loan repayment date by submitting a
request and the required evidence to the Westgate CRA. All evidence must be submitted to the Westgate
CRA one (1) month prior to the loan repayment date electronically to Denise Pennell at
dpennell@pbcgov.org or by mailing a hard copy to Westgate CRA, 1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215,
West Palm Beach, FL 33409, attention to Denise Pennell, Senior Planner/Project Manager. The Westgate
CRA Board will review the evidence and determine whether the loan is eligible to be forgiven.

The Westgate CRA Board has sole discretion to determine what evidence is acceptable, to ask for more
information, or different evidence to support any loan application or any request for loan forgiveness.
Westgate CRA staff will notify the loan applicant on the determination as to whether the loan is deemed
forgiven within 30 days of receipt of the evidence supporting the request for forgiveness. The loan may
be prepaid, in whole or in part, without penalty, at any time prior to the date on which repayment is
due.

All loan checks from the Westgate CRA to the successful loan appilicant will be made out to the applicant
business entity.

APPLICATION PROCESS

Applications can be downloaded from the Westgate CRA website at westgatecra.org or may be obtained
by email. All loan applicants are strongly encouraged to speak with CRA staff in order to determine
eligibility before submitting an application. Please contact Denise Pennell at dpennell@pbcgov.org for
assistance. Applications will not be considered until all required documentation is submitted to the
Westgate CRA office by sending the application electronically or by dropping off a hard copy to 1280 N.
Congress Avenue, Suite 215, West Palm Beach, FL. 33409, between the hours of 9:00 A.M. — 2:00 P.M.
with attention to Elizée Michel, Executive Director. Loan applicants are STRONGLY encouraged to
submit applications electronically. Applications will be considered by the Westgate CRA Board at their
regularly scheduled monthly Board meeting on the 2™ Monday of each month. Completed applications
must be submitted no later than two (2) weeks before the monthly CRA Board meeting to be considered

within that month.
Initials: %

4
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

|50



Application to this Program is not a guarantee of funding. Approval for funding is at the sole discretion
of the Westgate CRA Board, and subject to avalilability of funds from the CRA's annua! budget. Loan
applicants will be notified of loan approval in writing by email,

Loan funding must be used for payment of rent, utility bills, employee payroll {excluding bonuses),
upgrades to technology to facilitate remote working, and/or expenses associated with the
reconfiguration of interior spaces to accommodate 6’ physical separation.

Applications will be considered on a first-come, first-served basis. Applications are not considered fully
submitted until all supporting documents have been received. If the loan amount requested, or part
thereof, includes expenses associated with the reconfiguration of interior spaces to accommodate 6’
physical separation, the Westgate CRA reserves the right to visit the business location during the loan
vetting period.

Application packets must include {please check):

X Copy of the corporate documents for the applying business entlty {an active copy of your
registered business as shown on SunBiz.Org}.

-,
o]

Copy of Palm Beach County occupational license (Business Tax Receipt or BTR).

@ Documentation to support the loan applicant's request for approval including a breakdown of
eligible expenses for rent, payroll, inventory, utility expenses, and/or technology upgrades.
Examples include, but are not limited to: lease agreements, invoices, receipts, paystubs, utility
bills or other acceptable evidence of payment or expenses associated with the loan request. Loan
applicants may redact sensitive information such as specified above.

pe]

Completed, signed, and notarized application {attached).
X W-9 Form (attached).
Other proof as necessary to evidence compliance with Funding Eligibility.

(3

SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION 1S NOT A GUARANTEE OF APPROVAL.
It is the responsibility of the loan applicant to READ AND UNDERSTAND
all Program rules, eligibility, foan terms and conditions, and this application.

NOTICE TO THIRD PARTIES: The loan application and loan do not create any rights for third parties. Nor
shall issuance of a loan result in any obligation on the part of the Westgate CRA to any third party. The
Westgate CRA is not required to verify that entities that have contracted with the loan applicant have
been paid in full, or that such entities have paid any vendors or subcontractors in full,

Iniﬁals:ﬂ

5
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

|51



COVID-19 SMALL BUSINESSES EMERGENCY RELIEF FORGIVABLE LOAN PROGRAM

LOAN APPLICATION
{please type or print clearly)

BUSINESS INFORMATION:
Business Name (d/b/a if applicable): YINGEL INC. DBA MUFFLERS BRAKES & MORE
Loan Applicant Name: SHELDON SHANAK Title:_CO-DIRECTOR
Business Address: 2636 OKEECHOBEE BLVD.
WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33409

EIN#: 85-0893814
Business Phone: _ 561 -684-0543 cell: 561-543-2963
Email: KJELRAY@YAHOO.COM
ite: - MUFFLERDUDE.COM
Webstte M-F 8AM-5PM
Type of Business: _AUTO REPAIR SHOP Hours of operation: SAT 8AM-4PM

Please list expenses seeking loan funding for:

INVENTORY, UTILITIES, PAYROLL

Requested loan amount: _$ 10,000.00

Please estimate the total loss {physical, fiscal} to your business due to the economic crisis caused by
the COVID-19 pandemic:

AS OF AUG 31ST, APPROX $10K LOSS AND COUNTING COMPARED TO 2018

Number of full-time W-2 employees: Currently 3 Prior to March 15, 2020 3

Initials ,Z é

6
Woestgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Lean Program

|5



Have you had to lay off or furlough employees due to the economic crisis caused by the COVID-19

pandemic: Yes O No

Number of years in operation at current location: 21.5 YEARS

Do you have business interruption insurance? Yes L[INo &

Have you applied for the U.S. Office of Small Business Administration’s Economic [njury Disaster Loan
(SBA EIDL) and/or Paycheck Protection Program {PPP)?

Amount requested: PPP $15K, EIDL $3K _Loan received? Yes R No [

Have you applied for the State of Florida Small Business Emergency Bridge Loan?

Amount requested: Loan received? Yes [ No

Have you applied for a Palm Beach County Cares for Business Restart Business Grant?

Amount requested: Loan received? Yes [ No

If applicable, please provide the percentage difference in business revenue since March 15,2020
compared to the same period last year? __ NIy 8/31/2020, 20% less than same period in 2020

If applicable, please provide the dollar value of inventory lost or spoiled as a result of the economic
crisis caused by the COVID-19 pandemic:

Do you have an executed multi-year (1-year minimum) lease agreement? Yes Ll No

If so, monthly hase rent:

Name of landlord/property management group: SELF OWNED
Address of landlord/property management group: 2536 OKEECHOBEE BLVD. W.P.B, FL 33409

Business Phone: _561-684-0543 cell: 561-543-2963
Emai: KJELRAY@YAHOO.COM

Have you applied for assistance under any other program offered by the CRA? Yes [INo X

Initials: o7 é

If so, program name: Amount received:

7
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

[5%



PRINCIPAL/OWNER INFORMATION:
1. Principal/Owner Name: SHELDON SHANAK

Date of Birth:  03/15/1956 email: KIELRAY@YAHOO.COM

Residential Address: 179 PONCE DE LEON ST. ROYAL PALM BEACH. FL 33411
Celi Phone:  561-543-2963

2. Principal/Owner Name: __ MICHAEL SHANAK .
Date of Birth: __05/11/1960 Email: _ GHPHO2A@PRODIGY.NET
Residential Address: _ 2013 NORMANDY CIRCLE WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33409
Cell Phone: _561-889-8613

3. Principal/Owner Name:

Date of Birth: Email:

Residential Address:

Cell Phone:

4, Principal/Owner Name:

Date of Birth: Emait;

Residential Address:

Cell Phone:

Note: If more than 4 principals/owners, additional sheets may be used.

Initials: Z

8
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

5%



CERTIFICATION AND WAIVER OF PRIVACY:

For purposes of this certification and waiver of privacy, the term "I" refers to the foan applicant and to
all signatories on the Program application individually. By signing and submitting the application to the
Program, each signatory represents and confirms that he or she is authorized to sign on behalf of the
loan applicant{s).

|, the undersigned loan applicant(s), certify that all information presented in this application, and all of
the information furnished in support of the application, is given for the purpose of obtaining a loan under
the Westgate CRA COVID-12 Small Business Emergency Forgivable Loan Program, and 1t is true and
complete to the best of my knowledge and belief.

| further certify that | am aware of the fact that | can be penalized by fine and/or imprisonment for
making false statements or presenting false information. | further acknowledge that | have read and
understand the terms and conditions set forth and described in the Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small
Business Emergency Forgivable Loan Program.

| understand that this application is not a guarantee of a lean, and that award of loans is at the sole
discretion of the Westgate CRA Board. | understand that the purpose of the loah is to support the
retention of small businesses vital to the overall economic health of the redevelopment area, to protect
and support capital improvements undertaken and planned by the CRA, and to prevent the creation of
slum and urban blight, furthering the implementation of the Westgate CRA Community Redevelopment
Plan, and that the CRA may decline my application for any legal reason, including the reason that
approving the loan will not further the Community Redevelopment Plan. Should my application be
approved, | understand that the Westgate CRA has the sole discretion to determine whether the
Program criteria have been met and whether the loan may be forgiven,

To the maximum extent possible, | hereby waive my rights to privacy and confidentiality for all matters
contained in this application, and give my consent to the Westgate CRA, its agents, and contractors to
examine any confidential information given herein. | further grant permission, and authorize any bank,
employers, or other public or private agency to disclose information deemed necessary to complete this
application. :

I give permission to the Westgate CRA or its agents to take photos of myself and business to be used to
promote the Program.

 understand that if this application and the information furnished in support of the application are found
to be incomplete or inaccurate, it will be not processed.

Initials: ZZ’

9
Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

|25



LOAN APPLICANT SIGNATURES:

All Principal/Owner{s) eligible to sign on behalf of the loan applicant must sign this application on
behalf of the loan applicant. For the purposes of this Program, the term “Principal/Owner” means a

principal or owner of the business: /
1. Principal/Qwner Signature: % i) Date:
Printed Name: __ SHELDON SHANAK Title: _ CO-DIRECTOR

Witness Signature: M Date: ﬁ/ ‘f?/z?
Printed Name: %W/ é’r’/’é

2. Prfncipal/0wnerSignaturegmfsz‘ 4@"‘4 Date:

oy

Printed Name: __ MICHAEL SHANAK Title: _ CO-DIRECTOR
Witness Signature: /% Date; W’/ M @
Printed Name: /KW f/ /ZZ

3. Principal/Owner Signature: Date:

Printed Name: Title:

Witness Signature: Date:

Printed Name:

4. Principal/Owner Signature: Date:

Printed Name: Title:

Witness Signature: Date:

Printed Name:

LN [
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this ﬁ day of Jer’ fe , 2020
by MeAn 2.0 (name of person acknowledging), an officer duly

authorized by law to administer oaths and take acknowledgements.
{Notary Seal) %%_‘

Signature of State of Florida Notary Publlc g

Personally Known or Produced Identification »— 740« '
'%" mmmm
Type of Identification Produced: $$26 ~SUY -G ~121 =~ R a4

5§20 -3\ SO @ :
Initials: ¢é
10

Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

136



PROMISSORY NOTE
Westgate CRA, Palm Beach County, Florida

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned ("Loan Recipient"} promises to pay to the order of the
Waestgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency {"Wastgate CRA") at 1280 N. Congress
Avenue, Suite 215, West Palm Beach, FL 33409 or at such other address as may be indicated in writing,
in the manner hereinafter specified, the principal sum of dollars $10.000.00 without interest. The
said principal shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America, on [date]

and in the following manner:

The sum of $_10,000.00 representing a payment of principal shall be due and payable one year from
the date set forth above ("Repayment Date").

If, prior to the Repayment Date, the Loan Recipient provides evidence acceptabie to the Westgate CRA
that an amount equivalent to the principal or any part thereof has been paid by the Loan Recipient
towards rent, payroll for employees (excluding bonuses), utility providers, inventory providers, or
toward expenses to upgrade technology to facilitate remote working, the Westgate CRA, in its sole
discretion, may forgive that amount, in which case the Loan Recipient shall not be required to pay such
amount to the Westgate CRA. Evidence may be provided at any time prior to the Repayment Date, and
may be provided on an ongoing basis as such evidence becomes available. Loan Recipient must abide by
all terms and conditions of the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency
COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Forgivable Loan Pragram in order to be eligible for the loan
forgiveness described in this paragraph.

This note may be prepaid, in whole or In part, without penalty, at any time prior to maturity. If payment
due under this note is not paid within 10 days of the Repayment Date, a late charge of 5% of the payment
due shall be added to the principal. In the event of default in the payment of this note, and if the same
is placed in the hands of any attorney for collection, the undersigned hereby agrees to pay all costs of
collection, including a reasonable attorneys’ fee. This note shall be construed and enforced according to
the laws of the State of Florida and nothing in this note shall be deemed to waive any rights of the
Waestgate CRA thereunder.

Makers waive demand, presentment for payment, protest, and notice of nonpayment and dishonor.

Loan Recipient Name (including d/p/a): YINGE(/ | DBA MUFFLERS BRAKES AND MORE
Authorized Signature: //ny 7\
Title: __ CO-DIRECTOR
Date: _9/9/2020
Iniﬁals:%
11

Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

17]



PERSONAL GUABANTY

PROMISSORY NOTE BETWEEN
WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
| AND

YINGEL INC. DBA MUFFLERS BRAKES AND MORE

IN CONSIDERATION of the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency (the
“L ender”) loaning YINGEL INC. {“Borrower”) memorialized by a Promissory Note
dated _9/9 ~, 2020 in the amount of $_10,000.00 (the "Note), the undersigned
individual unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees the payment and coltection of all sums due by
Borrower under the Note, and any and all amendments, addenda, extensions, renewals and
modifications therecf. The undersigned agrees that the obligations of the undersigned will be joint,
several and primary with Borrower’s obligations and not secondary. The Lender need not first pursue
action against Borrower before proceeding against the undersigned. The undersigned agrees that he is
bound by all amendments, addenda, extensions, renewals, and modifications of the Note referenced
above, whether or not the undersigned has signed the same. This Personal Guaranty is supported by
separate consideration, including but not limited to the benefit flowing to the Guarantor as an owner of
the Borrower, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by Lender and Borrower.

WITNESSES: / =~GUARANTOR(S): / /
Witness Signature; Principal/Owner Signature: ~7 —
Printed Name: %x‘w‘é’ %,é printed Name: SHELDON SHANAK
Date: __9/9/2020

# w\ﬁ\
Witness Signature: M Principal/Owner Signature: m’“’ -

Printed Name: /é Jr““éf' ,g/m /7 ’é Printed Name: __ MICHAEL SHANAK
Date: _ 9/9/2020

{Business owner's signature must be notarized)

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged hefore me on this ] i day of éﬁgkm o~ , 2020
by Vot n &led {name of person acknowledging) py an officer duly
authorized by law to administer oaths and take acknowledgements.
{Notary Seal) {
Signature of State of Flofida Notary Puiz;i'g -g‘..,ﬁ'_;ifg MetnRos
S A% N guactoe
Personally Known or Produced Identification’_ /¢ OL. %%mm
s Cocmieakon Ne. GG 104574
Type of Identification Produced:> Lo~ SYY~Lo) 2/ 2 SH
¢ 24 - JF)-5FE- QTS Il:;itials:%z
12

Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program

|59



SITE DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

AN INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIP
BETWEEN

THE WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES
COMMUNITY REDVELOPMENT AGENCY

AND
THE BUSINESS AND DEVELOPMENT COMMUNITY

VBTG 16

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215
West Palm Beach, FL 33409
Phone (561) 640-8181 « Fax {561) 640-8080
www.westgatecra.org

138 A



The SITE DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM is available to new residential, and new and existing
commercial and industrial development within the Westgate CRA redevelopment area. The program is established to
encourage developers and property owners to improve in the external appearance of their properties and/or invest in
their operations. The result will eliminate blighted influences, stabilize property values, and facilitate redevelopment
activity in the target area in accordance with the CRA’s Community Redevelopment Plan. The Site Development
Assistance grant provides funding assistance to help defray or leverage the cost of exterior improvements and project
related engineering, architectural, and permitting costs associated with new construction, building expansion, and
renovations.

REVIEW CRITERTA

Criteria that will be considered in the review of an application include, but are not limited to:
1. The visual impact of the project on the area;
The impact the project will have on property values in the area;
The project’s probahility of success;
The number of new jobs that the business will create, particularly for area residents;
The amount of private funding being invested into the project; and,
The ability of the project to further the goals and objectives of the CRA’s Community Redevelopment Plan.

I

FUNDING

The fotal amount of funding is allocated annually for specific prioritized areas. Funding is dispersed on a reimbursement
basis only, and is awarded on a first come first serve basis. Assistance from this program may, at the sole discretion of
the CRA, he combined with assistance from other programs, or discontinued. Program eligibility and guidelines are
subject to change by the CRA. All applications are subject to approval by the CRA Board.

ELIGIBLE EXPENSES

=  Pre-Development Expenses (site design, architecture, engineering, entitlements, permitting)

= Landscaping Expenses (design fees, installation, material purchases, irrigation)

= Exterior Repair, Stucco, Repainting

= Exterior Awnings or Marquees

= Roof Repair or Replacement

»  Exterior Window Upgrades

»  All costs associated with the Installation and Improvement of Parking Areas, Driveways, Sidewalks
= Exterior Lighting and related Electrical Work

= fxterior Sighage

= Any other exterior improvements approved by the CRA

INELIGIBLE EXPENSES

=  Any and all interior repairs or improvements

» |nterior Painting

= Purchase of equipment, inventory, furnishings, decorations, or supplies
= Purchase of real property

= Rent, lease, or mortgage payments

= HVAC repair and/or replacement

= Security system repair and/or replacement

REIMBURSEMENT PROCESS

=  Funds are dispersed for eligible and pre-approved expenses only;
» No funds shall be dispersed prior to the receipt of a Certificate of Occupancy or the necessary satisfaciory

inspection notices;
2



Grantees must submit a detailed work invoice with proof of payment in the form of a cancelled check, credit
card statement, or vendor certification of payment;

CRA can impose conditicns of approval it deems appropriate to protect the assets of the organization, with
regards to funding and reimbursement.

Mixed use or commercial projects fronting on Westgate Avenue may receive reimbursement for 25% of
their eligible project costs, up to a maximum of $50,000.

Ail other areas of the CRA district may receive reimbursement of 10% of their eligible project costs up to
a maximum of $25,000 for mixed use, commercial or industrial projects.

Multifamily residential projects fronting on Westgate Avenue may receive reimbursement of 20% of their
eligible project costs, up to a maximum of $40,000.

All other areas of the CRA district may receive reimhursement of 10% of their eligible project costs, up to
a maximum of $25,000 for multifamily projects with 5 units or more.

$5,000 per unit for eligible project costs may be reimbursed for multifamily projects with up to 5 units, to
a maximum of $15,000.

$5,000 per unit for eligible project costs may be reimbursed for new single family projects with up to 5
units on contiguous sites, to a maximum of $15,000, and to a maximum of $40,000 for new single family
projects with more than 5 units on contiguous sites.

GENERAL ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS & GRANT TERMS

Grantees under this program agree to complete the project that the funding was awarded for, according

to the scope of work presented in the application. All work must be done in compliance with Palm Beach

County ordinances and regulations. It is the respensibility of the applicant to obtain all necessary zoning

approvals and permits.

The property owner or developer must complete the project, obtain a Certificate of

Occupancy/Completion from Palm Beach County and submit to the CRA for reimbursement within 180

days of the issuance date of the permit for the project.

The program may only be used one time in any five-year period for any one property. Properties may

reapply for additional grants any time after five years from previous grant approval.

Applicants are encouraged to schedule a pre-application conference to assess project eligibility for

reimbursement under the program prior to submitting an application.

Existing Single family homes are not eligible for the Site Development Assistance Grant. Applicants wishing

{0 improve existing single family dwellings within the CRA houndaries are encouraged to consult the CRA’s

Neighbarhood Preservation Program for eligibility requirements and grant terms.

The following new developments are automatically considered ineligible for assistance under the

program:

= A development/use that is considered a non-conforming use as determined by the Palm Beach
County’'s ULDC;

»  Use types that are prohibited uses within the WCRAQ or certain sub-areas of the WCRAQ within the
Palm Beach County ULDC including adult entertainment, convenience store, employment agencies,
gas and fuel sales, light and heavy repair and maintenance, self-service storage, light and heavy vehicle
sales and rental, heavy vehicle or equipment sales and rental, office-warehouse, and contractor
storage yard;

»  Development that does not further the redevelopment goals of the Westgate CRA Community
Redevelopment Plan including but not limited to firearm sales, check cashing stores, adult arcades,
pawn shops, Type | restaurants, liquor stores, smoke shops, and tattoo shops;

=  Home-based businesses unless relocating to a commercial space; and,

= Not for profit organizations.

Grantees shall allow the CRA the rights and use of photos and project application materials.

|40



SITE DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM APPLICATION

Applicant Name:

Business Name:

Business Address:

Mailing Address (if different than ahove):

Phone:

Email:

Website:

Property Control Number (PCN#):

EIN#:

Applicant’s business/development site is:
{attach copy of multi-year lease or warranty deed)

U Owned O Leased

Applicant’s project includes: (check all that apply)

[ Exterior Lighting O Landscaping
O Commercial Parking il Exterior Signage
] Expansion/Renovation of an existing building

Project Budget:

O
O

Roof Repair

New Construction

1. Interior Renovations/Improvements: $
2. Exterior Renovations/Improvements: $
3. Pre-development/Permitting: $

4, Total Project Budget: $

Are you applying for grant assistance under any other program offered by the CRA:

4

U/

Yes [ No O



If so, what other programs are you applying for:

Have you been approved for funding by the CRA Board: Yes [1 No [ Ifso, amount: $ ?

Please read the section below carefully. After you have read the entire application, sign the form below
and submit your completed application to the CRA offices.

I, the undersigned, being a principal of the business applying for assistance under the Site Development
Assistance Program, certify that the business in the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment
Area within the unincorporated area of Palm Beach County.

I understand that the CRA may, at its sole discretion, discontinue subsidy payments at any time if in its sole and
absolute determination it feels such assistance no longer meets the program criteria or no longer furthers the
Westgate CRA Community Redevelopment Plan.

I understand that this application is not a guarantee of assistance. Should my application be approved, |
understand that | am committing to completing the project | have represented in this application and obtaining
a Certificate of Occupancy or the necessary satisfactory inspection notices signifying that the work has been
done in accordance with County ordinances and codes. | agree to obtain all necessary County or other
governmental or State approvals and/or licenses prior to beginning any work. Failure to do so may jeopardize
my ability to receive reimbursement under this grant program.

| understand that the project represented in this application must receive CRA Board approval before the work
is completed in order to be eligible for reimbursement.

| have read this program brochure in its entirety and by signing below accept the terms of the program as
represented in this brochure. | understand that if this application is submitted incomplete, it will not be
processed.

Applicant’s Signature

Printed Name Date

APPLICATION CHECKILIST

The completed application must include the following items prior to processing:

Signed and completed applicaticn form

Business Plan or Executive Summary, including a narrative describing the business, its operations, its business
principles, impact on the community, and potential for area resident employment

Detailed 3-year budget projections of revenues and expenses

Historical financials for the past three years, in a sealed envelope (existing businesses only)

Copy of multi-year lease (including expressed permission from landlord to make changes as outlined in the project)
or copy of Warranty Deed showing property ownership

Narrative description of entire project, broken down into interior and exterior improvements and/or renovations,
including financing sources

K &

H REEN

[ >



[] Detailed breakdown of exterior renovations and improvements for which reimbursement is being requested under
the grant program.

S D N DI SN e e St G SRS . S R N e e e — i B S S S S S S e R e— — —

OFFICE USE ONLY:

Pre-application meeting date: Meets eligibility requirements: Yes [J No [l

CRA Board meeting date: Recommend Board approval: Yes [1 No [

Application notes:

CRA staff initials:

/47



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Neighborhood Preservation Program
A Home Improvement Partnership Agreement Between
Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA and Neighborhood Homeowners

GUIDELINES

Westgate Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency seeks to encourage the
preservation of the CRA’s existing housing stock by providing assistance to homeowners to
make needed improvements to their homes.

Program (Goals:

Preserve the affordable nature of the properties

Prevent property deterioration and blighted appearance

Preserve the character of older neighborhoods

Increase homeowner’s ability to leverage funds for home improvements.

Program Priorities and Loan Terms:

The proposed housing improvements should preserve the integrity of the house and add to the
long-term value and life of the property and the neighborhood.

Health and safety code deficiency correction
Accessibility modification for persons with disabilities
Structural and environmental improvements
Weatherization and energy efficiency

Leveraging Home Improvement Fund

The CRA will provide up to $6,000 grant assistance at the CRA’s discretion subject to budget
and available funding. The total amount of the grant is limited to Six Thousand Dollars. The
first $1,000 is a straight grant; the homeowner can access an additional $5,000 in grant funds
from the CRA by providing a 50/50 match.

Example: If an applicant contributes $5,000, the CRA will grant an additional $5,000.
The homeowner can acquire the five thousand match funds from any source of their
choosing.

The CRA will provide their assistance on a first come first served basis pending funds
availability, however, the CRA in its sole discretion will prioritize applications based on the
extent of the improvements and homeowners using other programs (leveraging funds) for
repairs. An applicant is limited to apply only once every three years.

[#F



The maximum amount of grant to any one property owner under the Program is $6,000. Grant
applicants may apply multiple times if granted less than the maximum amount, but no grant applicant
will receive more than the maximum amount in total. If the maximum amount of funding to the
Program is later increased, grant applicants that were granted $6,000 may reapply for additicnal funding
until the new maximum is reached.

Eligible Improvement Costs:

Funds may be used to correct existing code deficiencies, structural deficiencies, weatherization,
accessibility, and general property improvements. Any code violation issues must be addressed
as part of the improvement projects.

Work must include at least one of the following:

Exterior improvements (siding, roofing, windows, painting, driveway)
Addition of a bedroom(s), bathroom(s) or new living space
Conversion of a rental unit to owner-occupied home
Landscaping/irrigation, decorative fencing, shutters

Vermin/termite eradication

Air Conditioning System, Water Heater, Electrical, Plumbing

Sewer Connection

Eligible Properties:

Located within the Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA boundaries
One property per owner

Owner-occupied one or two unit residences

Rental property owners provided improvements exceed $10,000
Current on property tax, mortgage, and no outstanding code lien

The Partnership Responsibilities:

Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA

e Market and publicize the program to property owners within the CRA

e Provide up to $6,000 grant assistance at the CRA’s discretion subject to budget and
available funding

e Review and approve home improvements before commencement and issue Notice to
Proceed to include the amount eligible for reimbursement

e Take before and after pictures of improvements

Homeowner

e Submit grant application and scope of work to CRA

/45



¢ Seek contractors and obtain bids (at least three)
e Commence and complete the improvements within six months of the Notice to proceed
e Submit invoices and proof of payment for reimbursement.

NOTE: The CRA will not recommend companies/contractor to perform work. Property
owner is charged with doing their own due diligence to get the lowest and best price for the
project.

[#6



b

g

VG RO

September 10, 2020

Julian Gutierrez
Diversified Contractors
900 Via Royale #905
Jupiter FL, 33458

RE: WCRA Density Bonus Program/Duplex Development Recommendation
1115 Osceola Drive — 2-unit Residential Development
PCN 00-43-43-30-03-022-0571

Dear Mr. Gutierrez;

Please be advised that this letter is prepared to address the requirement of Article 3.14.D.1 of the Palm Beach
County Unified Land Development Code (ULDC), as amended.

A recommendation of approval from the Westgate CRA is requested for the foliowing:
» the development of a duplex residential structure on a non-conforming lot; and,
» an allocation of one (1) dwelling unit from the WCRA Density Bonus Program unit pool.

Based on the site plan submitted, the proposed residential duplex development is generally compatible with the
goals and objectives of the Westgate CRA Community Redevelopment Plan, as amended and approved by the
Board of County Commissioners, and the intent of the NG sub-area of the WCRA Zoning Overlay to encourage
multi-family residential development.

The Westgate CRA recommends approval for the development of a duplex residential structure on a non-
conforming lot utilizing one (1) dwelling unit from the WCRA Density Bonus Program until pool, subject to the
following:
1. WCRA recommendation of approval for one (1) dwelling unit from the WCRA Density Bonus Program
unit pool will be valid for three (3) years from the date of this letter, or until September 7, 2023;
2. Thesite planmust complywith the criteria for obtaining WCRA recommendation for WCRA density bonus
units including:
a) The minimum building frontage requirement for the NG sub-area of 60% per Table 3.B.14.F,
WCRAQ Residential Sub-area PDRs
b) Vehicular access to parking is [imited to the rear of the lot in accordance with Art. 3.8.14.1.1.a.1)
c) A minimum of 5% of the gross lot area is set aside for open space with a public amenity with a
minimum size of 800 sf and 25 ft. in width... including pergolas pursuant to Art. 3.8.14.H.1.a.4)
d} A minimum of 40% of the project’s allowed density {one unit) is reserved for affordable housing
meeting the requirements of Table 3.8.14.H, WCRAO Affordability Ranges and the affordahility
of the unit must be maintained for 10 years (for sale) and 20 years (rental).

Elizée Michpel, AICP, Executive Director
Westgate CRA, Palm Beach County

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 ~ West Palm Beach, Florida 33409  ~  561.640.8181 ~ westgatecra.org

/47



July 29, 2020

Elizee Michel
Westgate CRA

Proposed Site Plan for
1115 Osceola Dr
West Palm Beach FL

Through this letter we want to acknowledge that we will follow this four requirements
in order to be approved by the Westgate CRA for a bonus density pool of one unit
under the NG sub area.

1) The proposed project will meet the minimum building frontage requirements of
table 3.B.14.F

2) The proposed project will provide a rear lot line abutting a R-O-W to ensure that
vehicular access to parking is limited to the rear of the lot, in accordance with
Art. 3.B.14.1.1.a.1

3) A minimum of five percent of the gross lot area will be set aside for open space
with a public amenity.

4} A minimum of 40 percent of the project’s allowed density will be reserved for
affordable housing meeting requirements of Art. 3.B.14.H.1.c

Sincerely yours,

Julian Gutierrez




THATII VIOADSO

HONIAAY dANOTAHD

G

TVAEHOIS

-0E

HILAOMN

| ®

Adamz o of HOVIS DMIIMVI

\_\ b

T 1 .2-.9F
_ L0152 _ ¥

.W HTV TS
2-.01 52

A I
Y 7
W A
—— 00—
T @
HIOWVAdS DUV © —
.._W HIVMIAIS
Y
—.E_\.m | 52 L @E
MTVARAIS .ﬁﬁ.-%ﬂ b8 TOWVIS DNIMUWVI
.E\.QI_L
nn
B R = ®
[ HADVAR PNV
i
R NV L {
L TH LI
A
: ®
m j m m SEDVALE NIV e
U T
 (w Ty 1= 61 IV\-mm
TH LA @
HOVelS DNIHH VL
L=
ﬁ L.g il
AT

s

N/

6,66

[¥ 9



I”V{l nrRA

l'lnH

September 7, 2020

Mr. Kevin McGinley

Land Research Management, Inc.

2240 Palm Beach Lakes Blvd., Suite 103
Waest Palm Beach, FL 33409

RE: WCRA Recommendation Letter
PROIJECT: Okeechobee Steakhouse
Control No. 1994-00037

Dear Mr. McGinley;

Please be advised that this letter is prepared to address the requirements of Article 3.8.14.D.1 of the
Unified Land Development Code (ULDC), as amended.

The Westgate CRA reviewed the revised site plan dated July 20, 2020. The proposed project is generally
compatible with the goals and objectives of the Westgate CRA Community Redevelopment Plan, as
approved by the Board of County Commissioners, and the intent of the UH Sub-area of the WCRA
Zoning Overlay. The Westgate CRA recommends approval for the project to include the following:

1. To modify the use in Building B from catering services to a 130 seat Type |l restaurant with 30
outdoor seats for a total of 160 seats; and,

2. Administrative DRO site plan approval.

Please feel free to contact me at dpennell@pbcgov.org should you have any additional questions.

Sincerely,

o

Denise Pennell, FRA-RA
Senior Planner/Project Manager
Westgate CRA, Palm Beach County

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 ~ Waest Palm Beach, Florida 33409 ~ 561.640.8181 ~ westgatecra.org

/50



IHV{[ AAnN

nnn

o NI R

September 7, 2020

Mr. Roger Ramdeen, Land Use Planner
Shutts & Bowen, LLP

525 Okeechobee Blvd., Suite 100
Woest Palm Beach, FL 33401

RE:

PROJECT:

WCRA Recommendation Letter (2™ revision)
Soapy Shark Carwash
Control No. 1996-00026

Dear Mr. Ramdeen;

Please be advised that this letter is prepared to address the requirements of Article 3.8.14.D.1 of the
Unified Land Development Code {ULDC), as amended.

The applicant requests a recommendation of approval for the project from the Westgate CRA to include

the following:
1.

2.

DRO Site Plan Approval for a 4,176 sf Car Wash use;

An allocation of 166 net new daily trips, 12 new am peak hour trips and 14 new pm peak hour
trips, from the WCRA Transportation Concurrency Exception Area (TCEA) pool; and,

To allow six (6} variances:

Areduction in the minimum lot depth of 200 ft. to 195 ft. along the western property line
to 151 ft. along the eastern property ling;

A reduction in the minimum building frontage requirement in the UG Sub-area from the
required 156 ft. (60%) to a proposed 130 ft. (50%) (Table 3.B.14.F. - WCRAQ);

To allow the principal entrance to be located at the rear of the building, an elimination of
the requirement for all uses in the UG Sub-area to orient the first fioor principal entrance
towards the street used as the primary building frontage (Art.3.8.14.G.3.b — WCRAOQO});

To allow an elimination of the requirements of Art. 7.C.4.B to provide a 10 ft. divider
median Tn parking lots with two or more vehicular parking aisles.

To allow a 10 ft. x 30 ft. mass transit easement to overlap into the ROW buffer; and,

To allow an elimination of the requirements of Art. 7.C.3.B.1.b for 8 ft. for front
foundation planting located at the primary entrance along 40% of the facade.

The Westgate CRA Board reviewed the revised site plan dated March 30, 2020, justification by your
office, along with other supporting documents, including conceptual architecture elevations, and
drainage and traffic statements at their April 13, 2020 regular meeting. A revised site plan, reflecting
three (3) additional variance requests, was also reviewed by the CRA. The proposed project is generally

(1)

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 ~ West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 ~ 561.640.8181 ~ westgatecra.org

(57



compatible with the goals and objectives of the Westgate CRA Community Redevelopment Plan, as
approved by the Board of County Commissioners, and the intent of the WCRA Zoning Overlay of the UG
Sub-area.

Please feel free to contact me at dpennell@pbcgov.org should you have any additional questions.

Sincerely,

y 7 AN

Denise Pennell, FRA-RA
Senior Planner/Project Manager
Westgate CRA

(2]

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215~ West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 ~ 561.640.8181 ~ westgatecra.org

[5 2



